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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EREE

Dear Fellow Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of China
Baofeng (International) Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present the annual report for the financial year ended
31 December 2018 of the Company.

2018 was a fruitful year for the Company (together with its
subsidiaries, collectively referred as the "Group”), especially
for our principal business including investment, construction
and operation of photovoltaic power generation projects (the
“Photovoltaic Power Generation Business”).

Upon successful commencement of operation of the
photovoltaic power generation projects in the second half
of 2016, it achieved a satisfactory result in 2017. Under the
leadership of the Board in 2018, the total electricity generated
from the Photovoltaic Power Generation Business hit record
high. Such investment significantly increased the profit margin
of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December
2018. The profit attributable to the owners of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2018 rose approximately
19.1% to approximately HK$532.5 million from HK$447.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2017. For the year
ended 31 December 2018, the Group recorded total revenue
of approximately HK$1,106.6 million, 59.8% of which was
generated from the Photovoltaic Power Generation Business.
As a custodian and participant of clean energy, the Group
actively responds to the national policies and joins hands with
others to create a green and beautiful homeland for the new
era.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

CHINA ACTIVELY DEALING WITH GLOBAL
ENVIRONMENTAL CRISIS

Photovoltaic power generation is a source of green and
clean energy, which aligns with the direction of energy
transformation development and plays an important role in
the energy reform. In recent years, with the joint efforts of
various parties, the development of photovoltaic industry in the
People’s Republic of China (the”PRC") has attracted worldwide
attention. The newly installed capacity of photovoltaic power
generation ranked first in the world for the fifth consecutive
year, while the cumulative installed capacity ranked first
in the world for the third consecutive year. The innovation
and breakthrough of the world’s leading photovoltaic
technology has formed a comprehensive photovoltaic industry
chain with global competitiveness. With wide adoption in
industry and increasing research and development efforts on
technology, the costs decreased significantly, demonstrating
the government subsidies for new energy is effective for
bringing the industry into a new level and leading the PRC to
become the country with the largest and most comprehensive
industry chain. In 2018, the photovoltaic market in the PRC
has a unique feature of low photovoltaic curtailment rate
with high power generation. In the first half of 2018, the
development of photovoltaic industry in the PRC remained
a strong momentum. The cumulative photovoltaic installed
and grid-connected capacity has reached 154.51GW, while
newly installed and grid-connected capacity has reached
24.31GW. Throughout 2018, the cumulative photovoltaic
installed and grid-connected capacity was over 170GW,
while newly installed and grid-connected capacity was over
43GW. However, there are still certain issues that directly
affects the healthy and orderly development of photovoltaic
industry, including photovoltaic curtailments and increasing
demand for subsidies. Adjustment on development concept
and improvement on development policies based on the new
situation and requirements are needed for the PRC to turn
the tide. Hence, in 2018, a notice issued by the National
Development and Reform Commission of the PRC, ministry of
Finance of the PRC and the National Energy Administration
in relation to photovoltaic power generation in 2018 was
promulgated on 31 May 2018 to deal with the large subsidy
gap and to improve the efficiency of solar energy system;
however, the PRC is still facing a serious energy shortage.
As such, renewable energy still has large market in the PRC.
Nonetheless, such policy has not made any effects on our
existing business.

EREHE

ERRECHK  PEREEY

HIRBERGOBELNER  FARREAERES
M FREFEGPFEESEEER - 0AFK B HE
RENT  PEAREME(HE]) R KEENE
RE2KER - B RBEEMIGE R EESFR2IRE
— > BEFEEAEBEIFAERERE — o HIREMW
TETBIFTZRAE « 2Bk%E%L > YEKEBEBEHSEN
TR RS o KRR A 2 8 B AT hnse
YRR B SR T KIBEMIRRA T - E—Ff2
FERR BB RE R B E A AR - WICRZEEZEH#E F—
Fs - FHEKAREEN  EXEREMER -
TE- NFHREXATHE2BEREEY  RES

B EARABAH G - —F— \FL¥F - AEN
REEZRDERFZRYNEE - ARIHRE
MR EER15451GW @ FE R AERAIS
EF2431GW e —ZE— N\F2F » AEIFHRKE
I EASEDEIBI70GW @ MRRFTLERT @S
EHIB43GW - AT S—HHE > RAREEENKEE
AR BB RSB NATE - AEFENRIT
E¥RFEFRE FSZREFFE  FERAREE
B TEBEBER B —ZT—N\F - AR
Bk O KA RIRFE ARG RE RGN E - BB K3 E N
WEZES  FEMBBMBREREN _ZT—/\F
RAA=tT—HBELEN - N\EXRBEEBEEE
R - BEE EARMEREREEDSIETER
E o At BEREREFBEDNAERANTS - Em
il ZBRAEARNTIEAERERTE -

Annual Report 2018 —E— N\FFH



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EREE

PHOTOVOLTAIC POWER GENERATION, OUR
FUTURE WAY OUT

Over years of development, the PRC has witnessed different
stages of photovoltaic power generation from starting
up, industrialization to large-scale production. Currently,
the focus of the development should shift from enlarging
scale to enhancing quality and efficiency and promoting
technology advancement. With the view of more healthy
and sustainable development, more efforts have to be made
on promoting technology advancement, lowering power
generation costs and reducing reliance on subsidy, so as to
optimize the development scale and enhance the effectiveness
of operation as well as promote an orderly and high quality
industry development, enabling the sector to deliver
enormous attraction and profit. As such, the Group believes
a stable growth will be maintained in the photovoltaic power
generation industry in 2019.

RISKS MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
FORTIFICATION

In the coming year, the Group will further fortify its risk
management and internal control, integrate the risk
management and internal control with its daily operation
and improve the operation safety of the Photovoltaic Power
Generation Business. The management actively participated in
and established the relevant management team to ensure rules
and regulations are complied with and internal controls are
carried out properly. In 2019, the Group will further optimize
our systems, procedures, incentives measures to promote our
vitality and economic benefits and increase our profitability.

In terms of the business of the sales of lighting products
including portable lighting products, shades for lamps and
furniture sets and other home accessory products (the
“Lighting Products Business”), it is expected that it will be
exposed to material adverse impacts resulted from potential
increase of tariff from United states of America (the “United
States”), intensified competition in its principal markets and
rising costs of labour and raw materials. We will continue
to strengthen our management and cost control, and set up
corresponding strategies based on prevailing market condition.

With the collaborative efforts of all of our staff, we will
continue to strengthen our market position in the photovoltaic
power industry, so as to achieve a more sound and stable
development of the Group. The Group will strive for a better
performance in the coming year.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express our gratitude to
our staff for their dedicated hard work, and | would also like to
thank all of our shareholders and stakeholders for their strong
support.

Dang Yanbao
Chairman

29 March 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS
The Group is engaged in (i) Photovoltaic Power Generation
Business; and (ii) the Lighting Products Business.

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

Photovoltaic Power Generation Industry

The photovoltaic power generation market in the PRC has
experienced a negative impact from a notice issued by the
National Development and Reform Commission of the PRC,
Ministry of Finance of the PRC and the National Energy
Administration (the “NEA” ) in relation to photovoltaic power
generation in 2018 (MR = — N\FHREEHHEHEAEAN)
(the “2018 Notice”) on 31 May 2018 with immediate effect.
Pursuant to the 2018 Notice, amongst others:

(1) the NEA will stop granting installation quota for
ordinary utility-scale solar farms in 2018;

(2) cuts to the feed-in tariffs of newly approved ordinary
utility-scale solar farms by RMBO0.05 kilowatt per hour
("kWh") to RMB0.5/0.6/0.7/kWh in Zones I, Il and I,
respectively;

(3) cuts to the subsidy provided by the PRC government
to newly approved distributed generation projects by
RMBO0.05/kWh to RMB0.32/kWh.

Notwithstanding the above, the 2018 Notice does not affect
the Group’s existing Yinchuan Project (defined below), as
the Yinchuan Project commenced operation prior to the
publication of the 2018 Notice.

Portable Lighting Products Industry

The competition of the global portable lighting products
industry in 2018 remained fierce. The United States portable
lighting products market, which is the principal market of the
lighting products of the Group, has been highly saturated
with numerous firms selling a diverse range of products
manufactured both domestically and internationally.

In September 2018, the United States imposed additional 10%
tariff on about US$200 billion worth of goods imported from
the PRC which included lighting products. The tariff rate was
originally scheduled to increase to 25% starting from 1 January
2019. Nonetheless, as at the date of this annual report, the
effective date for the increase is not finalised.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWET

Should the increase in tariff comes into force, it is highly likely
to have an adverse effect on the profitability of the Group’s
lighting products. It is likely that the trading environment
between the United States and the PRC of the lighting products
industry, and in fact other consumer products industries, will
continue to be challenging. The Group will continue to observe
the progress of this potential impact from time to time and
make necessary arrangements to optimise the returns to the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) as a whole
and lessen any negative effect on its performance and results
of operations.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the business of the
Group has been integrated into two segments, which are
Photovoltaic Power Generation Business and Lighting Products
Business.

Attributable to the contribution of the Photovoltaic Power
Generation Business for the year under review, the Group’s
operation recorded an increase in both revenue and
profitability for the year ended 31 December 2018. For the
year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s revenue increased
by approximately 15.7% to approximately HK$1,106.6 million
while profit attributable to the owners of the Company
increased by approximately 19.1% to approximately HK$532.5
million.

Photovoltaic Power Generation Business

During the year under review, the Photovoltaic Power
Generation Business of the Group continued to develop and
brought profits to the Group. In respect of the 350 megawatt
photovoltaic power generation output capacity of the Group's
photovoltaic project in Yinchuan City (the “Yinchuan
Project”), Ningxia Hui Autonomous Region (“Ningxia”),
the PRC, the major equipment of the Yinchuan Project
was provided by Yinchuan Binhe New Energy Investment
Development Co., Ltd* (SR)IVEAFEERIEEREFRAF)
through lease arrangement. In order to fully utilise the 390
megawatt photovoltaic power generation output capacity
granted, the Group has commenced the development of
its own infrastructure and purchased equipment for the
Yinchuan Project since December 2017 and the development
was completed in 2018. Accordingly, the photovoltaic power
generation output capacity from the Yinchuan Project had
been increased from 350 megawatt in 2017 to 390 megawatt
by the end of 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As confirmed by the State Grid Corporation of China, for the
year ended 31 December 2018, the Group has generated an
aggregate of 763.8 million kWh power and the Photovoltaic
Power Generation Business continued to be the main source
of the revenue of the Group, accounting for approximately
59.8% (31 December 2017: 55.9%) of the Group’'s total
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2018. In addition,
the Photovoltaic Power Generation Business continued to be
the key growth driver of the profit of the Group, contributing
to approximately 98.7% of the Group’s total segment profit
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (31 December 2017:
95.1%).

The Group's revenue from the Photovoltaic Power Generation
Business for the year ended 31 December 2018 was
approximately HK$661.6 million, which represents an increase
of approximately 23.8% from the revenue generated for the
corresponding period in 2017 (31 December 2017: HK$534.6
million). The segment profit margin of the Photovoltaic Power
Generation Business was approximately 84.5% for the year
ended 31 December 2018 (31 December 2017: 87.1%),
and the segment profit increased by approximately 20.2%
to approximately HK$559.3 million (31 December 2017:
HK$465.5 million).

Lighting Products Business

The Group’s revenue from the Lighting Products Business
for the year ended 31 December 2018 was approximately
HK$445.0 million (31 December 2017: HK$421.7 million),
contributing to approximately 40.2% (31 December 2017:
44.1%) of the Group's total revenue, and representing
an increase of 5.5% from the revenue generated in the
corresponding period in 2017. The increase was due to the
increased demand of our lighting products in view of the
expected increase of US tariff to 25% in 2019. Nevertheless,
due to the keen competition in the principal market of
the lighting products of the Group and rising of operating
expenses, the segment profit margin of Lighting Products
Business decreased to approximately 1.6% for the year
ended 31 December 2018 (31 December 2017: 5.7%) and
the segment profit decreased by approximately 69.5% to
approximately HK$7.3 million (31 December 2017: HK$24.1
million).

EEEN WD

CREBEREPERFER  HE2E_2—)\F+-_A=
+—HILFE  AEEKESE 763800000:FE57‘
HARBEEEBKEERARAERNEBERZERIR - R
Egﬁéff NF+_A=+—HIEFEZBWz=

49598%(—FE—+tF+-_A=+—H :559%) °
IHEAN ;Hﬂ*f EGEEAAEBGEINEZHRD)

o BERAEEEE T —
JE 7 8Bm A A EE R £798.7%
—H:951%) °

}\$+ A=+—H1t%F
—tF+-A=+

BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE  KEBK
BXIRESE %ﬁ“ﬂ’]uﬁlﬁuﬂﬁ661 600,000/8 7T © &
2 +tFERBEANUNSN(ZE—+FE+ A=
+ B : 534,600,000 JT ) 3% f14923.8% - ﬁi

Z—-NFE+_A=+— Eﬁif FIREBEEE
%ﬂﬁ’]’“ﬁﬂfﬁ,ﬂjﬁsu% —+F+=-A=
+—H:87.1%) - H’M/ﬁnfruiﬂ%uﬂjzoz%zﬁﬂj
559,300,000 (= ZE—t&F+=-_A=+—H:
465,500,000 1) ©

BAERERE
BE-_Z—\F+_A=+—HILFE  KX£ER
FAE @ ES I E 4 A445,000,00008 T ( ZF—+
F+-A=+—H8 421,700,000 7T) » EEIAE
BN ZRENL02%(—FE—+F+-_A=+—8:
441%)  B-_ZE—+FRHAEENHUZIEING.5% °
BENREAENEEBREIN - —LFLAZE
25% + A ERE IR E R B KL MATE -
BEWME > ARAEERAERNEEMSHEFER
MEamEtEmn 2 - N\F+-A=+—H
IHFE - BAEREFSSBIERRLEN1.6%(=
E—+E+=_A=1+—H :5.7%) * DEEEFE D4
69.5% & 47,300,000/ T ( — & — tEJrfﬂer
—[ : 24,100,000/ 7T) °

Annual Report 2018 —Z— \FF#



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWET

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS

Photovoltaic Power Generation Business

The Group would apply for the Yinchuan Project to be
enlisted on the upcoming batch of the Reusable Energy Tariff
Subsidy Catalogues (A]BAREREEMINESHINE ). |
the application is successful, the Board expects to receive
settlements of tariff adjustment receivables from the PRC
Government, which will improve the liquidity of the Group.

In 2019, the Group will continue to leverage the knowledge
and experiences of its management to evaluate and seek
appropriate opportunities for the further expansion of
the Group’s established Photovoltaic Power Generation
Business and identify opportunities with reasonable returns
in the photovoltaic power generation industry. The Group
intends to focus on and further direct resources to develop
its Photovoltaic Power Generation Business in accordance
with the national policies. The Group will continue to look
for opportunities to further strengthen its capabilities and
expertise in this segment, including but not limited to
participation in the photovoltaic poverty alleviation program
and other national or regional photovoltaic programs to
achieve sustainable development of its Photovoltaic Power
Generation Business. The Board believes that the Photovoltaic
Power Generation Business will continue to be the Group’s
main growth driver, and the strategic development of the
Photovoltaic Power Generation Business is for the benefit of
the Shareholders as a whole.

Lighting Products Business

In 2019, it is expected that the Lighting Products Business
will be adversely affected by the potential increased US tariff,
intensified competition in its principal markets, rising costs
of labour and raw materials. In case the market competition
continues to intensify, the Group would deploy its resources
efficiently and shift the focus on other segments of the Group
so that the Group will generate long term return to the
Shareholders.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Segment Information

The Group reported its financial information by two segments:
(i) Photovoltaic Power Generation Business; and (ii) Lighting
Products Business. The table below is an analysis of the Group's
revenue, segment profit and segment profit margin of its
operation by segment for the year ended 31 December 2017
and 2018.
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For the year ended 31 December

HET-A=t-BHLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F =
Segment Segment
% of Segment profit % of profit
Revenue revenue profit NETGT Revenue revenue margin
i EREESL AWEN  oBAEER & mRERL wh DA
(HK$'000) (HK$'000) (%)  (HK$'000) (%)
TER TER (%) TR B (%)
Photovoltaic Power
Generation Business
KREEER 661,612 59.8 559,308 84.5 534,628 55.9 465,454 87.1
Lighting Products Business
RHEERER 445,031 40.2 7,343 1.6 421,695 44.1 24,078 5.7
Total
st 1,106,643 100.0 566,651 51.2 956,323 100.0 489,532 51.2
Revenue Wz

During the year ended 31 December 2018, revenue of the
Group was derived from the Photovoltaic Power Generation
Business and Lighting Products Business amounting to
approximately HK$1,106.6 million, representing an increase
of approximately 15.7% from approximately HK$956.3 million
for the year ended 31 December 2017. The increase in revenue
was mainly attributable to revenue contribution from the
Photovoltaic Power Generation Business.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the gross profit
of the Group increased by approximately 22.2% from
approximately HK$513.3 million for the corresponding period
in 2017 to approximately HK$627.3 million. The gross profit
margin of the Group improved from approximately 53.7% for
the year ended 31 December 2017 to approximately 56.7%
for the corresponding period in 2018. The increase in both
gross profit and gross profit margin of the Group for the year
was attributable to the contribution of the Photovoltaic Power
Generation Business while the gross profit margin of which
was significantly higher compared with the Lighting Products
Business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWET

Operating costs

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the total
operating cost increased to approximately HK$106.1 million,
representing an increase of approximately 12.7% from
approximately HK$94.2 million for the corresponding period in
2017. The increase in operating cost was primarily due to rising
staff costs and other operating expenses.

Finance Costs
The Group recorded finance costs amounting to approximately
HK$5.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 (31
December 2017: HK$9.4 million). The decrease in finance
costs was primarily due to full repayments of bank borrowings
during the year.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

Profit attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$532.5 million was recorded for the year ended 31
December 2018, as compared with a profit of approximately
HK$447.1 million attributable to owners of the Company for
the corresponding period in 2017. Earnings per share was
87.13 HK cents for the year ended 31 December 2018, as
compared with earnings per share of 78.76 HK cents for the
corresponding period in 2017.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2018, cash and cash equivalents of the
Group were approximately HK$82.5 million, representing an
increase of 36.0% from approximately HK$60.7 million as at
31 December 2017. This was mainly due to release of pledged
bank deposits after repayment of the corresponding bank
borrowings and a decrease in bills payable.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s primary
source of funding included cash generated from its operating
activities, equity financing activities and bank borrowings.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had no bank borrowing
(31 December 2017: HK$275.5 million). The Group’s current
ratio (current asset divided by current liabilities) was 9.5 times
as at 31 December 2018, which was improved from 2.4 times
as at 31 December 2017.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to Shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of (i) net debt,
which includes the bank borrowing, bills payable and cash
and cash equivalents and pledged deposits; and (ii) equity
attributable to owners of the Group, comprising issued capital
and reserves. As at 31 December 2018, net gearing ratio was
not presented as the Group had net cash (in excess of debt)
(31 December 2017: 18.9%). This ratio is based on bank
borrowings and bills payable less cash and cash equivalents and
pledged bank deposit divided by total equity.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had no interest-bearing
bank borrowing (31 December 2017: HK$275.5 million, which
carried interest at the Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
(“HIBOR") plus 1.7% per annum to HIBOR plus 2.95% per
annum). As at 31 December 2018, bills payable amounting
to RMB1.3 million (equivalent to approximately HK$1.5
million) (31 December 2017: RMB79.5 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$95.8 million)) were secured by bank deposits
of RMB1.3 million (equivalent to approximately HK$1.5
million) (31 December 2017: RMB79.5 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$95.8 million)).

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents were mainly held in Renminbi, US dollars and HK
dollars.

PLACING OF SHARES UNDER SPECIFIC
MANDATE

On 24 May 2018, the Company and Fung Teng Enterprises
Limited (“Fung Teng"”), a company wholly-owned by
Mr. Dang Yanbao, Chairman and executive Director of
the Company, entered into a subscription agreement
("Subscription Agreement”) pursuant to which Fung Teng
has conditionally agreed to subscribe for, and the Company
has conditionally agreed to allot and issue, 96,150,000 Shares
("Subscription Shares”) at HK$2.60 per Subscription Share
(the "Subscription”).

The closing price of the Shares on 24 May 2018, being the date
on which the terms of the issue were fixed, was HK$3.00 per
Share as quoted on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”). The aggregate nominal value of the
Subscription Shares was HK$961,500 and the net issue price
per Subscription Share was approximately HK$2.59.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWET

As stated in the 2017 annual report of the Company, as at 31
December 2017, the interest-bearing bank borrowings of the
Group that were provided by independent financial institutions
and will become due within a year was HK$275.5 million,
and the interest rate is based on HIBOR. The net gearing ratio
of the Group was 18.9% as at 31 December 2017 and the
interest expenses for the financial year ended 31 December
2017 amounted to approximately HK$9.4 million. In view of
the potential increasing trend of HIBOR, the directors of the
Company (the "Directors”) considered that the Subscription
would enable the Group to utilise the proceeds of the
Subscription to repay the existing bank borrowings of the
Group, hence reduce its finance costs, lower the net gearing
ratio, increase the profitability and strengthen the financial
position of the Group.

The gross proceeds of the Subscription were estimated to be
HK$249,990,000, and the net proceeds of the Subscription
(after deducting all applicable costs and expenses reasonably
incurred in relation to the entering of the Subscription
Agreement and the related documents) were HK$248,990,000
and all of the net proceeds were intended to be used for
repayment of the existing interest-bearing loan in the principal
amount of HK$250 million. As at 31 December 2018, the loan
of HK$250.0 million was fully repaid by the Company.

On 20 July 2018, all the conditions precedent of the
Subscription were fulfilled and the Subscription Shares have
been allotted and issued to Fung Teng.

The Directors shall review the capital structure regularly, taking
into account the cost of capital and the associated risks. Based
on recommendations of the Board, the Group will maintain an
appropriate capital structure accordingly.

THE GROUP’S EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Directors’ fees are determined by the Board as authorised
by the Shareholders in the annual general meeting. The Board
shall consider the recommendation of the remuneration
committee of the Company (“Remuneration Committee”)
with reference to the Directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group. Each executive
Director may also receive a year-end bonus in respect of each
financial year. The amount of such bonus will be determined
by the Board with reference to the recommendation of the
Remuneration Committee.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has a total of nine
(31 December 2017: nine) Directors and employed 214 (31
December 2017: 206) employees. Total staff costs, including
Directors’ emoluments, amounted to approximately HK$63.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2018 (31 December
2017: HK$48.6 million). The Group’s remuneration policies
were determined with reference to the performance,
qualification and experience of individual employee, as well as
the results of the Group and the market conditions. The Group
also provided discretionary bonus, medical insurance and
provident fund to employees. The Company adopted a share
option scheme on 21 June 2012, under which the Company
can grant options to, among others, employees of the Group to
subscribe for Shares for rewarding them for their contributions
to the Group and providing incentives to them to optimise their
future contributions to the Group. Up to the 31 December
2018, no share option has been granted under the share option
scheme.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the Group
did not have any contingent liability.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

The Group has commenced the development of its own
infrastructure for additional 40 megawatt output capacity
of the photovoltaic power generation since December 2017
and the development had completed in 2018. For the year
ended 31 December 2018, RMB77.7 million has been invested
in this regard. The Group’s revenue from the Photovoltaic
Power Generation Business increased by approximately 23.8%
to approximately HK$661.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2018, which was partly attributable to the addition
of such 40 megawatt output capacity. Save as disclosed, the
Group did not have any other significant investments as at 31
December 2018.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

In view of the positive development of the Photovoltaic
Power Generation Business, the Group may from time to
time consider appropriate opportunities for expansion of its
photovoltaic power generation capacity through participation
in or acquisition of new projects. Save as disclosed herein,
there was no specific plan for material investments or capital
assets as at 31 December 2018. In the event that the Group
is engaged in any plan for material investments or capital
assets, the Company will make announcement(s) and comply
with relevant rules under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) as and when appropriate.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there was no
material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries, associated
companies and joint ventures by the Group.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2018, bank deposits of RMB1.3 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$1.5 million) (31 December
2017: RMB79.5 million (equivalent to approximately HK$95.8
million)) were pledged to a bank for issue of bills payable.
The Group's land and buildings with carrying value of HK$0.7
million (31 December 2017: HK$0.8 million) were pledged to a
bank to secure banking facilities granted to the Group.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

During the year under review, a significant part of the revenue
of the Group was denominated in Renminbi while the Group
has transactions invoiced in US dollars and bank loans drawn
down in HK dollars, and accordingly the Group was exposed to
foreign exchange risk. Save as disclosed herein, the amounts
of other foreign currencies involved in the Group’s operation
for the year ended 31 December 2018 were insignificant. The
Group did not have a foreign currency hedging policy and
did not employ any financial instrument for hedging purpose
during the year ended 31 December 2018. However, the
management monitored foreign exchange exposure closely to
keep the net exposure to an acceptable level.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s capital commitment
amounted to approximately HK$15.2 million (31 December
2017: HK$44.8 million) in respect of property, plant and
equipment contracted but not provided for.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On 23 March 2019, Ningxia Baofeng Photovoltaic Power
Generation Company Limited* (BEEE L HREBEFR A
7)) (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) (“Baofeng
Photovoltaic”) as purchaser entered into a sale and purchase
agreement (“Sale and Purchase Agreement”) with Yinchuan
Binhe New Energy Investment Development Co., Ltd* (if
BRI ERIEFRAR) (the “Vendor”), pursuant
to which Baofeng Photovoltaic has conditionally agreed to
purchase and the Vendor has conditionally agreed to sell the
350-megawatt photovoltaic power generation equipment,
the ancillary facilities, the materials in stock, products and
accessories of the Yinchuan Project (the “"Equipment”) at a
consideration of RMB2,398,153,588 (tax inclusive) (equivalent
to approximately HK$2,808,142,375). The Equipment is a
set of photovoltaic power generation equipment which has
been leased to Baofeng Photovoltaic by the Vendor since
its acquisition of the Equipment and has been used by the
Group in the Yinchuan Project for the photovoltaic business
operations of the Group since the commencement of the
Yinchuan Project in 2016.

China Baofeng (International) Limited HEEE (HKR)ERQT

BEABBHHE
BE—Z—/\G+_A=+—BHIFE AEELTE
ERMBAR  BMERRARAALENERKBRL

£ o
=

KHREE

RZEBE-NE+_A=1+—8 RBIBZARKE
1,300,000 (#B & M 471,500,000/ ) (ZFE—+
F+-—A=+—8: AR¥79,500,000 T (FHE R4
95,800,000/ 70) ) BB FIRITABITEN & -
ANEBEmMER700,0008T(ZE—+F+- A=
+—H :800,000/8 7T ) By L1 R AIEF B IR FERITIA
BEAEBRERITEERMES -

SMNEE L B

REBEEE  AKERANDKWEUARBE - A
MAKEBARTH ARERNRZ H RIABTIREER
TER - MAKBEAEAZINERR - FRARE NG
O REBE-_ZT-\F+_A=+t—HLFE - $

SEXRBRAYENEMINESER ) - REE_T

NEFTZA=+—HILFE  AEBEWEINEE DR
FEWEEREMMEIAEEESDRE - R - &8
JE & 1) B2 5RO LB LA AR5 L B ME 5 E AT IR S2OKF o

BAREIE

R-ZZE—NE+-_F=+—H AEBRKED
¥ BMELAREZEITHNBRBEEREAENA
15,200,000 t(ZZE—+HF+_A=+—8 :
44,800,000 7T) ©

Hi&EE
EA:i NWE=ZA-+=0 ZEBLYNREESH
NEARFTNEEWBAT  [BEXR])(AE
ﬁ)ﬁifﬁ DN E i ;J?&%E%ﬁ%’*ﬁﬂﬁ@ﬂ(rsmm
—HEEWE([BEERE])  Hith  EL XA
M@HzﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁM#ﬁ CHE R )IITE B B350
KERIRBEERE BBERM WHEE - ERLER
(=] REABARY?2398,153,588 (=)
(*H”‘EAZ’JZ 808,142,375 L) - S ABEHFWE
DEEHEE FEL KRG —ERRBERE - WA
Elﬁ_" SNERRE)IEB K - RIEJIITEBF
FEAREBM N IRERLE -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In addition, on 23 March 2019, Baofeng Photovoltaic as lessee
entered into a finance lease agreement (“Finance Lease
Agreement”) with Huaxia Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. CEE®
REE BB A A (the “Lessor”), pursuant to which the Lessor
has conditionally agreed to pay RMB1,700,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$1,990,632,319) of the consideration
under the Sale and Purchase Agreement to the Vendor, upon
which it will take ownership of the Equipment. The Lessor
will lease back the Equipment to Baofeng Photovoltaic for
a principal lease amount of RMB1,700,000,000 to be paid
by monthly instalments (plus interests) commencing after
a grace period which will expire by 28 January 2021, with
the last payment to be made by 28 January 2031. From the
lease commencement date up to the end of the grace period,
Baofeng Photovoltaic will only have to pay interests on the
principal lease amount but will not have to make repayments of
the principal lease amount. The indebtedness and obligations
of Baofeng Photovoltaic under the Finance Lease Agreement
will be guaranteed by the Company and secured by a charge
over the entire equity interest in Baofeng Photovoltaic, by
a charge over all receivables arising from the income of the
Yinchuan Project from time to time (other than the amount
of tariff adjustment receivables already assigned by Baofeng
Photovoltaic), and by a charge over all power generation
equipment and ancillary facilities used in the Yinchuan Project,
in favour of the Lessor.

As an ancillary arrangement to the proposed acquisition under
the Sale and Purchase Agreement, on 23 March 2019, Baofeng
Photovoltaic and the Vendor also entered into an assignment
agreement (the “Assignment Agreement”), pursuant to
which the Vendor has agreed that within one (1) month after
receiving the first payment of the consideration under the
Sale and Purchase Agreement from the Lessor, it will pay an
amount of RMB300,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$351,288,056) to Baofeng Photovoltaic in cash, and in
return Baofeng Photovoltaic has agreed to assign the tariff
adjustment receivables in the amount of RMB300,000,000 to
the Vendor effective on the date Baofeng Photovoltaic receives
the aforesaid cash payment.

For details of the Sale and Purchase Agreement, the Finance
Lease Agreement and the Assignment Agreement, please refer
to the announcement of the Company dated 25 March 2019.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Dang Yanbao (2Z¥), aged 46, is currently the
Chairman of the Company and the chairman of the nomination
committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”).
He is an experienced Chinese businessman and currently the
chairman of the board of directors of Ningxia Baofeng Energy
Group Co., Ltd.* (EEZLREBERMHABRRF). The
subsidiaries of Ningxia Baofeng Energy Group Co., Ltd.* (&
FYREBMABR AR include a number of companies
engaged in the coal and energy sector, such as Ningxia East
Step Environmental Protection Technology Co., Ltd. (BE R %
IRIREHLHBR A 7)), Ningxia Baofeng Energy Business Services
Ltd.* (EEEZEREBRBEAERADRF), Ningxia Baofeng
Group Tar Hydrogenation Limited (EE B 2% EEHMNITER
A ]), Ning Xia Fengda Fine Chemical Co., Ltd. (BB I&ZE 40
{E TEMR A F]) and Ningxia Baofeng Group Hongsi Coal Mining
Co., Ltd.* (FEELEBEAIMEXERRAF]). He graduated at
Ningxia University in July 1996 and was awarded an Executive
Master’s degree in Business Administration from Peking
University in July 2007. Mr. Dang held several public offices
in China, including committee member of the 12th Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, a representative
at the 11th People’s Congress of Ningxia Hui Autonomous
Region, and counselor for the People’s Government of Ningxia
Hui Autonomous Region. Mr. Dang was appointed as executive
Director of the Company with effect from 30 January 2016
and as the Chairman of the Board with effect from 19 February
2016.

Mr. Dang is the sole shareholder of Fung Teng which is
interested in 456,150,000 Shares (representing approximately
68.71% of the total issued share capital of the Company). He
is also a director of Fung Teng.

Mr. Dang is the uncle of Mr. Dang Zidong, an executive
Director and the chief executive officer of the Company.

Mr. Dang Zidong (BB R), aged 29, is currently the chief
executive officer of the Company. He is also a director of
subsidiaries of the Group namely Jing Pai Management
LTD.* (RIAEEHFR A 7)), Stand Nice Limited and Honest
Joy International Limited). He graduated from Beijing Geely
University At EFAE) in 2012 with a degree in industry
and business administration. He was the general manager
of Ningxia Huixin Microfinance Co., Ltd.* (BEEZ/NEE
FHBR A F]) before joining the Group. Mr. Dang Zidong was
previously responsible for sales in Ningxia Baofeng Energy
Group Co., Ltd.* (EEBEZEREERMNER A F]) and had
held the position of manager of marketing and planning
department in Huifengxiang Commercial Holdings Co., Ltd.*
CELXERmEER AR AA]). He was appointed as executive
Director and the chief executive officer of the Company with
effect from 19 February 2016.

* For identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Dang Zidong is the nephew of Mr. Dang Yanbao, the
Chairman and executive Director of the Company. Mr. Dang
Yanbao is the sole shareholder and a director of Fung Teng,
the controlling Shareholder, which is interested in 456,150,000
Shares (representing approximately 68.71% of the total issued
share capital of the Company).

Mr. Liu Yuanguan (Z|7t%E), aged 52, is currently the chief
executive officer of Ningxia Baofeng Energy Group Co., Ltd.*
(ZEBELZRREERKRMHAERAQAF). He is also a director of
subsidiaries of the Group namely Shenzhen Qianhai Baofeng
New Energy Development Co., Ltd* (RIIEEE LHEETR
ZERAMRAF]), and Ningxia Baofeng Photovoltaic Power
Generation Company Limited* (EEZEL W REEARELQ
B]). He is a veteran in the coal mining, energy and chemical
industry with more than 31 years of experience. Mr. Liu holds
the title of senior engineer and has a master’s degree from
Xi'an University of Science and Technology awarded in July
2005 and a bachelor degree from China University of Mining
and Technology (formerly known as China Institute of Mining
and Technology) awarded in July 1987. He was appointed as
executive Director of the Company with effect from 30 January
2016.

Mr. Gao Jianjun (§#E), aged 44, is currently the vice
president of Ningxia Baofeng Energy Group Co., Ltd.* (&
EELRREERMHABRAE]). Mr. Gao has over 23 years
of experience in the coal mining, crude oil and energy
industry. Mr. Gao graduated at Yan'an University in chemical
engineering technology in July 2013, and holds the title of
engineer. He was appointed as executive Director of the

Company with effect from 30 January 2016.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheng Hoo (¥§%), aged 57, obtained a Bachelor of Laws
degree from the University of Hong Kong in 1987. He was
admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1990 and in England
and Wales in 1995. Mr. Cheng has over 28 years’ experience
in the practice of law. He is a co-founder and senior partner
of Nixon Peabody CWL. He was appointed as non-executive
Director of the Company with effect from 19 February 2016.

Mr. Chung Kin Shun, Jimmy (8#3%#), aged 49, is an
investment banker with over 20 years of corporate finance
experience in Hong Kong and is responsible for handling
corporate finance transactions, including initial public offering
and mergers and acquisitions activities. He graduated from
the University of London with a Bachelor of Science degree in
August 1992. He was appointed as non-executive Director of
the Company with effect from 26 September 2016.

* For identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESREAREEBEEFE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony (H# %), aged 63, is
currently the chairman of the audit committee of the
Company (the “Audit Committee”), and a member of
each of the remuneration committee of the Company
(the “"Remuneration Committee”) and the Nomination
Committee. He has nearly 42 years’ experience in accounting,
auditing and consultancy practice. In 1977, He joined Price
Waterhouse, and then joined Klynveld Main Goerdeler and
Morgan Bank. He founded his own accounting and consulting
firm in 1985. His firm then merged with Hong Kong Grant
Thornton in 1990 and was responsible for the development
of the firm’s business in the PRC thereafter and stationed in
Beijing for seven years since then. From 2001 to 2003, he
worked in a local bank and participated in the bank’s mergers
and acquisitions business. Since 2003, he has been working
at his own accounting and consulting firm and provided
professional services for local and international companies.

Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony holds a doctorate degree in
Philosophy and a master degree in Business Administration,
both from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He was appointed
as independent non-executive Director of the Company with
effect from 19 February 2016.

Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony is currently an independent non-
executive director of Melco International Development Limited
(stock code: 200) and Ourgame International Holdings Limited
(stock code:6899), both of them are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
He was previously an independent non-executive director of
Summit Ascent Holdings Limited, which is listed on the Stock
Exchange, Entertainment Gaming Asia Inc., a company listed
on the NASDAQ Capital Market, and an independent director
of Alpha Peak Leisure Inc., a company listed on the TSX Venture
Exchange Inc.

China Baofeng (International) Limited HEEE (HKR)ERQT

BIFHITES

H#EEL 635 REARABEZZEG([ER
ZEEFRERARTFHEZES ([ FHEES))
NMREZEGKE - BEEG  FANMBAZTE
BTA2F c — Nt F - BIMATEESHAEE
Ffr + 21 1082 7 Klynveld Main GoerdelerlA & EEfR SR
T oBE-NAMNAFELTBCHETAMAMARD
A E2E-NANTF  ZATNABHESRATE
Bt ERBEREZTNREES  EREHEILR
ELEIA - GE_TT—FE_TT_FRH  WE—
MRAMBITREFRITEHBENES - B _TF=
Fe - B—HEBRASNGAMGZARARR - AE
3 DA B BB 9 1 SEHe (B 2R AR TS o

AHEELRAEEPXABEEBL R TRHEER
T2 - RABTESAMASEE  REKFLARS
A gEReBRTEEMESHMBEEE - K8
—E-RFZATNAERERERARBEILIFNT
5%

A#MEELR AT EEEEREAR QA (RMD AR
200) K B R BEBR AR B R & B (B0 5% : 6899)
(REABEXSGMERAT([BRR]) LW 2
BUYFBITES - BREEFNATERBERAT (R
B2 AT ET) » Entertainment Gaming Asia Inc. (—
MRMETERBEARTIS ET 2 AGF]) 2B IENTT
% £ N Alpha Peak Leisure Inc.(— R TSX Venture
Exchange Inc. F 2 RRNZBUESE -



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Xia Zuoquan (E{£%£), aged 55, is currently a member of
each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee. He studied computer science
in Beijing Institute of Iron and Steel Engineering* (1t & &
EB) (now known as University of Science & Technology of
Beijing* (AL mEHE K E)) from 1985 to 1987 and he graduated
from Guanghua School of Management of Peking University
with an MBA in 2007. Mr. Xia worked in the Hubei branch of
The People’s Insurance Company* (F B A R/RK 2 7)) and
joined Shenzhen BYD Battery Company Limited in 1997. Mr.
Xia held positions as an executive director and a vice president
of BYD Company Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1211) and the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(stock code: 002594). Mr. Xia is currently a non-executive
director of the BYD Company Limited and an independent
non-executive director of China YuHua Education Corporation
Limited (stock code: 6169), both companies are listed on the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Xia is also currently the chairman of
Shenzhen Zhengxuan Investment (Holdings) Co., Ltd.* (3l
TIEE R E B R A A]), the chairman of Annuo Youda Gene
Technology (Beijing) Co. Ltd.* (R#HEEEERF (UL AR
‘A7), director of Shenzhen UniFortune Supply Chain Service
Co., Ltd.* CRYITEE & A EHEHEEEFR A F), director
of Shenzhen UBTECH Robotics Corp.* (RIITENERIE A
fR A &) and director of Guangdong Beizhi Cepin Network
Technology Co., Ltd.* (EREEAEAEEHRHBERAQR]).
He was appointed as independent non-executive Director of
the Company with effect from 19 February 2016.

Mr. Guo Xuewen (ZB2 1), aged 53, is currently the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee and a member of each of the
Audit Committee and Nomination Committee. He is currently
the chief executive officer of Shenzhen MY Capital Asset
Management Co., Ltd.* (FIXKFEEREEEEBRAA).
He was a partner of Heidrick & Struggles, a consulting firm in
the United States of America, and previously founded Beijing
Viewhigh Technologies Co., Ltd.* (1t REFEERIE AR A R)
and served as its chairman. Mr. Guo graduated from Tsinghua
University and holds a Master of Business Administration
degree from the University of Warwick in the United Kingdom
and a doctorate degree from the University of East Anglia
in the United Kingdom. He was appointed as independent
non-executive Director of the Company with effect from 19
February 2016.

* For identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESREAREEBEEFE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chan Sheung Chi (FRE ), aged 40, is the chief financial
officer of the Company. He joined the Group in January 2017
and is responsible for the financial management of the Group.
Mr. Chan has over 15 years of experience in the financial
industry. He obtained a Bachelor of Business Administration
(Accounting and Finance) Degree from the University of Hong
Kong. He is @ member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Jiao Yingchen (%% /R), aged 36, is currently the
company secretary of the Company. She is an associate
member of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators of London and the Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries. She holds a bachelor degree from the
University of lllinois Urbana-Champaign and a master degree
in Corporate Governance from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. Ms. Jiao has over 11 years of experience in company
secretary and related fields for listed companies. Ms. Jiao was
appointed as the company secretary of the Company with
effect from 4 October 2016.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company endeavors to maintain a high standard of
corporate governance for the enhancement of its Shareholders’
value and provide transparency, accountability and
independence. The Company has complied with the required
code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“Corporate Governance Code”) contained in Appendix 14
of the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2018,
except for the following:

Under code provision C.2.5 of the Corporate Governance
Code, an issuer should have an internal audit function. For
the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company engaged an
external accounting firm in the PRC to carry out internal audit
to a subsidiary of the Company involving in the Photovoltaic
Power Generation Business, nonetheless, the Company did not
have an internal audit function for the entire Group for the
year ended 31 December 2018. Taking into account the size
and complexity of the operations of the Group, the Company
considers that the existing organisation structure and close
supervision by the management can maintain sufficient risk
management and internal control of the Group. However, the
Board will review the need to set up an internal audit function
from time to time and may set up an internal audit team if the
need arises.

Save as disclosed above, the Board considers that the Company
had complied with the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code of the Listing Rules during the year ended 31
December 2018.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group adopted
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as
the code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions
in securities of the Company. Upon specific enquiry, each
Director confirms that during his tenure in the year ended 31
December 2018, he had fully complied with the required code
of conduct and there was no event of non-compliance.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the
Group, overseeing the Group’s strategic decisions and
monitoring the business and performance of the Group. The
Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for day-
to-day management and operation of the Group to the senior
management of the Group. The Chairman of the Board is Mr.
Dang Yanbao and the chief executive officer of the Company is
Mr. Dang Zidong, and they separately exercised the roles and
functions of the Chairman of the Board and the chief executive
officer during the year ended 31 December 2018.
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As at the date of this report, the Board currently comprises
nine directors, consisting of four executive Directors, two
non-executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors, who are set out as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Dang Yanbao (Chairman of the Board and chairman of the
Nomination Committee)

Mr. Dang Zidong (chief executive officer)

Mr. Liu Yuanguan

Mr. Gao Jianjun

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Cheng Hoo
Mr. Chung Kin Shun, Jimmy

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Xia Zuoquan (member of the Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee)

Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony (chairman of the Audit
Committee and member of the Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee)

Mr. Guo Xuewen (chairman of the Remuneration Committee
and member of the Audit Committee and Nomination
Committee)

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all
corporate communications issued by the Company from time
to time pursuant to the Listing Rules. The independent non-
executive Directors are expressly identified in all corporate
communications pursuant to the Listing Rules.

The relationships among the members of the Board are
disclosed under “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 18 to 22 of this report.

The Company has received written annual confirmations of
independence from each independent non-executive Director
who served his term of office during the year ended 31
December 2018 pursuant to the requirements of the Listing
Rules.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for three years. The two non-
executive Directors have signed an appointment letter with
the Company for two years and three years, respectively.
Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed
an appointment letter with the Company for two years. All
the Directors and the Company are required to give three
months’ notice in writing to the other party for termination
of the service agreement/appointment letter. All the Directors
are appointed for a specific term and subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Board meeting, Committee meeting and Annual General
Meeting/Extraordinary General Meeting in 2018

The Board has held Board meetings at approximately quarterly
intervals with participation by a majority of Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, 9 Board meetings,
three Audit Committee meetings, one Remuneration
Committee meeting and one Nomination Committee meeting
were held. One extraordinary general meeting ("EGM") was
held during the year ended 31 December 2018. The attendance
record of each Director at the Board meeting(s), committee
meeting(s) and annual general meeting(s) during the financial
year are set out below:

AGM

Name of Directors RR@FAg
Executive Directors ifTE%
Mr. Dang Yanbao (Chairman of the Board and ~ EEB %% (EESTRER

chairman of the Nomination Committee) BEZEETE) N
Mr. Dang Zidong (chief executive officer) ERRLE(THER) N
Mr. Liu Yuanguan HnEts [
Mr. Gao Jianjun BEELE i
Non-executive Directors #oES
Mr. Cheng Hoo ¥5ik "
Mr. Chung Kin Shun, Jimmy BRRELE 4
Independent Non-executive Directors BUANIEE
Mr. Xia Zuoguan Btk U
Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony (chairman of mi#EEt

the Audit Committee) (BLZEE1E) "
Mr. Guo Xuewen (chairman of the PEEE

Remuneration Committee) (FHZ551F) 0
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R/ EERY
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Committee

REZES
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Board Audit
EGM meeting  Committee
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0n 8/9 - - [l
N 919 - - -
N 9/9 - - -
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During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board had,
at all times, met the requirements of the Listing Rules of
having at least three independent non-executive Directors
(representing at least one-third of the Board) with one
independent non-executive Director, being Dr. Tyen Kan Hee,
Anthony, possessing appropriate professional qualifications
and accounting and related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmations of
independence from each independent non-executive Director
in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

Practice and Conduct of Meetings

Notices of regular Board meetings have been given to all
Directors at least 14 days before the date of a meeting and
reasonable notices have been given for other Board and
committee meetings.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and
reliable information are sent to all Directors at least three days
before each Board meeting or Audit Committee meeting to
keep the Directors apprised of the latest developments and
financial position of the Company and to enable them to make
informed decisions. All Directors are given an opportunity to
include matters in the agenda for regular Board meetings. The
Board and each Director also have separate and independent
access to the senior management whenever necessary. With
the support of the senior management, the Chairman is
responsible for ensuring that the Directors receive adequate,
complete and reliable information in a timely manner and
appropriate briefing on issues arising at Board meetings.

Minutes of all Board meetings recording sufficient details
of matters considered and decisions reached are duly kept
by the company secretary and opened for inspection at any
reasonable time on reasonable notice by the Directors.

The Company’s articles of association contains provisions
requiring Directors to abstain from voting and not to be
counted in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions
in which such Directors or any of their associates have a
material interest.

The Chairman has held a meeting with all non-executive

Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
without the presence of executive Directors.
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Directors’ continuous training and professional
development

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance
Code, all Directors should participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. Up to the date
of this report, all the Directors have participated in continuous
professional development by attending training courses or
reading relevant materials on the topics related to corporate
governance and regulations.

The Company has arranged a Directors’ training to all Directors
to provide updates on the Listing Rules, which was held on 28
June 2018 and all Directors had participated in such Directors
training.

The individual training record of each Director for the year
ended 31 December 2018 is summarised below:

Name of Directors

Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Dang Yanbao EEBELE
Mr. Dang Zidong EERESE
Mr. Liu Yuanguan BlTERE
Mr. Gao Jianjun mEESRE
Non-executive Directors F#ITEE
Mr. Cheng Hoo Bz A
Mr. Chung Kin Shun, Jimmy BRI E
Independent Non-executive Directors BIIFNTEE
Mr. Xia Zuoquan BEE2EE
Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony H#=ELT
Mr. Guo Xuewen HBEXFE
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Attended seminar(s)/
read relevant materials
in relation to

the business or
directors’ duties

(Yes/No)

SMMHE FEEER
REEREFEN
HEME

(B /&)

YesH
YesH
YesH
YesH

YesH
YesH

YesH
YesH
YesH
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. The terms of reference of the above committees are
posted on the Company’s website.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 21 June 2012 with
written terms of reference which have been updated from
time to time to align with the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code and the Listing Rules. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee are to review and supervise
the financial reporting process, internal control and risk
management system of the Group. During the year ended 31
December 2018, the Company engaged an external accounting
firm in the PRC to carry out internal audit to a subsidiary of
the Company involving in the Photovoltaic Power Generation
Business and it involves independent reviews of the adequacy
and effectiveness of its risk management and internal control
systems. On the other hand, the risk management and internal
controls are also self-assessed by the management and
reviewed by the Board on an on-going basis. The professional
accounting firm engaged by the Group will then report to the
Audit Committee in a regular interval.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, members of the
Audit Committee were Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony, Mr. Xia
Zuoquan and Mr. Guo Xuewen, all being independent non-
executive Directors, with Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony being the
chairman of the Audit Committee. In 2018, three meetings
were held by the Audit Committee, one of which was with the
attendance of the external auditor of the Company. Among
other matters, the Audit Committee reviewed the interim
and annual reports as well as results announcements before
submission to the Board, focusing on the compliance with
accounting standards, the Listing Rules and legal requirements;
the Audit Committee also reviewed the Company’s financial
controls, internal controls and risk management systems and
made recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment of
the Company’s external auditor. The consolidated statement of
financial position, consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and the related notes thereto for
the year ended 31 December 2018 have been reviewed by the
Audit Committee.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 21 June 2012
and has adopted written terms of reference in compliance with
code provision B.1.2 of the Corporate Governance Code as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules for the year ended
31 December 2018. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee include the evaluation of the performance,
approving the terms of the service contracts of the Directors
and the making of recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration package of the Directors and senior management.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, members of
the Remuneration Committee were Mr. Guo Xuewen, Mr.
Xia Zuoquan and Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony, all being
independent non-executive Directors, with Mr. Guo Xuewen
being the chairman of the Remuneration Committee. In 2018,
the Remuneration Committee held one meeting, and reviewed
and made recommendations to the Board on the Company's
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration, a significant portion of which will be linked to
corporate and individual performance, among other matters.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 21 June 2012
and has adopted written terms of reference in compliance with
code provision A.5.2 of the Corporate Governance Code for
the year ended 31 December 2017.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are to
review the composition of the Board, including its structure, size
and diversity at least annually to ensure that it has a balance of
expertise, skills and experience that fits the business model and
specific needs of the Group. It is also responsible for identifying,
considering and recommending to the Board eligible persons
with suitable background in becoming members of the Board,
monitoring the succession planning of Directors and assessing
the independence of independent non-executive Directors. The
Nomination Committee will also give consideration to the Board
diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) when identifying
suitably qualified candidates in becoming members of the Board,
summary of which are set out as follows:

(@) the Board recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board to enhance quality of its performance;

(b) with a view of achieving a sustainable and balanced
development that fits the business model and specific
needs of the Company, the Company sees increasing
diversity at the Board level as an essential element in
supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and
its sustainable development. In designing the Board’s
composition, Board diversity has been considered from a
number of aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, experience
(professional or otherwise), skills, knowledge and length
of services; and
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(c) the ultimate appointment decision will be based on
merit and contribution that the selected candidates
will bring to the Board without focusing on only single
diversity aspect.

Given that the Group would like to further develop the
Photovoltaic Power Generation Business, the Company would
put more weight on the relevant experience and professional
experience in selecting candidates for executive Directors.

The Board will review the Board Diversity Policy annually.
During the year ended 31 December 2018, as our Board
considered its current size being optimal, therefore the Board
has not yet set any objectives for further implementing the
Board Diversity Policy.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, members of the
Nomination Committee were Mr. Dang Yanbao, Mr. Xia
Zuoquan, Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony and Mr. Guo Xuewen,
a majority being independent non-executive Directors, with
the Chairman of the Board as the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

In 2018, the Nomination Committee held one meeting,
taken into consideration the Board Diversity Policy, reviewed
the structure, size and composition of the Board, made
recommendations to the Board on the re-election of Directors
and assessed the independence of each of the independent
non-executive Directors.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in
code provision D.3.1 of the Corporate Governance Code of the
Listing Rules.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, continuous professional development of
Directors, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements and the Listing
Rules, and the Company’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and disclosure in this corporate governance
report.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company endeavors to maintain an on-going dialogue
with its Shareholders, in particular, through annual general
meetings or other general meetings to communicate with the
Shareholders and encourage their participation.

The Company will continue to maintain an open and effective
investor communication policy and to update investors on
relevant information on the Group’s business in a timely
manner, subject to relevant regulatory requirements.
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GENERAL MEETINGS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The annual general meeting of the Company will be held on
Friday, 24 May 2019.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard the interests and rights of the Shareholders, a
separate resolution is proposed for each substantially separate
issue at the Shareholders’ meeting. Save as provided under the
Listing Rules, resolutions put to vote at the general meetings of
the Company (other than purely administrative and procedural
matters) are taken by poll and poll results are posted on the
respective websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange
after the Shareholders’ meetings.

Convening an extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to article 58 of the articles of association of the
Company, EGM of the Company shall be convened on the
requisition of any one or more Shareholders holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company, and such Shareholders shall
at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the company secretary of the Company, to require an EGM
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty one days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s), as a result of the
failure of the Board, shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.

Putting enquiries to the Board

To ensure effective communication between the Board and
the Shareholders, the Company has adopted a Shareholders’
communication policy (the “Policy”). Under the Policy,
the Company’s information shall be communicated to the
Shareholders mainly through its general meetings, including
annual general meetings, the Company’s financial reports
(interim and annual reports), and its corporate communications
and other corporate publications on the Company’s website
and the Stock Exchange’s website. The Shareholders may at
any time make a request for the Company’s information to
the extent that such information is publicly available. Any such
questions shall be first directed to the company secretary of
the Company at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong at Suites 1301-1304, 13/F, Two Pacific Place, 88
Queensway, Admiralty, Hong Kong.
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Putting forward proposals at Shareholders’ meetings
The number of Shareholders necessary for putting forward a
proposal at a Shareholders’ meeting of the Company shall be
any number of Shareholders representing not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings at the date of the request.

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy in which the
declaration of future dividends will depend on, among others,
the Group’s earnings, the business environment in which the
Group conducts its business, the business strategies of the
Group, the capital needs of the Group in the future and the
tax implication of the dividend to our Group. The potential
investors should note that dividend payments should not be
regarded as an indication of future dividend policy. After
considering the factors set out above, the Board has resolved
not to recommend any final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2018.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year ended 31 December 2018, Ms. Jiao Yingchen
was the company secretary of the Company. Ms. Jiao is an
employee of the Company and has day-to-day knowledge
of the Company’s affairs. As the company secretary, Ms.
Jiao supports the Board by ensuring Board procedures and
all applicable law, rules and regulations are followed. She is
responsible for advising the Board on governance matters
and facilitates induction and professional development of
the Directors. The selection, appointment or dismissal of the
company secretary of the Company is subject to the Board’s
approval in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company. Whilst the company secretary of the Company
reports to the chief executive on the Group’s company
secretarial and corporate governance matters, all Directors
have access to the advice and services of the company secretary
of the Company. Ms. Jiao Yingchen confirmed that she has
taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the year in compliance with the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE
Appropriate insurance covers on Directors’ and officers’
liabilities have been in force to protect the Directors and
officers of the Group from their risk exposure arising from the
business of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
IN RESPECT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of interim and annual reports,
other inside information announcements and other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other statutory
requirements.

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2018. The Directors are responsible
for overseeing the preparation of financial statements of the
Company with a view to ensure that such financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company.
The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern,
therefore the Directors continue to adopt the going concern
approach in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

The auditor of the Company acknowledges their reporting
responsibilities in the independent auditor’s report on the
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2018.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Company has engaged its auditor, Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, to prepare the statutory audit of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements during the year ended 31
December 2018. The remuneration paid/payable to the auditor
of the Group is set out as follows:

Services rendered Fir i it PR 7%
Statutory audit services EEER R
Non-statutory audit services IEEETIR

The non-statutory audit services are mainly related to review of
interim consolidated financial statements and preparation of
Environmental, Social and Governance Report.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of
transparency is the key to enhancing investor relations.
It is committed to a policy of open and timely disclosure
of corporate information to the Shareholders and the
public. The Company updates its Shareholders on its latest
business developments and financial performance through
its interim and annual reports. The corporate website of the
Company (www.baofengintl.com) has provided an effective
communication platform to its Shareholders and the public.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there had been no
significant change in the Company’s constitutional documents.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
but not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss.
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During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board
and the Audit Committee conducted selective reviews of
the effectiveness of the systems of risk management and
internal control of the Group over financial, operational and
compliance controls. The Board and the Audit Committee
were not aware of any areas of concern that would have a
material impact on the Group’s financial position or results
of operations and considered the risk management and
internal control systems to be generally effective and adequate
including the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programs and budget of the accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company
engaged an external accounting firm in the PRC to carry out
internal audit to a subsidiary of the Company involving in
the Photovoltaic Power Generation Business and it involves
independent reviews of the adequacy and effectiveness of its
risk management and internal control systems. Nonetheless,
the Company did not have an internal audit function for the
entire Group for the year ended 31 December 2018. Taking
into account the size and complexity of the operations of the
Group, the Company considers that the existing organisation
structure and close supervision by the management can
maintain sufficient risk management and internal control of
the Group. However, the Board will review the need to set up
an internal audit function from time to time and may set up an
internal audit team if the need arises.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The fundamental strategy of risk management is to know the
risks associated with the Group and to perceive the change
of those risks from time to time. The major risks of the Group
include but are not limited to:

Business risk

In relation to the Lighting Products Business, market
competition was keen in the principal market of the lighting
products of the Group and the Group might not be able
to maintain its popularity among its customers. For the
Photovoltaic Power Generation Business, the industry is heavily
regulated by the PRC government and the timing of settling
tariff adjustment would have an impact on the operations of
the Group.

In view of the above challenges, the Board has continuously
had an efficient communications system to mitigate the risks,
and would adjust our strategy accordingly. Solutions in dealing
with risks in relation to the businesses of the Group include
improving the quality of our products, increasing the efficiency
of our business, and establishing effective communication
channels with relevant regulatory authorities.
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Financial risk

The risks associated with the Group’s financial instruments
include foreign exchange risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity
risk and interest rate risk.

A significant part of the revenue of the Group is denominated
in RMB while transactions are invoiced in US dollars and bank
loans are in HK dollars, and accordingly the Group is exposed
to foreign exchange risk. However, it will continue to closely
monitor the risks and take measures to lower the risks if
necessary.

In relation to the Lighting Products Business, the Company
normally gives its customers a credit period of 30-90 days.
Based on past experience, the trade receivables not provided
for can normally be recovered and the Group has strict
control over its trade receivables. For the Photovoltaic Power
Generation Business, the Ningxia branch of the State Grid
Company was the Group’s only customer for the year ended
31 December 2018. The trade receivables included charges
for electricity supply and tariff adjustment. The charges for
electricity supply would usually be received in the following
month, while the collection of tariff adjustment receivables
is expected in the normal operation cycle, which may be
more than one year. The Group’s operation solar power plant
has qualified for registration in the Reusable Energy Tariff
Subsidy Catalogue (A4 REREMEHIINE S MBI B £2) (the
“Catalogue”), and has met all the relevant requirements and
conditions for the registration in the Catalogue. The Directors
are confident that the Group’s operation solar power plant
can be registered in the Catalogue in due course and the
tariff adjustment receivables are fully recoverable upon the
allocation of funds from the PRC government. The Company
will continue to closely monitor the changes of relevant
regulations, maintain an effective communication channel with
relevant regulatory authorities and take appropriate measures
to mitigate any risks which may arise in this regard.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

Internal control environment

The Group has in place an integrated framework of internal
controls which is consistent with the Committee of Sponsoring
Organisations of the Treadway Commission’s framework.
Under the framework, the management is primarily responsible
for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal
controls while the Board and the Audit Committee oversee the
actions of the management and monitor the effectiveness of
the controls that have been put in place. The framework and
activities taken are illustrated below:
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Framework and activities taken
Control Environment

Management takes a hands-on approach and is fully
committed to set the control environment ensuring that
individuals are control conscious

The Group has set up the relevant management team
to ensure regulations are complied with and internal
controls are carried out properly

Management closely monitors the organisation
structure and the responsibilities of individuals granting
appropriate authorities for them to handle assigned
tasks

Performance evaluation procedures are available to
ensure individuals are competent

Risk Assessment

Management has established a clear strategic direction
and business objectives

Formal risk assessment has been conducted to identify
and analyse key risks associated with achieving the
Group’s objectives which form the basis for determining
key control activities

Control Activities

Policies/procedures on key control activities are
established to ensure management directives are carried
out

Range of activities including approvals, authorisation,
verifications, recommendations, performance reviews,
asset security and segregation of duties are identified
and implemented

Information and Communication

Pertinent information is identified, captured, processed
and reported

Access to internal and external general information is
available

Management maintains an open-door policy to allow
communication, taking place both horizontally and
vertically though the organisation

Internal Control System

In respect of the internal control system, procedures have been
designed for safeguarding assets against unauthorised use or
disposition, ensuring the maintenance of proper accounting
records for the provision of reliable financial information for
internal use or for publication, and ensuring compliance of
applicable laws, rules and regulations.
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The following chart illustrates the internal control system and
risk management procedures adopted by the Group during the

Dessap

year ended 31 December 2018:
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RISK MANAGEMENT TEAM
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e Establish strategic objectives

e Overall risk management

e Monitor the nature of the Group’s major risks

e Monitor the risk management framework

e Review key risks and mitigation strategies,
and ensure the effectiveness of risk
management

e Ensure that the Group has established and
maintained a reasonable and effective risk
management framework

e Oversee the implementation of risk
management

e Assess the risks assumed by the Board to
approve the Group’s implementation of the
strategic objectives
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The risk management team is composed of
the relevant functional departments of the
Company

Responsible for the specific work of all
stages of the overall risk management of the
Company

Develop guidelines for risk management
Prepare annual risk assessment

Conduct self-examination and inspection of
the Company’s risk management on a regular
basis
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Fully responsible for the safety of personnel and equipment at the photovoltaic power plant,
and ensure safe and economic operations

Participate in all kinds of inspection and make rectification recommendations

Responsible for equipment inspection and maintenance, and give notice for examining and
processing equipment defects in a timely manner

Responsible for all acceptances after maintenance and make acceptance and rectification
recommendations

Review the receipt of items, purchase and reimbursement accounts at the power plant, and
oversee the economic accounts of the inspection departments

Provide feedback to the risk management team of major deficiencies and substantive
vulnerabilities in a timely manner
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Responsible for collection of legal risk, security risk, personnel change risk, procurement cost
risk, information system risk and conduct initial risk identification and evaluation
Responsible for the Company’s confidential management

Prepare the Company’s annual administrative expenses budget and control the
administrative expenditures

Make response proposals and report to the risk management team of the Company
Responsible for specific risk management of the department
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Organise and implement risk management assessments of the Company

Organise and oversee the implementation of control system, identify, collect and analyse
control deficiencies, make and implement recommendations for improvement

Provide feedback to the risk team of major deficiencies and substantive vulnerabilities in a
timely manner in order to monitor the operation of the internal control system

Review the Company’s annual risk assessment report, and submit to the Board for approval
Organise internal control testing, implement internal control improvement
recommendations, investigate and deal with incidents that result in significant loss or
adverse effect because of control failure
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Identify, evaluate and assess risks to achieve strategic objectives

Implement risk management procedures and internal control measures in operating and
functional areas

Conduct risk management activities during daily operations and report

Ensure that the effectiveness of the risk management framework within the scope of its own
responsibilities is reviewed at least annually and seek confirmation from the Audit Committee

BR - TR ERB AR A 2

TR B A RS 91T LR B IR AR I P B B A

A %R T RR R B R E

RIRE L SR — oA 5 BE BERZ BREBEBOREK - LAEEE B SR AHER

Annual Report 2018 —Z— \FF#



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

A\ vy " \\
EERERRE

General

The system is established for the Group’s risk management,
to develop a standardised and effective risk control system,
improve risk management and prevention, ensure the healthy
and sound operation of the Company and enhance the
management of risks with reference to the actual situation of
the Company.

Comprehensive risk management is a process and method
which provides reasonable assurance for achieving the overall
objective of risk management, where the Company implements
basic procedures of risk management in every procedure of
corporate management and during the course of operation
to nurture a sound risk management culture and develop
a sound comprehensive risk management system. The goal
of comprehensive risk management is to ensure that the
Company’s management activities are carried out healthily,
to avoid and reduce the possible losses caused by risks and to
guarantee the achievement of the strategic objectives, which
mainly include:

o to control risks in line with overall objectives and within
acceptable levels;

. to achieve timely, reliable and complete communication
of the Company’s internal and external information;

o to ensure the Company’s business activities comply with
the provisions of national laws and regulations;

J to improve the effectiveness and efficiency of the
Company’s operations and management; and

o to ensure the Company’s establishment of management
solutions for significant risks to enable it not to suffer
great losses due to catastrophic risk or human error.

Risk Management Process:

Collect initial risk management information

Each of the functional departments extensively and
continuously collects internal and external initial information
related to the Company’s risks and risk management, including
historical data and future forecasts. The initial information
collected shall be screened, refined, compared, classified and
assembled to form the Company’s initial risk management
information for risk assessment.

China Baofeng (International) Limited HEEE (HKR)ERQT

el
RASENERER  ZURE - ARHERES R
% ReRRERENHE N REARARE 1B
RET REAREREKY  HAARTNERE
0 BIEARHE

EHEREE - EHARREBERREENSERE
ML BT RITAREENERNRE  BERTH
RigEE( - B RETEEAREERE WA
ERAREENAEESRREHAERBABEMS
% 2HRAREENBREEARNAR TGS EE
T - RBADR D EBR T REER M IRK - (RAE B B
RNER T2

. 157 [, B 2 1) 7 £ 4 B8 B AZ AR E FE D AT A 2 R
FER

. BIRARR ARG BB B R - AT5E

= .
STE

. RARREETDEREEFOEREROR

JE

. WERRBREERN NG MAE + Rk

all

. FERA DR RS FIRE AR RO KR
BHR  FEARLEERBIABKRM
EXEREBRX -

R EERR

Yo gk JEl B B IR W1 4R 158

FRRBERIPIEZ - FRE T ETHO IS BB L ] AR A0
REREBHAE - INBIBER - BEELBEN
RIEFER - HUENVIA(E BIEET VBN ER
R~ - 28R A ERARBIRREERE
B AEETRERFE



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Risk assessment

Risk assessment includes three steps: risk identification, risk
analysis and risk evaluation. Risk assessment may be carried
out by the risk management team in conjunction with other
functional departments and, if necessary, with a qualified,
reputable and professional risk management intermediary.
Risk identification refers to identifying risks in the Company’s
important business activities and its major business processes.
Risk analysis is a clear definition of the identified risks and
their characteristics, relating to analysing and describing
the likelihood and conditions of the risks that occur. Risk
evaluation is to assess the impact of the risks on the Company’s
achievement of objectives and the value of those risks.

Develop and implement risk management strategies

The risk management team formulates the Company’s
significant risk management strategies based on risk graphs
and the Company’s development strategy by determining the
risk appetite, risk tolerance and risk management effectiveness
criteria according to the different business characteristics,
selecting such appropriate risk management tools such as
risk exposure, risk aversion, risk transfer, risk conversion, risk
hedging, risk compensation and risk control, clarifying the
minimum and maximum risk that the Company is exposed
to, and accordingly identifying the Company’s risk warning
line and the corresponding risk mitigation measures. The
effectiveness and reasonableness of the established significant
risk management strategies are reviewed annually to formulate
adjustment recommendations for the Company’s significant
risk management strategies of the year.

Propose and implement risk management solutions

The Group has also established an internal control
accountability system, which expressly stipulates the
responsibilities of the relevant functional departments and
project companies, posts and personnel based on the principle
of unification of rights, obligations and responsibilities.

Control and improvement of risk management supervision

All departments shall regularly carry out self-examination and
inspection on the risk management of the Company, and
when defects are identified, rectify them in a timely manner.
Inspection and examination reports shall be submitted to the
Company’s risk management team in a timely manner for its
review and subsequently submitted to the Audit Committee.
The Company’s risk management functional departments
and audit departments should conduct an annual inspection
and examination of the implementation and effectiveness
of the risk management work of all functional departments
and project companies, and issue special reports on risk
management assessment and recommendations.

The Company regulates the handling and dissemination of
inside information in compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations and implements various procedures to ensure
inside information remains confidential until the disclosure
of such information is appropriately approved, and the
dissemination of such information is efficiently and consistently
made.
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B HEREAKE

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report for the
year ended 31 December 2018 (the “Reporting Period”
or "2018 Financial Year"”) is prepared by China Baofeng
(International) Limited and its subsidiaries (hereinafter referred
to as the “Group” or “we”) under the requirements in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide as set
out in Appendix 27 (the "ESG Guide") of the Listing Rules.

The Board has the overall responsibility for the Company’s
environmental, social and governance (ESG) strategy and
reporting. Our management is responsible for monitoring
and managing ESG-related risks and the effectiveness of the
ESG management system. The scope of policies, compliance,
disclosure of data and relevant measures in this report covers
the Group’s photovoltaic plant and office in Hong Kong.

The management personnel leading our various business
activities, in conjunction with our respective employees and
other key stakeholders have all involved in the materiality
assessment, the identification of the following ESG aspects and
their incorporation into this report.

Environmental, Social and
Governance Aspects

Major Environmental, Social and
Governance Matters

A. Environmental

AT. Emissions  Emissions and Waste
e Carbon Emissions
A2. Use of Resources e Use of Energy and Water
Consumption
A3. The Environment and e The Environmental Management

Natural Resources System

¢ Continuing Compliance Control

B. Social

B1. Employment e Employment Practices and Equal
Opportunity

B2. Health and Safety ¢ Healthy and Safe Working

Environment
B3. Development and Training ¢ Development and Training for

Employees

B4. Labour Standards e Preventing Child Labour and Forced
Labour

B5. Supply Chain Management e Sustainable Supply Chain
Management

B6. Product Responsibility Stable Power Supply
Customer Service
Anti-corruption
Engagement in Supporting

Community

B7. Anti-corruption
B8. Community Investment

China Baofeng (International) Limited HEEE (HKR)ERQT

RIEETRAME -+ ECGRE - @ RE ARSI
SI)(TESGHEEI DM ER  FEEL(BER)ARA
AINEMEAR([AEE]  [EMDE TEE=
Z-N\F+t-_A=t+—HLFE(REHH] - [=
E-N\FHRFE DOCGRE LG RERRE) -

ARRBEFEEBRATARAIRE - H& MNEIARER
MR- - ERERERENERRE HERERNE
M EREERR - ANIRE  HEREREERRN
PR e AFREEBR - ARBEN - REZ BB LA
MRS RNEEYBRASEN S REERNREE

BAE -

8GR R T S EEHEROERABEHAMN
BEIRRGIBRGE  HAREHESREBIEN
ERBBIATERES L@ REARE - LAAK
s -

B HEREREE IEBRSE HERERZE
A. B
A1 B o HMMREEY

o TR
A2. BR{EH o RERFRLIEKE
A3 IRERRAER o RIFETHEZR

s HEAHREE

B. #g
B1. &1 o ERFHRMESZHS
B2. BFREZE o BENMEZETIERE
B3. BE R o BTEEME
B4. ST 2R o MIEEIMABHLT
BS. HIEHE R o HRHEHEHEERE
B6. EMETT o BEENHE

o RPRK
B7. R&)5 e RES
BS. HEHRE o ZHTEME



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - #HERERRE

Details of each ESG aspect are as follows.

(A) ENVIRONMENTAL

A1.

Emissions

The Group pays great attention to environmental
protection by committing to promoting the
development of green energy in society, so as
to minimise all emissions and wastes. We are
confident that our philosophy is conducive to
maintaining the sustainability of the community,
thus facilitating its stable and peaceful
development. For this purpose, we provide
the society with green and clean energy in the
power generation method of low pollution and
low emission by developing and promoting
photovoltaic electricity to the community, in
order to reduce the emission of greenhouse
gases, including carbon dioxide. In the process
of generating photovoltaic electricity, solar
power is converted into electricity by using
semiconducting materials that exhibit the
photovoltaic effect while generating almost zero
carbon dioxide or other pollutants and without
requiring any cooling water.

Emissions and Waste

Our photovoltaic plant commenced operation
successfully in the third quarter of 2016.
Photovoltaic power generation is the process
of converting solar radiation into electricity by
exhibition of the photovoltaic effect with no
exhaust gas, sewage water or other hazardous
pollutants being produced. During the 2018
Financial Year, the Group generated a small
amount of non-hazardous waste, mainly
attributed to the consumption of approximately
268.75 kg in aggregate of paper by the offices
of its power plants and its Hong Kong office.
In response to environmental protection, we
advocate the philosophy of a paperless office
by utilising an e-platform and liaising through
e-communication with our employees and clients
on a best effort basis in order to reduce paper
consumption.
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Carbon Emissions

Our carbon emission mainly arises from power
consumption. During the Reporting Period, the
consumption of purchased power was associated
with our business operations, which emitted
22,821 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent
(CO,e). We have implemented various energy
conservation measures to reduce carbon
emission. For the details regarding the data of
power consumption and our energy conservation
measures, please refer to the paragraph headed
“A2. Use of Resources” below.

Remark:  The carbon emission was calculated with
reference to Greenhouse Gas Protocol
published by World Business Council
for Sustainable Development (WBCSD)
and World Resources Institute (WRI), the
Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPls
published by HKEX and Baseline Emission
Factors for Regional Power Grids in China
(Bl 15 B8 A E 4R HE I E F) published
by the Department of Climate Change of
PRC’s National Development and Reform
Commission.

During the Reporting Period, we have not
detected any material breach of relevant laws
and regulations relating to environmental
protection, including the Environmental
Protection Law of the PRC ({FRZE A R L MEIREE
IRFEE)), the Law of the PRC on the Prevention
and Control of Water Pollution ({FF#E A RN
Bl7K35 2 07547%)), the Law of the PRC on the
Prevention and Control of Air Pollution ({1 A
RAMB KRR S EGA%)) and the Law of the
PRC on Prevention and Treatment of Solid Waste
Pollution (PR ZE A R FNE [E g2 B2 )5 IR IR
JEVED).
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A2.

Use of Resources

We are committed to technological innovation
and have devoted a lot of capital and
professional talents to drive the technological
development of photovoltaic electricity, seeking
to enhance the power generation efficiency
of our photovoltaic electricity system on a
continuous basis, including the enhancement of
conversion efficiency from light to electricity, the
increase of the light panel’s effective area for
receiving sunlight and the maximum power point
tracking technology. The Group implemented a
horizontal single axis tracking system to adopt a
tilted angle for photovoltaic power generation,
which maximises the angle for attracting sunlight
according to the degree of solar irradiance,
thereby effectively enhancing the conversion
efficiency and increasing the volume of power
generation.

Use of Energy and Water Consumption

During the Reporting Period, the energy
consumption disclosed was mainly attributed
to the utility electricity with a total of
35,704,404 kWh, representing 3.7754 kWh
energy consumed per square meter. Our water
consumption was not material as most of it
was used for basic office cleaning. During the
Reporting Period, the water consumption of
our power plants was 2,600 cubic meters,
representing 0.0003 cubic meter water
consumed per square meter. Since our water
supply facility is located in our leased office in
Hong Kong, its management fee is inclusive of
our water consumption volume and water utility
bills. Municipal water is our main consumption
source, and there is no difficulty in obtaining a
water source.
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Although our electricity and water consumption
is relatively low, the Group still strives to reduce
such consumption. We advocate the philosophy
of a green office and have formulated related
rules and regulations. By standardising water
and electricity consumption practices, as well as
incorporating energy conservation and emission
reduction into daily management, we reinforce
our electricity distribution on our lighting and
air conditioning system, thereby reducing
unnecessary resource wastes. In order to remove
dust and dirt on the surface of our solar modules,
and in turn to improve power generation, we
wipe and clean the solar modules on a regular
basis, thereby maximising the conversion
efficiency of solar irradiation. Employees are the
most important element of our green office,
therefore, we attach great importance on
enhancing the awareness among our employees
in saving resources, and emphasise that the
management shall take the lead and become a
model in integrating environmental protection
into the workplace, aiming to develop a green
workplace from the top down.

Given our business nature, no packing materials
are used during our daily operations.

The Environment and Natural Resources

The Environmental Management System

In accordance with the requirements of the
ISO 14001 standard for an environmental
management system, we have established an
environmental management system covering all
our offices and power plants. The system covers
the full-cycle operation including environmental
policies establishment, environmental risks
and factors identification, control procedures,
environmental impact assessment as well as
construction and operation of project approved.
We identify the major environmental factors to
assess their impacts, implement control measures
and plan accordingly.

Continuing Compliance Control

We also develop compliance management
procedure for all environmental risks, and
prescribe and continuously monitor the
standards for environmental factors. Relevant
personnel will pay regular attention to the
amendment of regulations and update the
Group's compliance plan and monitoring
standards in a timely manner.
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In addition, we have developed a photovoltaic
agriculture business, utilising the feature of zero
emission of solar photovoltaic power generation
to plant goji berries and alfalfas, which not
only is beneficial for power generation, but also
favourable for the crops’ growth, while at the
same time generating better economic and social
benefits.

SOCIAL

Employment

Employment Practices and Equal Opportunity
We are committed to the building of a
standardised, orderly, fair and effective
operation system of human resources in a bid to
make full use of its talents and their capabilities,
and actively carry out rich and colourful cultural
activities to build a harmonious culture and
atmosphere and to enhance the sense of
belonging of our staff.

We promote an equal opportunity principle and
have zero tolerance and no allowance on all
discrimination. We recruit talents based on their
educational backgrounds, experiences, skills,
potential and performance in interviews, rather
than other factors such as gender, marital status
or degree of disability. Each employee joins the
Group with equal treatment. The same salary
structure applies to all men and women, and
they are promoted based on several factors,
including their speciality, working performance
and experience.

We also strive to make sure that the level of our
employees’ income and benefits is competitive
in the market. We strictly comply with relevant
laws and regulations, such as the PRC Labour
Law, to offer pension insurance, medical
insurance, work injury insurance, maternity
insurance, unemployment insurance, provident
fund and employer’s liability insurance for
employees in the PRC. Pregnant employees
are entitled to maternity leave while male
employees are entitled to paternity leave. In
Hong Kong, we provide mandatory provident
fund benefits, labour insurance, annual leave,
paid sick leave, maternity leave, paternity leave
and other statutory welfares to our employees
in accordance with the laws and regulations
concerning labour issues in Hong Kong.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has not
detected any material breach of relevant laws
and regulations relating to human resources.
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B3.

Health and Safety

Healthy and Safe Working Environment

We conscientiously implement national
laws and regulations as well as standards
and specifications in relation to work safety
and occupational health, actively promote
the implementation of the OHSAS18000
standards for an occupational health and safety
management system and continuously improve
our systems and processes to ensure the health
and occupational safety of our employees. We
monitor occupational disease hazards every
year, reasonably evaluate the impacts that
works and environment have on employee’s
personal health, and reinforce the emergency
management and prevention measures for work
safety through a series of safety measures,
such as work safety committee meetings, safety
month activities, meetings before and after
shifts, work safety weekly meetings, safety
supervision, online safety meetings, regular and
irregular inspections, safety evaluation, hazard
identification and implementation of 25 anti-
accident measures. Employees in charge of works
with high risks must wear safety protection
while working and attend trainings on safety
and working skills on a regular basis, in order
to minimise the possibility of accidents at the
source.

During the Reporting Period, we have not
detected any breach of the laws and regulations
relating to health and safety in the workplace.

Development and Training

Development and Training for Employees

We actively assist our employees in their personal
development to enable them to discover their
value within the Group while contributing to our
growth and development. We maintain a well-
established training system, regularly set training
goals and provide employees with relevant
training to enhance their working knowledge
and skills. We have invited professional technical
staff from the design units and suppliers of our
equipment to provide designated training, while
at the same time arranged training on electronic,
mechanical and safety aspects to improve the
technical skills and overall environment of our
employees on a monthly basis. In addition,
employees are encouraged and assisted to
identify their personal ambitions and draw up a
career development plan with their immediate
SUpervisors.
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B5.

To this end, the Group continues to strengthen
its team of skilled personnel and has
implemented an appraisal system for technicians
to facilitate their growth. We also carry out in-
depth trainings for leaders, professionals, skilled
personnel and collective induction trainings for
newly-joined college graduates under the overall
requirements of “by classification, multilayer
and on demand”, while enhancing training
methods and adopting innovative training means
to improve training efficiency. Moreover, a skills
competition is also held on a regular basis to
show their talent and boost the cross-learning
atmosphere among our employees.

Labour Standards

Preventing Child and Forced Labour

We strictly comply with national laws and
regulations, including the Labour Law and the
Labour Contract Law in the PRC and laws and
regulations concerning labour issues in Hong
Kong, and lawfully enter into labour contract
with our employees. Employment of child and
forced labour is completely eradicated. All
employees are encouraged to report to the
Group at any time for any non-compliance
incidents such as employment of child and forced
labour during the course of our recruitment and
operations.

During the Reporting Period, we have not
detected any breach of the laws and regulations
relating to preventing child or forced labour.

Supply Chain Management

Sustainable Supply Chain Management

The Group is persistent in developing fair and
impartial working relationships with its suppliers.
The purchases of all major materials are subject
to an administrative regime that separates
purchase, delivery inspection and acceptance,
and supervision in a bid to eliminate corruption
at the source. Contracts and agreements
are performed in stringent compliance with
contractual requirements and all suppliers
are treated with respect in an equal manner.
Meanwhile, we also attach great importance
to the reflection of problems on suppliers
and will carry out a sustained review on their
performance in fulfilling the contracts. Any
related persons are encouraged to report any
abnormalities or provide any comments to our
purchasing management centre as soon as
practicable.
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While fulfilling our own social responsibility,
we also incorporate concepts and requirements
of social responsibility in the management of
our suppliers. A stringent and standardised
system for the selection and management
of suppliers has been formulated, in a bid to
safeguard a healthy and orderly marketplace.
For the environment, our suppliers are required
to obtain, maintain and regularly update all
environmental permits and licenses and comply
with all operational and other disclosure
requirements in respect of the environment.
For equipment upgrades and production
process enhancements, our suppliers are also
required to take steps to economise on the use
of natural resources, promote waste recovery
and recycling as well as properly manage
and duly deal with environmental hazards. In
addition, all our suppliers are required to adopt
proper measures to minimise safety risks in
the workplace, including the formulation of an
emergency plan and the provision of sufficient
personal protection items. Labour practices and
performance are two important considerations
in the selection of suppliers. We have zero
tolerance for suppliers’ environmental and labour
malpractices, and will surely avoid or cease
cooperation with such suppliers once it comes to
our attention.

Product Responsibility

Stable Power Supply

We are dedicated to the building of a stable
and reliable power generation system to
safeguard a safer, cleaner, more economical
and more sustainable electric power supply.
Therefore, we regard safe production as one
of the prerequisites for a stable power supply
and sustainable development for us, along with
the establishment of a sound system through
driving the development of a safety, health, and
environmental (SHE) management system on all
fronts and revising and complying with the SHE
Management Regulations.

To ensure a stable power supply, we have
formulated various facility management
regulations and set out plans for overhauls and
technological upgrades in a bid to maintain
facility management and secure a stable
operation of our power generating units, as well
as adopted specific investigation techniques
to enhance facility repair and maintenance,
eliminate any hazards in the power generating
units and enhance reliability in a bid to deal with
the challenges in the peak power consumption
periods during the summer and winter seasons.
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We have fulfilled relevant technical standards
and operational requirements of a grid system
in relation to the frequency, peak and voltage
modulation, to guarantee the safety and
reliability of the power we supply and the
operation of our grid system in an economical
and reliable manner.

Customer Service

We are pleased to communicate with our
customers to understand their requirements
and comments on our products. Our customer
services team strives to provide customers with
professional product consultation and after-sale
services, with multiple communication channels
available for customers to offer their comments.
In case of any customer dissatisfaction with our
products or services, we have set up measures
to deal with their comments and timely conduct
rectification in regard thereof, so as to gain
customer satisfaction with our products.

We have developed principles of confidentiality
in respect of the personal information of
our customers to focus on the protection of
their privacy. In no case will we disclose any
customer’s personal information to a third party
without the customer’s consent. All information
will be protected in a physically safe method or
by security settings in our computer system to
avoid theft.

During the Reporting Period, we have not
detected any breach of the laws and regulations
relating to the quality of our products and
services.
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Anti-corruption

Anti-corruption and Bribery

As a corporate citizen, the Group has not
only established internal codes of conduct for
its staff, but also developed various interior
mechanisms, with the aim to enhance the
awareness of preventing improper conduct. We
also offer processing methods in that regard
to secure the legality and compliance of our
operations. Our internal codes of conduct
mainly consist of “Commandment for Integrity
Culture (B{=ZX/bE)", “Code of Conduct
of the Manager and Staff (XK 8 T17 4
B))" and “Security Management Standard (%%
EIRIZXE)”, in which all our staff are required
to abide by. We also insist on maintaining a
high level of corporate governance. To secure
high transparency, the terms of reference of
the board committees have been uploaded to
the Group’s website for public information.
Moreover, in order to actively prevent and
combat corruption, we have established an anti-
corruption team which holds anti-corruption
meetings on a regular basis. We have also
conducted a corruption risk assessment once a
year and delivered the Group’s anti-corruption
policies and procedures through thematic
training and the publication of press releases. We
have made clear of the Group’s serious stance on
corrupt conducts, improved the staff’s vigilance,
alertness and processing capability towards such
conducts and regulated individual behaviour.

During the Reporting Period, we have not
detected any breach of the laws and regulations
relating to anti-corruption.
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Community Investment

Engagement in Supporting Community
Community development is closely related to our
operations. We would never achieve sustainable
development without our communities. Through
recruiting local manpower and employee
volunteer services, we have grown together
with the communities where our power plants
and offices locate. We cooperate with local
governments to actively join in poverty alleviation
through photovoltaic poverty alleviation. Our
solar power plants are mainly located in relatively
undeveloped areas in Northwestern China. By
constructing solar power plants in such areas,
local residents would be provided with clean
electricity. We prefer to recruit local employees
under the same requirements, thereby providing
a large number of job opportunities for the
local region. In addition, we encourage our staff
to participate in philanthropy and volunteer
activities to bring warmth to the disadvantaged
groups in the society. Beyond that, we are also
pleased to make donations to the communities
and charitable institutions in need to provide
assistance to people in need in the society.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEgREE

The Directors are pleased in presenting their annual report
and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 34 to
the consolidated financial statements. Save as discussed in
this report, there were no significant changes in the nature of
the Group's principal activities during the year. Discussion and
analysis as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622 of the laws of Hong Kong) are set out on pages 7
to 17 of this annual report. This discussion forms part of the
report of the Directors.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Company
are set out in the section headed “Risk Management” in the
Corporate Governance Report.

SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2018
are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on page 71 of this annual report.
The Board does not recommend a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR THE
2018 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting of the Company ("AGM") is to
be held on 24 May 2019. For the purpose of ascertaining
Shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM, the
details of the closure of register of member of the Company
and the latest time to lodge transfer documents with the
Company’s share registrar is set forth as follows:
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

SEGMENT INFORMATION
Details of segment reporting are set out in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the aggregate amount
of turnover attributed to the Group’s largest and the five
largest customers were approximately 59.8% and 91.1%
(2017: 55.9% and 89.4%) of the total value of the Group’s
turnover, respectively. The Group’s purchases from the largest
and the five largest suppliers accounted for approximately
44.4% and 78.1% (2017: 44.8% and 78.0%) of the total value
of the Group's purchases, respectively.

At no time during the year have the Directors, their close
associates or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had any interest in the major customers or suppliers of
the Group.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions set out in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements fall under the definition
of continuing connected transactions in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules and are fully exempted from annual review,
announcement and independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

In addition, the Company and Fung Teng, controlling
shareholder of the Company and a company wholly owned
by Mr. Dang Yanbao, Chairman and executive Director of the
Company entered into the Subscription which is a connected
transaction of the Company. For details, please refer to set out
in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis —
Placing of Shares under Specific Mandate” in this report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions of the Group and the
Company are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available
to the Shareholders by reason of their shareholding in the
Company.
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RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group during the year are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 76
of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the Company’s reserves, calculated
in accordance with the provisions of the Cayman Islands’
legislation, amounted to approximately HK$478,217,000
(2017: HK$253,601,000).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s shares during the year
ended 31 December 2018.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results of the Group for the past five
financial years is set out on page 156 of this annual report.
This summary does not form part of the consolidated financial
statements in this annual report.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACT

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company,
one-third of the Directors are subject to retirement at each
annual general meeting by rotation or, if their number is not
three or a multiple of three, then the nearest to but not less
than one-third shall retire from the office and be eligible for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for three years. The two non-
executive Directors have signed an appointment letter with
the Company for two years and three years, respectively.
Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed
an appointment letter with the Company for two years. All
the Directors and the Company are required to give three
months’ notice in writing to the other party for termination
of the service agreement/appointment letter. All the Directors
are appointed for a specific term and subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, Mr. Liu Yuanguan
and Mr. Gao Jianjun, both being the executive Directors,
entered into supplemental agreements to their respective
service agreements to waive their emolument from 30 January
2016 to 29 January 2019.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received written annual confirmations of
independence from each of Mr. Xia Zuoquan, Dr. Tyen Kan
Hee, Anthony and Mr. Guo Xuewen pursuant to the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2018.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES

Please refer to pages 18 to 22 of this annual report for the list
of Directors during the financial year ended 31 December 2018
and as at the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements and the interests of Mr. Dang Yanbao in the
Subscription set out in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis — Placing of Shares under Specific
Mandate”, no Director or an entity connected with a Director
had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to the
business of the Group to which the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries was a party subsisting during or at the end of the
year ended 31 December 2018.

COMPETING INTEREST

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Directors were
not aware of any business or interest of the Directors, the
controlling Shareholders and their respective close associates
(as defined under the Listing Rules) that competes or may
compete with the business of the Group and any other conflict
of interest, which any such person has or may have with the
Group.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as the Subscription set out in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis — Placing of Shares
under Specific Mandate”, there was no contract of significance
between the Company or any of its subsidiaries, and a
controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries as at 31
December 2018.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions in
the ordinary Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the
Company or shares, underlying shares or debentures of any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company that: (a)
was required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including the interests and short positions which the Directors
are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO);
(b) were in the register required to be kept pursuant to section
352 of the SFO; and (c) were notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules are set out as
follows:

Interests in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures
of the Company

Capacity and

nature of interest

B RESEME

Name of Director

EEHA

Mr. Dang Yanbao (Note 2)

BEE AL (E2) R EAR A B e an

Notes:

1. The letter “"L" denotes a long position in the interest in the
share capital of the Company. The letter “S” denotes a short
position in the interest in the share capital of the Company.

2. Mr. Dang Yanbao, the Chairman and an executive Director of
the Company, is the sole shareholder and a director of Fung
Teng and is therefore deemed to be interested in 456,150,000
Shares held by Fung Teng under the SFO.
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Interests in shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the associated corporations of the Company

EEEHRES

RAEATEBZENRS - HEROREFOER

Percentage of
the associated
corporation’s

issued
Name of share capital
associated Capacity and Number of GEEL
Name of Director corporation nature of interest shares ERITRE
EEgE B EE AR B RERME R&58 B WEZ L
Mr. Dang Yanbao (Note 1) Fung Teng Beneficial owner 1 100%
EEBLE (M) I % EnAA
Note: FizE -
1. As at 31 December 2018, Fung Teng held 456,150,000 Shares 1. RZE—-—NE+_A=+—H BEEAH

and Mr. Dang Yanbao is the sole shareholder and a director
of Fung Teng. As such, Mr. Dang Yanbao is deemed to be
interested in all the 456,150,000 Shares in which Fung Teng is
interested by virtue of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none
of the Directors or the chief executive of the Company
had any interest or short position in the Shares, underlying
Shares or debenture of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
(a) were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including the interests and short positions which the Directors
are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or (b) were recorded in the register required to be kept
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; or (c) were notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2018, so far as is known to the Directors
and chief executive of the Company, the persons/companies,
other than a Director or chief executive of the Company, who
had interests or short positions in the Shares and underlying
Shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded
in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO
are set out as follows:

Interests in the Shares and underlying Shares

Capacity and

Name of Shareholder nature of interest

BRREMR Bt REEME

Fung Teng (Note 2) Beneficial owner

e g (P 7E2) BEHBEAA

Notes:

1. The letter “L" denotes a long position in the interest in the

share capital of the Company. The letter “S” denotes a short
position in the interest in the share capital of the Company.

2. Fung Teng, a company incorporated in BVI with limited liability,
is an investment holding company with the entire issued
share capital held by Mr. Dang Yanbao, the Chairman and an
executive Director, as at 31 December 2018.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) pursuant to a written resolution of the Company
passed on 21 June 2012 for the primary purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group’s operations, will expire on 21 June
2022. The Scheme was adjusted on 27 July 2015.

Under the Scheme, the Board may grant options to any of the
following participants:

(a) any Director, employee, consultant, professional,
customer, supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or
contractor to the Group or a company in which the
Group holds an interest or a subsidiary of such company
(" Affiliate”); or

(b) the trustee of any trust the beneficiary of which or
any discretionary trust the discretionary objects of
which include any Director, employee, consultant,
professional, customer, supplier, sales representative,
partner or adviser of or contractor to the Group or an
Affiliate; or

() a company beneficially owned by any Director,
employee, consultant, professional, customer, supplier,
sales representative, partner, adviser of or contractor to
the Group or an Affiliate.

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options that may be granted under the Scheme is not
permitted to exceed 48,000,000 Shares, being 7.23% of the
Shares in issue as at the date of this report.

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted and that may be granted to any
participant in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the
Shares in issue, without prior approval from the Shareholders.

Any grant of options to a substantial Shareholder or an
independent non-executive Director or their respective
associates in any 12-month period in excess of 0.1% of the
Shares in issue or with a value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must
be approved in advance by the Shareholders.

Any offer made to a participant for an option must be taken
up within five business days from the date of offer, upon
payment of HK$1 (or such other nominal sum as the Board
may determine). Options may be exercised at any time during
a period as the Board may determine, which shall not be more
than ten years from the date of grant of the options.
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The exercise price for any Share under the Scheme is
determined by the Board, and will not be less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of a Share on the date of grant; (ii) the
average closing price of a Share for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of a Share.

No share option has been granted since the Scheme was
adopted. As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, there were no
outstanding share options issued under the Scheme.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme”, no equity-linked agreement was entered into during
the year or subsisted at the end of the year ended 31 December
2018.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices as adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
section set out on pages 23 to 41 of this annual report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the
date of this report, there is sufficient public float of 25% of the
Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association and the laws of the Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to its existing Shareholders.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than the service contracts of the Directors, the Company
has not entered into any contract with any individual, firm
or body corporate to manage or administer the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Company during the
year.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other
donations amounting to HK$20,000.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION
A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of
all the existing Directors is currently in force and was in force
throughout the year ended 31 December 2018.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of
the environment and communities in which it operates. As
a responsible corporation, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, the Group has complied with all relevant laws and
regulations regarding environmental protection and that have
a significant impact on the Company during the year ended 31
December 2018.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements and the risk of non-compliance with
the applicable rules and regulations. To the best knowledge of
the Directors, the Group has complied in material respects with
the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the business and operation of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2018.

RELATIONSHIP WITH SUPPLIERS, CUSTOMERS
AND OTHER STAKEHOLDERS

The Group understands the success of the Group’s business
depends on the support from its key stakeholders, including
employees, customers, suppliers, banks, regulators and
Shareholders. The Group will continue to ensure effective
communication and maintain good relationships with each of
its key stakeholders.

EVENTS AFTER THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
2018

As at the date of this report, the Group has no material events
after the year ended 31 December 2018.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu who shall retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company. A resolution will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of
the Company.

On behalf of the Board
China Baofeng (International) Limited

Dang Yanbao
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B % BE R

Deloitte

To the Shareholders of China Baofeng (International) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Baofeng (International) Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set
out on pages 71 to 155, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2018, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.
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=&

FHhEES (ER)BRABTRR
(REASESEME LA BRI A])

=R

ATEEAIERNETNEEZFIS55BEMNTEELS (H
BOBRDR(TERA ) REMBAR A TG &
SBNGAMBEHRE  BER - /\F+_H
=+ AMEEPIHIRAE - MBEZ B ILFE AR
cEakEMEERAR  SGaRREHR  HER
ERERMEAMBRENTE - BRETZSEEM

it o

BMRBR RAVBHRRERBEFTESHANLE
([BEGFEMAE )BRANETEVBRSEAN(E

AUBHRESHEI DEEMATFHRE SEER
- N\F+_A=+—BHGEAMBEHRR Kk BE

BEEZA LFENUBGEERRARGERERE -
WERRBB(RTUROD W BEREZ SR -

RREX
BPERETESAMASBEMNE B ET LR
(TRAFETLER ) ETES - RARKFENTH
BEDRREMORERZBEE B R a W @mE
MEL—SHE— PR - REFESTMASHEM
MCBE g mBR TN/ - BT BE
EeET  RPIEREBETIEBTRINEMERE
T - RPIFMERNEERER T MEZ AR
EiT B RIEMER -

FRETEIR

s ET FREREBRMANEXHE SR MIETEN
HRAMBRRAEAZENTH - ZFFTRINEA
B AMBHRRIEL T ERRAEXBREE RRE
BEERE  RMATHZEFFRELERER -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

RREEITER

B %A

BREFTEEE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BN ETNAREZBRETEE

Revenue recognition on tariff adjustment for photovoltaic power generation

KR REEEAR Y 25 R

We identified the revenue recognition on tariff adjustment
for photovoltaic power generation as a key audit matter
due to the critical management judgement involved in
determining whether the Group’s operating solar power
plant has qualified for, and has met all the requirements
and conditions as required for the registration in the
Reusable Energy Tariff Subsidy Catalogue (A B4 REREE
I HNE © 4 8) B £%) (the “Catalogue”).

HARENKREEE uﬂﬁE’JHQ SHERASBRESEERE A
REE ;%@%@EPE’]KF% EMERCLNE MinEd
ﬁié&?ﬁ%{%wﬂﬂﬁfﬁﬁﬁbﬁﬁ“Efﬁzj)ﬁ’\] BELRER KR
Gy REREEE A -

The accounting policies in relation to revenue recognition
on tariff adjustment is set out in note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements. The tariff adjustment is recognised at
its fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
tariff adjustment will be received and the Group will comply
with all attached conditions, if any.

BRAEEHRE W ﬁ?’é B BER BN RS MR mR M T
3. ERABEEEEKE 'J%FEH%EE%.H—IL% B B
7JD1I7’§1¢F(ZZDE)E’\JHIJ$ET BEARREQTFEER -

Pursuant to the New Tariff Notice issued in August 2013 by
the National Development and Reform Commission of the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), approvals for the
registration in the Catalogue on a project-by-project basis
are required for the settlement of the tariff adjustment.

REPEARKABE((HEDERERMAFEZEEN _F
—=F)\ABMOMEEHMNBA  BHEERREBREAR
RSN B BRI -

Revenue from tariff adjustment for photovoltaic
power generation of RMB395,836,000 (equivalent to
HK$478,600,000) from the state grid company in the PRC is
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2018 in which
the operating solar power plant is still pending registration
in the Catalogue. Based on the management assessment as
set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group’s operating solar power plant has qualified for
registration in the Catalogue, and has met, all the relevant
requirements and conditions for the registration in the
Catalogue.

ﬁAa TE-NF+ A=+ HIFEERTERRER
Tﬂﬂ**ﬁ{ﬁﬂ@&ﬁn/\Eﬁ%a% 836 oooﬂ*ﬁ%‘
478600000/575) -“é% 43 AR B 36 R
BERBESERL - $E%J§,i ﬁﬁ%ﬁi\%wuﬂﬁﬁﬁkaﬁafir‘{a
i BEELETHAGRERERMOTEERNAEERL -
IE/%EEAEﬁZEHBE’JFﬁE*ﬁF%KI&ﬂ o

t;l%z

Our procedures in relation to the Group’s revenue
recognition on tariff adjustment for photovoltaic power
generation included:

ARESEEUNAAEETEEFARBRN KSR - R
BB

o Obtaining an understanding of the policies and
regulations set by the PRC government authorities
on tariff adjustment for photovoltaic power

generation;
BEPREBNE RS REEEEFHESTEHRK
FEH

o Obtaining legal opinion from the Group’s PRC
legal advisor in relation to the assessment
that the Group’s operating solar power plant
currently in operation has met all the relevant
requirements and conditions for the registration
in the Catalogue and the entitlement of the tariff
adjustment when the electricity was delivered on
grid;

EREEETBEEEEMME lfﬁﬁ%%@EPE’\J
Kﬁ%ﬁb%?&ﬁ?ﬁﬁ%%ﬂ%ukaﬁ EEFENAEE
THMEERERLRIGHEAREREERARESR
MPHRHEERER

o Evaluating the competence, capabilities and

objectivity of the PRC legal advisor; and
AHEREDERZER 28 - TR RFEHML &

o Discussing with management and the Group'’s
PRC legal advisor to assess if there are any factors
and changes in the government policies which
would affect the registration in the Catalogue by
the Group.

HEREREEEPEERBARN R - UFEHE
BFEETMBABEREARREmMAETEES
BB &R -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

MRETER

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

B 5 W kTR 896 B A

We identified impairment assessment of trade receivables
as a key audit matter due to the involvement of subjective
judgement and management estimates in evaluating
the expected credit losses ("ECL") of the Group's trade
receivables at the end of the reporting period.

BMRTE HEWFIBRREN G SERETEE - ARR
HEMRFEEEEE S RUIBENIEREEEE(TRRE
BEEBDESREHAERERE MGG -

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's net trade receivables
amounting to HK$148,996,000, and out of these trade
receivables, HK$23,792,000 were past due.
RZZE-—N\F+ZA=1+—H E£ENZEFRKFIBFE
#148,996,000/ 7T + 25 E 5 EUWGIEH 23,792,000
JTE A o

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the management of the Group calculates the
amount of lifetime ECL of trade receivables (including
non-credit impaired and credit impaired) by considering
the debtors' historical default rates and forward-looking
information that is reasonable, supportable and available
without undue costs or effort. The loss allowance amount
of the trade receivables is measured as the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows with the consideration of
expected future credit losses.

WM A M EMARMTAEE  EEEERELS RER
ANBTENEREE A FRBATVERAR RS HANA
EHRERIEEER M EE S EWE (B EERER
EERE)NEREEFECE - ESRUGEREEHS
FRREERAERLH RBHRKEEBERAMEAREK
RenBREZENEEAE -

As disclosed in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group's lifetime ECL on trade receivables as
at 31 December 2018 amounted to HK$823,000.
RS A B MAME27 - RZF—N\F+ A=+
%@ EBEEBBZREKGIENEHEAEEEE /823,000
BT °

China Baofeng (International) Limited HEE2 (ER)GRLE

BREFTEEE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HMPNEANAEEZBRETSEE

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of
trade receivables included:

BB E 5 RWSIERENIZF R

o Understanding key controls on how the
management estimates the loss allowance for
trade receivables;

%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%J@H&%XIEEETEEH%E’UI%E
|

o Challenging management's basis and judgement
in determining credit loss allowance on trade
receivables as at 1 January 2018 and 31
December 2018, including their identification of
credit impaired trade receivables, and the basis of
estimated loss rates applied in individual debtor
(with reference to historical default rates and
forward-looking information); and
EREREEr—_T—)/\F—H—HEZZ—N
F+_RA=+—HESRERBEEEFBRERZ
ERERHE - BEHNEEREE S EWHIE
MEBARBAREEEE (S RBTENER
RIEEER) © &

o Evaluating the disclosures regarding the
impairment assessment of trade receivables in
note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.
AR S B RARM T 27N E 5 B W IR E
A AR
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

B %A
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE

AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies

used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

China Baofeng (International) Limited HEEE (HKR)ERQT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE

AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE

AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Tsang Chi Wai.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 March 2019

China Baofeng (International) Limited HEEE (HKR)ERQT
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
neBaRkAEMEEREE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z— ) \F+-_A=+—ALFE

2018
—E-N\E
NOTES HK$'000
B aE THET
Revenue g 5 1,106,643 956,323
Cost of sales $HE R AN (479,356) (442,997)
Gross profit EF 627,287 513,326
Other income, gains and losses EMUA - e REE 6 26,483 49,373
Selling expenses HEMRX (26,301) (24,483)
Administrative and other expenses T R H AR SZ (79,801) (69,683)
Finance costs W% ER 7 (5.677) (9,416)
Profit before taxation MR EL BT 8 A 8 541,991 459,117
Income tax expense FrigHi il =2 9 (9,504) (12,015)
Profit for the year FEHA 532,487 447,102
Other comprehensive (expense) income for FEE 2 mE (FA )W
the year
Item that may be reclassified subsequently —H{1&RIgEEF LA E 18752
to profit or loss: HE :
Exchange differences arising on translating R EIBINEKEN =R
foreign operations (94,339) 68,269
Total comprehensive income for the year FEImMKEERE 438,148 515,371
HK87.13 cents HK78.76 cents
Earnings per share - Basic BRAN-EXR 12 87.13 741l 78.76781
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MBI R

At 31 December 2018
RZE—N\F+ZA=+—H

72

Non-current Assets

Property, plant and equipment

Prepaid rental expenses for
photovoltaic facilities

FRBEE
ERN G
KRR EANEHEE M

Rental deposit HEHRe

Deferred tax asset REFTREE

Intangible asset EEE

Current Assets REEE

Inventories rE

Trade and other receivables B 5 R E AW RIR

Contract assets GHEE

Prepaid rental expenses for KRR EBRNEEER
photovoltaic facilities

Pledged bank deposits DIEIRITIER

Bank balances and cash wITHBRRE S

Current Liabilities REBE

Trade and other payables H 5 N E MR FRIE

Provision B

Amount due to ultimate holding company B & AR A B 5108

Tax payable JEfFIR

Bank borrowings RITIE

Net Current Assets REBEEFE

Total Assets less Current Liabilities EEHERRBEE

Non-current Liability FEREBEE

Deferred tax liability FEFTEAE

Net assets EEFE

Capital and Reserves B R #E

Share capital [N

Reserves e

Total Equity BRRER ST

The consolidated financial statements on pages 71 to 155 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
29 March 2019 and are signed on its behalf by:

2018 2017

—E-N\EFE —T—+tF

NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000

B 7 FET FAET

13 322,474 253,407

14 - 45,181

- 2,013

15 1,316 720

16 465 562

324,255 301,883

17 33,535 16,433

18 173,867 855,040

19 1,159,209 -

14 41,278 107,018

20 1,533 126,747

20 82,494 60,661

1,491,916 1,165,899

21 129,018 205,022

22 15,930 10,503

23 8,000 -

3,770 4,979

24 - 275,500

156,718 496,004

1,335,198 669,895

1,659,453 971,778

15 232 50

1,659,221 971,728

25 6,638 5,677

1,652,583 966,051

1,659,221 971,728
FEVERISSEMNGEMBRERZE—NF=A=

THARKMERSIMAE LR T

Dang Yanbao Dang Zidong
BEZ"E BER
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
HITEF HITEF

China Baofeng (International) Limited HEE2 (ER)GRLE



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Share
capital

Bx
HK$000
T

E
premium

Rhiaf
HK$000
ThT

Special
reserve

L
HK$'000

mEERBER
For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-F—\FT-A=+—RILFE

Statutory
surplus
reserve

Retained
profits

Translation
reserve

Bl
HK$'000
AR

REEF
HK$'000

TEL TR

At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F—-A—-H 5,677 289,547 (1) 16,949 (28,043) 172,228 456,357
Profit for the year EREH - - - - - 4477002 447,102
Exchange difference arising on S RAZENER K

translation of foreign L2 EREEEN

operations and other EXER

comprehensive income

for the year - - - - 68,269 - 68,269
Total comprehensive income  FR2ENEEE

for the year - - - - 68,269 447102 515,371
Transfer b - - - 51,277 - (51,277) -
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+-A=+-A 5,677 289,547 (1) 68,226 40,226 568,053 971,728
Profit for the year FEER - - - - - 532487 532487
Exchange difference arisingon ~ FRAEENER R

translation of foreign E2ERTEEN

operations and other ERER

comprehensive expense

for the year - - - - (94,339) - (94,339)
Total comprehensive (expense) N2 (%) i85

income for the year - - - - (94,339) 532,487 438,148
Issue of ordinary shares BITEER %1 249,029 - - - - 249,990
Share issue expenses RINETER - (645) - - - - (645)
Transfer = - - - 61,059 - (61,059) -
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\F+ZA=1—H 6,638 537,931 (1) 129,285 (54,113) 1,039,481 1,659,221
Notes: Bt
a. Special reserve represents the reserve arising from group  a. BAREER TS —FETEREAEE 2R

reorganisation in 2012. o

b. In accordance with relevant laws and regulations for foreign  b. KIEPEARLAMBE([HE D INGRECEERE

investment enterprises in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC"), the PRC subsidiaries are required to transfer 10% of
their profit after taxation reported in their statutory financial
statements prepared under relevant accounting principles and
financial regulations applicable to enterprises established in the
PRC to the statutory surplus reserve.

BER  hEMNBARNZESZRERNPERL
EMBBERAMIERTERBEOET Y HR
RPMENBRBREN 2 10% BB RET RABR
& o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z— ) \F+-_A=+—HLLFE

China Baofeng (International) Limited HEE2 (ER)GRLE

2018
—E-N\E
HK$’000
FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ReExW
Profit before taxation R A5 A& A 541,991 459,117
Adjustments for: FLATIER fEHFHEE
Remeasurement on discounted present B EEEFABEWIEL
value of tariff adjustment receivables BRIRIR(E 31,619 -
Allowance for obsolete and slow-moving B NS SRS
inventories 466 25
Amortisation of intangible asset M E 97 97
Depreciation of property, Wz - REREEITE
plant and equipment 10,801 6,643
Finance costs W% E R 5,677 9,416
Imputed interest income on BB PR WG IE 2 BT R B U
tariff adjustment receivables (25,188) (12,699)
Interest income FEWA (1,271) (903)
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - BEREE W=
plant and equipment (76) -
Operating cash flows before movements LEESEPINLCERTRE
in working capital 564,116 461,696
Decrease (increase) in prepaid rental YeiREmEENEEERAR A (%)
expenses for photovoltaic facilities 108,434 (88,418)
(Increase) decrease in inventories FEOEn)ES (17,568) 5,157
Decrease (increase) in rental deposit and HERe NE S M A EIERIE
trade and other receivables A (38 n) 4,457 (546,203)
Increase in contract assets BHEEEMN (558,647) -
Increase in trade and other payables H 5 K H b e FIEE N 10,593 33,654
Increase in provision BN 5,427 3,358
Cash generated from (used in) operations ~ “&iBE4 (FTH)E S 116,812 (130,756)
Income tax paid in Hong Kong BNBEEEH (6,550) (3,633)
Income tax and withholding tax paid in BT EMEEE R TER
other jurisdictions RIEF (4,663) (3,394)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM (USED IN) &% /HE (A BLFE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 105,599 (137,783)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment EEEYZE - B=E LR iE (183,189) (70,099)
Placement of pledged bank deposits FECDEMBEITER (1,625) (120,920)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits EREEFRITER 126,747 -
Interest received BUFH B 1,271 903
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME « BERRHTERE
plant and equipment 76 -
Repayment from a photovoltaic facilities B IR IEHER 2 B
provider = 45,977
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES  #R&EZEFMARSTE (56,720) (144,139)




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of bank loans

Interest paid

Share issue expenses

Proceeds from issue of shares

Advance from ultimate holding company
New bank loans raised

NET CASH (USED IN) GENERATED FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT 1 JANUARY

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE
CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT 31 DECEMBER
— represented by bank balances and cash

AERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z— ) \F+-_A=+—ALFE

2018
—E-N\E
HK$'000
THxT
BMEEE
EEIRITER (275,500) -
B A (5,677) (9,416)
f&1n 3178 A (645) -
BT D T8 5108 249,990 -
DY=Rs Sl F/NC] kb 8,000 -
FIBIRITER = 25,500
RMETE(FTA)MERSFE
(23,832) 16,084
BEeRBESEEYIEMORD ) BE
25,047 (265,838)
R—B—BRESRESZEY
60,661 316,345
ERSBHHTE
(3,214) 10,154
R+-—A=+—-HBHRER
HEEEY
—RIRTTEHR LR 82,494 60,661
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ek ET RS

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z— ) \F+-_A=+—HLLFE

GENERAL

China Baofeng (International) Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands and its shares
were listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
immediate and ultimate holding company of the
Company is Fung Teng Enterprises Limited, which is
wholly-owned by Mr. Dang Yanbao, the chairman and
executive director of the Company. The addresses of
the registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Caymans Islands
and Suites 1301-1304, 13/F., Two Pacific Place, 88
Queensway, Admiralty, Hong Kong, respectively.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) are photovoltaic power generation
and design and supply chain of lightings and home
furnishing products. Particulars of the subsidiaries of the
Company are set out in note 34.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is different from
the functional currency of the Company, United States
dollars (“US$"), as the directors of the Company
consider that HK$ is more appropriate as the Company's
shares are listed in Hong Kong.

China Baofeng (International) Limited HEEE (HKR)ERQT

—REH
PEEBZ(EBR)BERAR(IART])EH
SEHEHMKY -  EROREBBEZ S
ERAB(MBRADERLET - ARFIEE
REBERAGIBA ARG EFRNTESE
EBEELERBZERLEERADAF - KA
DRI ERI R F EE R D 7
& Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands R BB & E & EEI8 A H Eim — &
13#21301 21304 % -

ARABF/LERBRATF - KRR MEWMER
A([ARED 2 ERRBRUEHIREEN
FRARREMHmRT REEERS - AQ
AZ B A B BN E34 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs")

The Group has applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs and an interpretation issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA™) for the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 15
HK(IFRIC) - Int 22

Amendments to
HKFRS 2

Amendments to
HKFRS 4

Amendments to
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKAS 40

Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions

Applying HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” with HKFRS 4
“Insurance Contracts”

As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2014- 2016 Cycle

Transfers of Investment Property

Except as described below, the application of the new
and amendments to HKFRSs and the interpretation in
the current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out
in these consolidated financial statements.

I RAR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z— ) \F+ZA=1+—HLFE

AT EEMBRELEN(EFEY
BHREER ) REEFT A

AEERAFEFEEREBEESAMAE
(IBEGHERE ) EM I EBYH
WELAREEFTARA KRR

BRMBREENFIR HBETA
BREMBREERE T TLPANKERARER

BR(ERMHEHRERE IINEXHREMKE
Z8g)-BmE2FR

BRMBRERNENR RO AEERNRRZS
CHEN WD R REE

BREMBREERFEAR RABEMBEREERE4

CHEN: BIRBAL IR —HHE
RE BB REERRI
SIMBITA]
BAGEAF28% EREBMBRELER =
fEETA) Z-NEE_T-RF
BHRNFEIEL
n
BB G ERIF40% BENENE

CHEN

BR T XAt & SN - AN FRIRANFTR] BB B
BHELER HEFTAREBHAKENA
FERBEFENUBRERERAR LSt
SREVBHREAMBBEATLBEEATE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ek ET RS

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z— ) \F+-_A=+—HLLFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

2.1

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first
time in the current year. HKFRS 15 superseded
HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction
Contracts” and the related interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively
with the cumulative effect of initially applying
this standard recognised at the date of initial
application, 1 January 2018. Any difference at
the date of initial application is recognised in
the opening retained profits and comparative
information has not been restated. Furthermore,
in accordance with the transition provisions
in HKFRS 15, the Group has elected to apply
the standard retrospectively only to contracts
that are not completed at 1 January 2018.
Accordingly, certain comparative information
may not be comparable as comparative
information was prepared under HKAS 18, HKAS
11 and the related interpretations.

The Group recognises revenue from the
following major sources:

o Revenue from photovoltaic power
generation
o Sales of lighting products

Information about the Group's performance
obligations and the accounting policy resulting
from application of HKFRS 15 in notes 5 and 3,
respectively.

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 15

Below illustrates the impacts of applying HKFRS
15 on the Group's consolidated financial
statements:

o For contracts of sales of lighting products
that contain warranties, the Group
accounts for the warranty in accordance
with HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets” as the
directors of the Company consider these
are assurance-type warranties.

China Baofeng (International) Limited HEEE (HKR)ERQT

A EEMBRELEN(FEY
BHREEQ ) REBITRE)

2.1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 15 (Continued)

2.1

For sales of electricity, revenue is
recognised based on the electricity
transmitted dates. The directors of the
Company have not identified any separate
performance obligations other than the
transmission of electricity to the state grid
company.

For sales of electricity, contract assets
are recognised for the tariff adjustment
receivables from electricity transmitted
but not billed at the reporting date. The
contract assets would be transferred
to tariff adjustment receivables when
the rights to consideration become
unconditional. As at 1 January 2018, tariff
adjustment receivables in “Trade and
other receivables” of HK$676,829,000
was reclassified as “Contract assets”.

The directors of the Company considered
the application of HKFRS 15 has no material
impact on the timing and amounts of revenue
recognised in the respective reporting periods.

I RAR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z— ) \F+ZA=1+—HLFE

AT EEMBRELEN(FEY
BHREEA ) REBT R

2.1

BERUBHRELENEISHBEFENK
#® |(7%8)
BAERZ B BHEERE 155

B4t

FEZHE(E)

RENHEMS - WERE S
B A HER - RABEXE!
NAEAMABENIN  ARAES
W EBHEABLROEE -

RENEEMS  ARARR
WMERBERE IMELEREMN
AHEZENEEHAEEWRR
HERABNEE - 2 WEUR(E
REFIKABEGER  GHE
EBEAEERABRREIGE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R ISR AR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z— ) \F+-_A=+—HLLFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

2.1 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” (Continued)
Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 15 (Continued)
The following adjustments were made to
the amounts recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at 1 January
2018. Line items that were not affected by the

R EEMBRERE(FEY
BHREEQ ) REBITRE)

2.1

BERUBHRELENEISHBEFENK
#® |(7%8)
BAERZ B BHEERE 155
ELXTEZHE(E)
TXHIERN T - NF—HA— A&
& B AR R P HE AR & BB P A0 5B
B ZRHEATEXIRFAZHOF

E o
=

changes have not been included.

Carrying Carrying

amounts amounts

previously under

reported at HKFRS 15 at

31 December 1 January

2017 Reclassification 2018*

R=Z—N\F

SRR —B—H

—E—+F ERMKRE

+=—HBA=+—H ZHIZE155%

EHRMNREE EFSE BEINEREE*

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000

F&T FET FHET

Current assets REEE

Trade and other receivables & 5 & E b fE Y 0 IE 855,040 (676,829) 178,211

Contract assets BHEE - 676,829 676,829
* The amount in this column are before the * ZRBI S EAKIERE SV H®

adjustments from the application of HKFRS 9. SEBFEISFMIEH Z A -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

2.1

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 15 (Continued)

The following tables summarise the impacts of
applying HKFRS 15 on the Group's consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31
December 2018 and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the current year for each of the
line items affected. Line items that were not
affected by the changes have not been included.

Impact on the consolidated statement of
financial position

Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables & 5 & E b & U k18
Contract assets EHEE

Impact on the consolidated statement of cash
flows

HERS R HEMRER
IR OB A) FE N

BHEERZM

(Decrease) increase in
rental deposit and trade
and other receivables

Increase in contract assets

As at 31 December 2018, an amount of
HK$1,159,209,000 in respect of tariff adjustment
receivables was classified as contract assets and
the amount would have been included in trade
and other receivables without application of
HKFRS 15.

E SRR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z— ) \F+-_A=+—ALFE

R EEMBREER(FEY
BHREEA ) REBT R

21 BERUBEREEUBISHK[EFEONR
#® |(7%8)
BAREREBEMEERE 1557
EXTEHEE)
Tﬁﬁ%kﬁ%%%ﬁﬂ%#&%ﬁﬁ“
ﬁ*—iff$% A Sy gt

ﬁﬁf’? i%

E
EEN: T\

H1
B
£ B 2
%59

r+ o

B & %7

/a\fﬁé i

E|J =7 ? °

%E’\JIEE °

|

*ﬁ-FHDJJ
G

AWK

Eﬂ%\*@iﬁ
PHIHif'éD
)ﬂl‘tﬂb‘i
R
BB

— HFHIHJ H>

k&

B MBHANERNTE

Amounts

without

application

As reported Reclassification of HKFRS 15

REREE

Bop 5 i o5 ZE A

FCEET ENSE F15HHNRE

HK$'000 HK$’000 HKS$’000

FHET THERT THERT

173,867 1,159,209 1,333,076

1,159,209 (1,159,209) -
HIRARSREROVE

Amounts
without
application
of HKFRS 15
REREE

B # 3R 5 ZE B
F 15 RIE
HK$°000
F#&xT

As reported Reclassification

g2 EXOE

HK$°000
FET

HK$°000
TR

(4,457)
558,647

558,647 554,190
(558,647) -

N_E—NF+_A=+—8 "
FEMEYCFNIA,159,209, ooo,’ém “*ﬁ
AREE ﬁﬁﬁﬂiﬂ’é%%ﬁ/’%ﬁﬁ‘%iﬁ
ﬁﬂ%ﬁf Mmﬁﬁﬁﬁkﬁ%
Hfth fE UL X

N

%HFHH%‘:E?E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ek ET RS

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z— ) \F+-_A=+—HLLFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

2.2

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

In the current year, the Group has applied
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and the related
consequential amendments to other HKFRSs.
HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for (1)
the classification and measurement of financial
assets and financial liabilities; (2) expected credit
losses ("ECL") for financial assets and (3) general
hedge accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance
with the transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9.
i.e. applied the classification and measurement
requirements (including impairment)
retrospectively to instruments that have not
been derecognised as at 1 January 2018 (date
of initial application) and has not applied the
requirements to instruments that have already
been derecognised as at 1 January 2018. The
difference between carrying amounts as at 31
December 2017 and the carrying amounts as at
1 January 2018 are recognised in the opening
retained profits and other components of
equity, if any, without restating comparative
information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information
may not be comparable as comparative
information was prepared under HKAS 39
“Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement”.

Accounting policies resulting from application of
HKFRS 9 are disclosed in Note 3.

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 9

The directors of the Company considered the
application of HKFRS 9 has no material impact on
the measurement of financial assets at the date
of initial application, 1 January 2018.

Below illustrates the assessment of impairment
of financial assets subject to ECL under HKFRS 9
at the date of initial application, 1 January 2018.

China Baofeng (International) Limited HEEE (HKR)ERQT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

2.2

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)

Impairment under ECL model

In relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 requires an ECL model, as opposed to
an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39.
The ECL model requires an entity to account for
ECL and changes in those ECL at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition. In other words, it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognised.

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS
9 simplified approach to measure ECL using
lifetime ECL for trade receivables and contract
assets. Trade receivables and contract assets have
been assessed individually.

Loss allowance for other financial assets at
amortised cost mainly comprise of other
receivables, pledged bank deposits and bank
balances, and are measured on 12-month ECL
("12m ECL") basis and there had been no
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition.

The directors of the Company considered the
additional ECL allowance as at 1 January 2018
measured under the ECL model is insignificant.

I RAR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z— ) \F+ZA=1+—HLFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A BTSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z— ) \F+-_A=+—HLLFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs and an interpretation that have
been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 16 Leases'

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®

HK(IFRIC) - Int 23 Uncertainty over Income

Tax Treatments’

Amendments to Definition of a Business*
HKFRS 3

Amendments to Prepayment Features with
HKFRS 9 Negative Compensation’

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of
and HKAS 28 Assets between an

Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture?
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material®

and HKAS 8
Amendments to Plan Amendment,
HKAS 19 Curtailment
or Settlement’
Amendments to Long-term Interests in
HKAS 28 Associates and Joint
Ventures'
Amendments to Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle’

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a
date to be determined

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2021

4 Effective for business combinations and asset

acquisitions for which the acquisition date is on or after
the beginning of the first annual period beginning on
or after 1 January 2020

> Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2020

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs
mentioned below, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of all other new and
amendments to HKFRSs and the interpretation will
have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16
will supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled
by a customer. Distinctions of operating leases and
finance leases are removed for lessee accounting, and
is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability have to be recognised for all
leases by lessees, except for short-term leases and leases
of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at costs
and subsequently measured at cost (subject to
certain exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured
at the present value of the lease payments that are
not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability
is adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as
the impact of lease modifications, amongst others. For
the classification of cash flows, the Group currently
presents other operating lease payments as operating
cash flows. Upon application of HKFRS 16, lease
payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated
into a principal and an interest portion which will be
presented as financing cash flows by the Group. Upfront
prepaid lease payments will continue to be presented as
investing cash flows.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has non-
cancellable operating lease commitments of
HK$13,657,000 as disclosed in note 30. A preliminary
assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet
the definition of a lease. Upon application of HKFRS 16,
the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability in respect of all these leases
unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable
rental deposit paid of HK$2,013,000 as rights and
obligations under leases to which HKAS 17 applies.
Based on the definition of lease payments under
HKFRS 16, such deposits are not payments relating to
the right to use the underlying assets, accordingly, the
carrying amounts of such deposits may be adjusted to
amortised cost and such adjustments are considered as
additional lease payments. Adjustments to refundable
rental deposits paid would be considered as additional
lease payments included in the carrying amount of
right-of-use assets.

The application of new requirements may result
changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure
as indicated above. The Group intends to elect the
practical expedient to apply HKFRS 16 to contracts
that were previously identified as leases applying
HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 “Determining whether
an Arrangement contains a Lease” and not apply this
standard to contracts that were not previously identified
as containing a lease applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-
Int 4. Therefore, the Group will not reassess whether the
contracts are, or contain a lease which already existed
prior to the date of initial application. Furthermore,
the Group intends to elect the modified retrospective
approach for the application of HKFRS 16 as lessee
and will recognise the cumulative effect of initial
application to opening retained profits without restating
comparative information.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 “Definition of
Material”

The amendments provide refinements to the definition
of material by including additional guidance and
explanations in making materiality judgements. The
amendments also align the definition across all HKFRSs
and will be mandatorily effective for the Group's annual
period beginning on 1 January 2020. The application
of the amendments is not expected to have significant
impact on the financial position and performance of the
Group but may affect the presentation and disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis. Historical cost is
generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based
Payment”, leasing transactions that are within the
scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in
use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of
the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement
date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHEE®E)
(Continued)
Basis of consolidation EAH®

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved when the Company:

REMBRREEBARFERNRBMEHE
BREMBARINMBERE - EHSIHNER
%?KQET '

. has power over the investee; . HWIRE ARG

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from . HHRLEKIRE TR F B R E
its involvement with the investee; and RN R

. has the ability to use its power to affect its . B NEREENFEHEIR -
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there

i =B MBS RBR EXCRATSI = TR G| A R E
PoEHZENE  AIAKRESE[REED

are changes to one or more of the three elements of NERIEIRET -
control listed above.
Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group REBRESHBERARZEHEREHBA

obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

AN - WK ENEB R E) TSR zmt
HEAKR - BERBmME RAFEARBANL
EZHBRARIZKRARMY  HaAXEBEE
?%?%Uf“ié?H@iZKE@;E?EBﬁ%Qﬂ%W%U
HEBIE FFAGEEEREMEEREE
ﬁqo

MEBARZHBRENERERHIELARE -
HEEGBRAREE 2 5t RR 2

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, FHEAEBENERRICERGZMEEER
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions NEIFEERAE #m WA - THER

between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in note 2)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a
series of distinct goods or services that are substantially
the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is
met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group's
performance as the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

o the Group's performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct good
or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not
yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in
accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in note 2) (Continued)

A point in time revenue recognition

Under the transfer-of-control approach in HKFRS 15,
revenue from sales of lighting product is generally
recognised when customer acceptance has been
obtained, which is the point of time when the customer

3.

TESEE#)

BEFEHNE(RBENEF2EEGRXERE
B BREEREISHER) (F)

T — b5 [ R AR 2t

REBEFBM GBS EAE 155 TR S

BE  REHERBEMRN KWE —RNER

%If&ﬁmﬁ%(?é?%?}iﬁﬁ JHE R EE ) iR
1S %E MRV AB KR D RIBR A 25 B ) FE SR 8H

has the ability to direct the use of the product and =T L E BRAEHKRTY %Ef\eajﬂﬁim H
obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits of the HAMEER o

product. Revenue from sales of electricity and tariff

adjustment are recognised based on the electricity

transmitted dates.

Existence of significant financing component FHEEXGE S 7

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts E"#E XS B - WP E 2 N R E (5
the promised amount of consideration for the effects b EH/T\&HE/T)F%E}E FAREEHRAE P
of the time value of money if the timing of payments ERERARBscERARENR - AIAEH
agreed (either explicitly or implicitly) provides the H—rﬁ‘iﬁiﬁﬁfﬁfﬁm%gﬁﬁé BEAmoE
customer or the Group with a significant benefit of TR EREB/AT  AHNGFEERNBED
financing the transfer of goods or services to the 2 o i Bl 57%.:6?35(‘4-\ AR SRS AIE]
customer. In those circumstances, the contract contains WABENEZMERBETR EARELSH
a significant financing component. A significant EAJRETFIE ©

financing component may exist regardless of whether

the promise of financing is explicitly stated in the

contract or implied by the payment terms agreed to by

the parties to the contract.

For contracts where the period between payment and AT RS AR E Mok RIS 2 BT
transfer of the associated goods or services is less than iE’J/\% C REERAFITREN AL T

one year, the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the transaction price for any significant
financing component.

R RO ENG =

_\

DR ZEELFE -

For contract assets where the Group has transmitted - e gl e UNGIENE - C-TRRE T2
the electricity before payments from the state grid agjjm/m\%jéé(ﬁj;npz’gilz%iﬁm$§4g

company in which the Group adjusts for the amount of HEBERELE) M - K%E@é\%’ﬂﬁﬂﬁéﬁ%
consideration for significant financing components, the HRATNREAEERERS ﬂﬁi%ﬂ

Group applies a discount rate that would be reflected
in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the state grid company at contract inception. The

BRHOFRE - LK%IE"HSZ 'JXEI
HRENFEEEE ) 2 R B E AR ﬂ

Group recognises interest income during the period BHIA
between the payment from state grid company and the

transmission of electricity.

Warranties HE(R

If a customer has the option to purchase a warrant
separately, the Group accounts for the warranty as
a separate performance obligation and allocates a
portion of the transaction price to that performance
obligation. If a customer does not have the option to
purchase a warranty separately, the Group accounts
for the warranty in accordance with HKAS 37 unless
the warranty provides the customer with a service in
addition to the assurance that the product complies
with agreed-upon specifications (i.e. service-type
warranties). The Group’s warranties given to customers
are considered as assurance-type.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January 2018)
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Revenue is reduced
for estimated customer returns, trade discounts and
other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities, as described below.

Revenue arising from the photovoltaic power generation
is recognised in the accounting period when electricity is
generated and transmitted. Tariff adjustment represents
subsidy received and receivable from the government
authorities in respect of the Group’s photovoltaic power
generation business. Tariff adjustment is recognised at
its fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that
the additional tariff will be received and the Group will
comply with all attached conditions, if any.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which
time all the following conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing managerial

involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership nor effective control over the

goods sold;

o the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to the
Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of

the transaction can be measured reliably.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time apportionment basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHEE®E)
(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERRKE

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land
(classified as finance leases) and buildings held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services, or
for administrative purpose (other than construction in
progress) are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Solar power plant in the course of construction for
generation of electricity income is carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include costs of
solar modules, permits applied, professional fees and,
for qualifying assets, borrowing costs and other costs
capitalised in the course of construction. Completed
solar power plant, being solar power plant held for
the generation of electricity income, is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost, less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as other assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended
use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment (other than
construction in progress) less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful
lives is recognised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of
an intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset
is derecognised.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of tangible and intangible
assets are estimated individually, when it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
asset individually, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are
also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ek ET RS

For the year ended 31 December 2018
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is
allocated to the assets on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest
of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its
value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of
the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other
assets of the unit. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest
which includes leasehold land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element
separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to
the Group, unless it is clear that both elements are
operating leases in which case the entire property
is accounted as operating lease. Specifically, the
entire consideration (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the leasehold land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values of the leasehold interests in the land element and
building element at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that
is accounted for as an operating lease is presented as
“prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated statement
of financial position and is amortised over the lease term
on a straight-line basis. When the payments cannot
be allocated reliably between the leasehold land and
the building elements, the entire property is generally
classified as if the leasehold land is under a finance
lease.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the first-in,
first-out method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the
sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ek ET RS

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z— ) \F+-_A=+—HLLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHEE®E)
(Continued)
Foreign currencies Shitg

In preparing the financial statements of the each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies other
than the functional currency of that entity (foreign
currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the current of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group'’s operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income
and expenses items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
translation reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants
will be received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefits
plans, state-managed retirement benefits scheme and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised
as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an
expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits the
inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries, annual leave and
sick leave) after deducting any amount already paid.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before
taxation as reported in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHEE®E)
(Continued)
Taxation (Continued) BIE(4E)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of the reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end
of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities. Current and deferred
tax are recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

Provision for defective claims

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions for the expected cost of warranty obligations
(i.e. defective claim) under the relevant sale of goods
legislation are recognised at the date of sale of the
relevant products, at the directors’ best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the Group’s obligation,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of time value
of money is material).

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15 since 1 January
2018. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ek ET RS

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z— ) \F+-_A=+—HLLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHEE®E)
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) BT HE(E)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating interest income and interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in note 2)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

ERFEENAENBEEXM B ABNE
AR R PG B AR & B A B A R A B
SHTE e BEMNETNEMIBEEXMBA
BB F R (ER ) BB AR R
HUER & K R (B IR B R A R T &
DZABAENACHERRHE  XHHAK
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BREDFEMF X -
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=

. the financial asset is held within a business model o MHEEENEBREXNZE EEMNA
whose objective is to collect contractual cash WEENRSRE &
flows; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified . AR ERTEYMELERSRE
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of ZESTREEAYMNAE EHMAESE
principal and interest on the principal amount REHHE -

outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income:

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in note 2) (Continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured
at fair value through profit or loss, except that at
the date of initial application/initial recognition of
a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in other comprehensive income if
that equity investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in
a business combination to which HKFRS 3 “Business
Combinations” applies.

All the Group’s financial assets are classified as financial
assets at amortised cost.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset from the next reporting period. If the
credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting
period following the determination that the asset is no
longer credit impaired.

Impairment of financial assets (upon application

HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)
The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
financial assets which are subject to impairment under
HKFRS 9 including trade and other receivables, pledged
bank deposits, bank balances and other item (contract
assets). The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I RAR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z— ) \F+ZA=1+—HLFE

FTESEE@#)

MBTAE)

MBEE (%)
MHEENDBLRERTE(REMNE2ER
EX EREBM B HREEREIREK) (&)

PrEEMBM B EERRIZ A FEN ARt
B CMERBEREA/BERER-BANBEE
BRON o IR EWIFRFEE - RIENE
B EERIFEIN [ XA 0 EAm %R
BOFR BT FTERHRANE - NEER
BE I A HBE iR BN E A 2 Ut 2 51 A
BRERNFERBEREE

AEEMBEMBEEDBRIZBHMAE
MM IEEE °

B SHACAN K M B URA
HERRBHEAANAENMBEENNEWA
=R ERRF BT IARR - M EWATEH —
AUV BEERARERBERFE T UG
8 EEREREERENTBEERIINE
TX) - ERBREERENTFEEEN
5 BT —HEHE  MBRATIHHBE
EBERARAERNETAER - HEE
MEMBTANEERRGE  EUHKEE
THEHREERE RETEETHHRE
ERER - B8RSR G EN B A TR
BEERMAERMBERNETIAER -

il

7

MBEERERENZ2ERGXERELE
BT RS R FEIRIR)

ARER B BLAR IR B8 B %5 ¥ 2 R 56 O 55% T K
ENMBEE(ERESREMERFIE B
HIRRITER - RITEBRREMIER (AHE
E))MBREEBRERBERE - HHE
EFEBEeENEREHAEN  URKREB T
IRERENEERRED -

Annual Report 2018 —Z— \FF#



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ek ET RS

For the year ended 31 December 2018
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHBEXW®
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) B TE(E)
Financial assets (Continued) BB EE &)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application

HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)
(Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result
from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessments are done based
on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables without significant financing component
and contract assets. The ECL on these assets are
assessed individually for debtors.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL.
The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost
or effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)
(Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

° significant deterioration in external
market indicators of credit risk, e.g. a
significant increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices for the
debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse

change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease
in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ek ET RS

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z— ) \F+-_A=+—HLLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)
(Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor
is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any
collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events of default that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence
that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons relating
to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)
(Continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty
is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, for example,
when the counterparty has been placed under
liqguidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables,
when the amounts are over three years past due,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written
off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking
into account legal advice where appropriate. A
write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or
loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount
that is determined with the respective risks of
default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application

HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)

(Continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)
Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
by adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade receivables and contract
assets where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January
2018)

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined
at the time of initial recognition. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January
2018) (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including trade and
other receivables, pledged bank deposits and bank
balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment
of financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets (before application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of the reporting period. Financial
assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been affected.

Obijective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or
delinquency in interest and principal payments;
or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will

enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ek ET RS

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z— ) \F+-_A=+—HLLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHBEXW®
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) B TE(E)
Financial assets (Continued) BB EE &)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group’s past experience
of collecting payments, an increase in the number of
delayed payments in the portfolio, and observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade receivables, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received,
net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
amount due to ultimate holding company and bank
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for
the amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues
to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in
profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ek ET RS

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z— ) \F+-_A=+—HLLFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumption about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future period.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
The followings are the critical judgements, apart from
those involving estimations (see below), that the
directors have made in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

Revenue recognition on tariff adjustment for
photovoltaic power generation

Tariff adjustment represents subsidy received and
receivable from the government authorities in respect
of the Group's photovoltaic power generation business.
Tariff subsidy is recognised at its fair value where there
is a reasonable assurance that the additional tariff will
be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions, if any.

Pursuant to the New Tariff Notice issued in August 2013
by the National Development and Reform Commission
of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), approvals
for the registration in the Reusable Energy Tariff Subsidy
Catalogue (RAIBABEIREEMN NE €M E)E ££) (the
“Catalogue”) on a project-by-project basis are required
for the settlement of the tariff adjustment.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Revenue recognition on tariff adjustment for
photovoltaic power generation (Continued)

Revenue from tariff adjustment for photovoltaic
power generation amounting to Renminbi (“RMB")
395,836,000 (equivalent to HK$478,600,000) (2017:
RMB340,890,000 (equivalent to HK$391,083,000))
from the state grid company in the PRC is recognised in
which the operating solar power plant is still pending
registration in the Catalogue, which is an ongoing
process as the Catalogue is opened for registrations on
a batch by batch basis. These receivables are classified
as contract assets upon application of HKFRS 15 since 1
January 2018. As at 31 December 2018, total contract
assets amounted to HK$1,159,209,000 (1 January
2018: HK$676,829,000).

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
revenue recognition of tariff adjustment is proper
based on their judgement and taking into account
of the opinion from the Group’s PRC legal advisor,
that the Group’s operating solar power plant has
qualified for registration in the Catalogue and has
met all the relevant requirements and conditions for
the registration in the Catalogue. The directors of the
Company are confident that the Group's operating solar
power plant is able to be registered in the Catalogue
in due course and the tariff adjustment receivables are
fully recoverable upon the allocation of funds from the
PRC government.

Deferred tax in respect of temporary differences
attributable to the undistributed profits of subsidiaries
in the PRC

The directors of the Company have assessed the
exposure on deferred tax in respect of the temporary
differences attributable to the undistributed profits of
subsidiaries in the PRC with reference to the Group's
intention to pay dividend, cashflows of the subsidiaries
in the PRC and the overall needs of operating cash of
the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ek ET RS

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z— ) \F+-_A=+—HLLFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Deferred tax in respect of temporary differences
attributable to the undistributed profits of subsidiaries
in the PRC (Continued)

Deferred taxation has not been recognised in respect
of certain undistributed retained profits earned by
the subsidiaries in the PRC starting from 1 January
2008 amounting to HK$981,717,000 (2017:
HK$506,548,000) as the directors are of the opinion
that the Group is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

Provision of ECL for trade receivables (upon application
of HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)
The Group calculates ECL for the trade receivables
individually by considering the debtor’s historical
default rates and forward-looking information that is
reasonable, supportable and available without undue
costs or effort. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are reassessed and changes in
the forward-looking information are considered. The
provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.
The information about the ECL and the Group’s
trade receivables are disclosed in notes 27 and 18,
respectively.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Valuation of trade receivables (before application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)

Estimated allowance for inventories

The management of the Group reviews an aged
analysis at the end of each reporting period, and makes
allowance for obsolete and slow-moving inventory
items identified that are no longer suitable for use in
operation. When estimation of net realisable value is
less than the carrying amount, impairment loss may
arise. As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount
of inventories is HK$33,535,000 (net of allowance for
slowing moving inventories of HK$1,329,000) (2017:
HK$16,433,000 (net of allowance for slow-moving
inventories of HK$863,000)).

Useful lives and impairment assessment of property,
plant and equipment

The management determines the estimated useful
lives, the residual values, and the depreciation method
in determining the related depreciation charges for
its property, plant and equipment. This estimate is
based on the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of property, plant and equipment of similar
nature and functions. In addition, management
assesses impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstance indicate that the carrying amount of
an asset may not be recoverable. Management will
increase the depreciation charge where useful lives are
expected to be shorter than expected, or will write off
or write-down obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned. As at 31 December 2018, the
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment is
HK$322,474,000 (2017: HK$253,407,000).

Estimated provision of sales discount and defective
claims

For the provision of sales discounts and defective claims,
there are no fixed terms of sales discounts and defective
claims entered with customers. The amount is based
on the management’s estimation by reference to the
historical experience on sales discounts and defective
claims from customers. Management’s estimates
and assumptions are reviewed periodically and are
adjusted if necessary. Should any of the estimates and
assumptions change, it may lead to a change in the
provision of sales discounts and defective claims. As at
31 December 2018, the carrying amount of provision of
sales discounts and defective claims is HK$15,930,000
(2017: HK$10,503,000).

4,
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
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+=-—A=+—H " FEKAEA33,535,000
BT (FNBR B SE1F B 2E451,329,0008 70 ) (=
T —+4F 1 16,433,000/8 70 (MBS EFEE
#%863,000567T) ) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z— ) \F+-_A=+—HLLFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.
An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as
follows:

Wz & 70 2P &
AT RASEFE RSO -

2018 2017
—E-N\EFE —ET—+tF

HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TAT

Revenue from photovoltaic power generation Y ARZE T U S (BT 5E)

(Note)
— Sales of electricity —ENHE 183,012 143,545
— Tariff adjustment (Note) —EEFHE(ME) 478,600 391,083
Sales of lighting products RIAEMEE 445,031 421,695
1,106,643 956,323

Note: As stated in sales contract, revenue from photovoltaic
power generation included tariff adjustment from the
state grid company in the PRC based on the prevailing
nationwide government policies on renewable energy
for solar power plants.

For photovoltaic power generation, revenue for the
year is recognised when electricity is generated and
transferred to customer.

For sales of lighting products, revenue for the year
is recognised at a point in time when the control of
goods has transferred, being when the goods have been
transferred to the customer’s specific location.

All sales contracts are for periods of one year or less.
As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price
allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

Information reported to the executive directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker
(“CODM"), for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on the revenues
and profits from different types of business divisions.

The Group’s operating and reportable segments under
HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” are as follows:

(i) Photovoltaic power generation represents
sales of electricity, development, construction,
management and operation of a solar power
plant (“photovoltaic power generation”).

(i) Lighting product business represents the sales
of lighting products including portable lighting
products, shades for the lamps, furniture set and
other home accessory products (“sales of lighting
products”).

No operating segments have been aggregated in
arriving at the reporting segments of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z— ) \F+-_A=+—ALFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WaksIER &)

(Continued)
Segment revenue and results DE R EE
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and UWTAEREEBEI DM AEB KT R EE
results by operating segment. SHT -
For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE
Photovoltaic Sales of
power lighting
generation products
HRBE RHAERHEES
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET
SEGMENT REVENUE g6
External sales SNEREHE 661,612 445,031 1,106,643
Segment profit paiyink 559,308 7,343 566,651
Unallocated income il Sl PN 1,146
Unallocated expenses POz FxZ
— Administrative and — TR EREMAEZ
other expenses (20,129)
- Finance costs — B E R (5.677)
Profit before taxation R F5 /1 e A 541,991
For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-_ZT—tF+-A=1+T—HIFE
Photovoltaic Sales of
power lighting
generation products Total
HIREE REBEEREE 5T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT FHIT T
SEGMENT REVENUE 2k
External sales HNERSYE 534,628 421,695 956,323
Segment profit 55 &B 7 A 465,454 24,078 489,532
Unallocated income TR WA 1,329
Unallocated expenses NFHR2FEZ
— Administrative and — TR EMAZ
other expenses (22,397)
— Finance costs —UBER (9,347)
Profit before taxation B 5 BT g 459,117
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z— ) \F+-_A=+—HLLFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WaksIER &)
(Continued)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) MR EREE(E)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group's accounting policies described in
note 3. Segment profit represents the profit earned by
each segment and hence is arrived at without allocation
of certain income and expenses (including other income,
administrative and other expenses and finance costs).
This is the measure reported to the CODM of the
Company, for the purposes of resources allocation and
assessment of segment performance.

Geographical information
The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong, the
PRC (excluding Hong Kong) and North America.

REDEH SRR BN E3ME M AN KE
SR BEAAR o 2 8 FlHE & D BB i
Ao AU AT TFOEE TWA LR (B
HWA - THREEMAXRFEER):
o WWHRAARRTBEERRARENTT
& METEIRD AL MFHE D BRI -

HEER
REEBEBUNES  FE(TIBERTE) R
=M

Information about the Group’s revenue from external
customers based on the location of goods physically
delivered to and location of electricity transmission
and information about its non-current assets based on
geographical location of the assets:

AEEREBEAEEREINEMH LI NE T
BRr i E D REINBEF W RIZE
ENIELES D HIERDEENER -

Non-current assets
(other than
deferred tax asset)

Revenue from
external customers

ERBEE
REIMEREF Wi QEERIEEERRI)

2018 2017 2018 2017

—E-NF —T—+tF ZEBE-NF —T—+F

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

TET FBTT FExT FATT

Hong Kong BB - - 3,412 4,761

PRC =8 661,612 534,628 317,649 294,040

United States of America EH 441,490 416,704 1,878 2,362

Canada mEXR 3,264 4,320 - -

Others Hith 277 671 - -
Total revenue/ gt

non-current assets IERENEE 1,106,643 956,323 322,939 301,163
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.
(Continued)

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding year
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the
Group are as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

E SRR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z— ) \F+-_A=+—ALFE

WEK D EBERE)

EREEEFZER
RIBEFE  HAKERELEERBI0%H
ER Y amEsmT

2018 2017
—E-N\EFE —E—+F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHxT T

Customer A (Note) ZEPAME) 661,612 534,628
Customer B (Note) ZEB(MzE) 181,693 136,853
Customer C (Note) BEPCH) 111,820 138,966

Note: The revenue from Customer A was derived from
photovoltaic power generation and Customers B and C
were derived from sales of lighting products.

BEE : WEPAREMUW RS R REE - HES
B A1 C B my s 8 K SRR EE dm SR %

OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 6. HKA  KWBERER
2018 2017
—E-N\F —FtF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER T
Government grants (Note a) BB (M sta) 30,865 31,365
Net foreign exchange gain PE 3 W s ) F 58 182 2,426
Bank interest income SRITHIBIA 1,271 903
Imputed interest income on tariff adjustment 3t B FHE E W IER
receivables (Note 18) ZEHF M (F5E18) 25,188 12,699
Remeasurement on discounted present value — &2 BEHEEYK
of tariff adjustment receivables (Note b) I 2 BHIRIRE(MiEED) (31,619) -
Sundry income MBI ES 596 1,980
26,483 49,373
Notes: BT -
(a) The government grants represent the amount received (a) AT 7 Bh T 7 52 B R B B B8 A R4 E b K

from local government by the PRC subsidiary of the
Group in subsidising certain tax payments. Government
grants represent unconditional incentive received in
relation to activities carried out by the Group.

(b) It represents losses recognised from remeasurement
on discounted present value of tariff adjustment
receivables as the management of the Group
considered that the settlement of tariff adjustment
receivables are expected to be delayed to March 2020.

U ER 46 B A TR ST 2 58 BUR
Bl) T2 B 7 S [ 45 2 0 B AT AR B £ 1 1
G

(b)) HEREFISEEHBBEFTIAZERT
REERZER  DERASEEEER
B BEHENEERREBIGRRSTEES
ZEZFRF=A-
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z— ) \F+-_A=+—HLLFE

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. HBBEA
2018 2017
—E-N\F —TtF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THxT THEIT
Finance costs on bank borrowings RITERRENRERN
and bills payable Bri5E A 5,677 9,416
8. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 8. BRBIADER
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THxT THETT
Profit before taxation has been arrived M FL RS B R
at after charging: THI|&IE :
Staff costs, including directors’ remuneration B IA(BIFEEZHE)
(Note 10) (K$7E10)
Salaries and other benefits e LHEMET 61,456 47,047
Retirement benefits schemes contributions RIREFETEIE TR 1,495 1,514
62,951 48,561
Allowance for obsolete and B T S
slow-moving inventories 466 25
Amortisation of intangible asset A B 97 97
Auditor’s remuneration % BRI BN < 1,260 1,200
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses BERARTNTFERA 357,721 333,432
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #1% - &= M&EITE 10,801 6,643
Design and sampling costs, including staff costs &t RiE@RAR - BIF
of HK$4,127,000 (2017: HK$4,165,000) & TR A&4,127,000
BT(ZZT—t4&F:
4,165,000/ 7T) 7,438 7,412
Operating lease rentals KEHEMES
— rented premises —HEwE 14,378 14,938
- photovoltaic facilities — YRR 92,679 88,401
and after crediting: LEstA
Gain on disposal of property, LEWE - BER
plant and equipment Bl 76 -

China Baofeng (International) Limited HEE2 (ER)GRLE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z— ) \F+-_A=+—ALFE

9.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. FBHMAX
2018 2017
—E-N\F —+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHTT
Current taxation: BVEARR A -
- Hong Kong Profits Tax —EBBNEH 3,420 5,606
- PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") —HEEMSH
(TREMFH ) 2,777 2,836
— Withholding tax in the PRC — R EFEIR 2,045 2,116
— Overseas taxation —BHNIE 2 2
8,244 10,560
(Over)underprovision in prior years: AF(BEE) T TEE -
- Hong Kong Profits Tax —BBENER (30) (41)
—EIT —EFEH - 1,276
— Withholding tax in the PRC — TR 2,201 -
— Overseas taxation — BN IR (497) -
1,674 1,235
Deferred taxation (credit) charge (Note 15) IRIEFE (K )T
(MEEE15) (414) 220
Total kL 9,504 12,015
On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council RZE—NEF=ZF=-+—H BB LELE
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill BT —LERBE(E .:T)(%ﬁﬁ)ﬁﬂﬁljﬁ%,z
2017 (the “Bill") which introduces the two-tiered profits ([ZEPEZR])  SIAFSH MBS
tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 B EER_FE—-N\NF=A=+N\H i&é

March 2018 and was gazetted on the following day.
Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity
will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million
will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not
qualifying for the two tiered profits tax rates regime will
continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The directors of the Company considered the amount
involved upon implementation of the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime as insignificant to the consolidated
financial statements. Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated
at 16.5% of the estimated assessable profit for both
years.

BEW UYRBATE BEFMNESHMK
ﬂ'Aﬁ%E@EﬁézmqwmﬁmZm
T8 128.25% 2 B R BT TE - m PR IBE
2,000,000 7T 2 & 5 #1%16.5% 2 T R &K
RIB - THER2HENSHEMAT 2 EEE
B 2 RS B IR E — TR 16.5% UK EIE -

AARNEERSD - EOIREHMAHED R
ZREHEAUBRELREA « FBHE
By ME L 2 fh 5B R B F 2 16.5%
e
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z— ) \F+-_A=+—HLLFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

A subsidiary of the Company, being an enterprise
engaged in public infrastructure projects, under the PRC
Tax Law and its relevant regulations, is entitled to tax
holiday of 3-year full exemption followed by 3-year 50%
exemption on assessable profit commencing from the
respective years in which operating profit was derived.
The subsidiary of the Company which was engaged in
the public infrastructure project has operating profit
since 2016. The EIT incurred during the current year
represents the taxation on the government grants
received from local government by the PRC subsidiary of
the Group in subsidising certain tax payments. The PRC
subsidiary is entitled to an income tax rate of 15% as
it is eligible as encouraged industries in Western China

("Bt R B EEREE").

The withholding tax represented taxation recognised in
respect of the dividend distributed from profit earned
by a subsidiary in the PRC under the Implementation
Regulation of the EIT Law of Mainland China that
requires withholding tax with tax rate of 10% upon the
distribution of such profits to the shareholders.

Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the
estimated assessable profits for the year at the rates of
taxation prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

China Baofeng (International) Limited HEEE (HKR)ERQT

iy A D)
AAR—HREALEERMELNHEAD
A BEPEFARERBEE ARER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 9.
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled
to the profit before taxation per the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as follows:

E SRR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z— ) \F+-_A=+—ALFE

FrieBiBIx ()
FRARBHAYAGRGS AR ER
EROBBATEFIHENT

2018 2017
—B-N\F —T—+t%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHTT
Profit before taxation B BTV A 541,991 459,117
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate at 16.5% BEABFEHHE
(2017: 16.5%) 16.5% st E R I
ZE—+t%F:16.5%) 89,428 75,754
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for AR S R TS 2 2
tax purpose 6,743 2,003
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose 7825 W A KT 75 & (4,964) (2,378)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIERHIBEIER
MG E 5,568 5,269
Effect of tax exemptions granted to FEMB AR ZER R
PRC subsidiaries Mg (93,398) (76,164)
Effect of withholding tax on distributed profits Ht 9 & F H T8 175 59
2 2,045 2,116
Tax effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries — Efth Bl)E#E = /& 2 7
in other jurisdictions MEARNBRGE 2,479 4,239
Underprovision in prior years TETERE 1.674 1,235
Others Hitb (71) (59)
Income tax expense for the year FRAEHREY 9,504 12,015
DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ AND 10. B - FETBAEREEMS

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments paid/payable to the directors
and the chief executive of the Company during both
years are as follow:

MEAFENEN EAARNEERE BT
BABZBIR BN -

2018 2017

—2-N\#F —E L

HK$’000 HK$'000

THxT FH&T

Directors’ fee ok 1,560 1,560
Other emoluments 0 37

— salaries and other benefits —FHe MEMETR 2,103 2,823

— retirement benefits scheme contributions —RIRB I FR 30 49

3,693 4,432
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z— ) \F+-_A=+—HLLFE

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES' AND 10.

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

For the year ended
31 December 2018

Executive directors:
Mr. Dang Yanbao
Mr. Dang Zidong (Chief Executive)
Mr. Gao Jianjun (note b)
Mr. Liu Yuanguan (note b)

Non-executive directors:
Mr. Cheng Hoo
Mr. Chung Kin Shun, Jimmy

Independent non-executive
directors:
Mr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony
Mr. Xia Zuogquan
Mr. Guo Xuewen

Salaries
and other

Retirement
benefits
scheme

EE FETRABREEME(#)

Fees benefits contributions
FER EREF
ik HA3E R FHEER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT FTHET
BEE-E-N\E
+ZA=t—-HLEE
WiTEE:
EEBLAE = 1,863 18 1,881
EERLE(THER) - 240 12 252
BEE LA (Mib) - - - -
2 E LA (MizEb) - - - -
FRTES
HREE 240 = = 240
EERTE 360 - - 360
BUERTES
m#ELE 360 = = 360
Bk2RE 240 = = 240
B E 360 = = 360
1,560 2,103 30 3,693
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10.

E SRR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z— ) \F+-_A=+—ALFE

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES" AND 10. B FETBRAEREEMES(2)

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Retirement

Salaries benefits
and other scheme
benefits  contributions

H2R  RIEF
HIER AR
HK$'000 HK$/000

T T

For the year ended BE-Z—tf
31 December 2017 +-ZB=+—-HILEE
Executive directors: BITES -
Mr. Dang Yanbao EEELAE - 1,863 37 1,900
Mr. Dang Zidong (Chief Executive) % B E 54 (THER) - 240 12 252
Mr. Gao Jianjun RRELE - 360 - 360
Mr. Liu Yuanguan ATERE - 360 - 360
Non-executive directors: FHITES
Mr. Cheng Hoo HxkE 240 - - 240
Mr. Chung Kin Shun, Jimmy BEREE 360 - - 360
Independent non-executive BUFRTES:
directors:
Mr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony =Lt 360 - - 360
Mr. Xia Zuoguan BhakE 240 - - 240
Mr. Guo Xuewen B E 360 - - 360
1,560 2,823 49 4,432
Notes: BE
(a) The executive directors’ emoluments shown above (a) X EBTES ST EREREE
were mainly for their services in connection with the AKARRAEBEHRERESEBZM
management of the affairs of the Company and the & EXAEERTESRBELIERNTE
Group. The emoluments of non-executive directors EyMEEBRSEUAQNTES S HIRM
and independent non-executive directors shown RIEEBzMNE -
above were mainly for their services as directors of the
Company.
(b) During the year ended 31 December 2018, two (b) REz-—ZE=— N\F+-_HA=+—BHIt &

(2017: nil) directors waived emoluments of
HK$1,620,000 (2017: nil).

EomE (ZE—+F  #) EEHRR
UER B 41,620,000 (ZZF—+4F :

z) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z— ) \F+-_A=+—HLLFE

10.

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES' AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals of the Group
included one director for both years. The details of
the emoluments are set out above. The remunerations
of the remaining four highest paid individuals are as

10.

EE FETRABREEME(#)

EEBREHAL

MEEERN AEBREELESHATHEE
—ZEBF - FBHN L - EHRNER
BEATHEHBEINOT

follows:

2018 2017
=E2-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THxT THEIT

Employees ==
— salaries and other benefits —EHehEMETF 12,123 5,194
— discretionary bonus — BB IELT 3,296 2,277
— retirement benefits scheme contributions —RIKAB I FR 99 135
15,518 7,606

The emoluments of these remaining four highest paid
individuals in the Group for the year were within the
following bands:

HK$1,000,001 - HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 BT E
1,500,000/ 7T
2,500,001 T
3,000,000 7T
6,000,001 TE
6,500,000 7T
6,500,001 %
7,000,000 7T

HK$2,500,001 - HK$3,000,000
HK$6,000,001 - HK$6,500,000

HK$6,500,001 - HK$7,000,000

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the five highest paid individuals (including
directors and employees) as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office.

China Baofeng (International) Limited HEE2 (ER)GRLE

HfpMOEAEEREHATRFANBS
EATHER :

2018 2017
—E-N\EFE —E—+F
No. of No. of
Employees Employees
EE®E B8R

2 2

- 2

1 —

1 —

4 4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11.

12.

DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved not to recommend any final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017:
nil).

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based
on the profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$532,487,000 (2017: HK$447,102,000)
and the weighted average number of 611,161,000
ordinary shares (2017: 567,696,000 ordinary shares) of
the Company.

No diluted earnings per share is presented as there were
no potential ordinary shares in issue during the years
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

11.

12.

I RAR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z— ) \F+ZA=1+—HLFE

RS

& 2%&7%%&%@1_7
A=t —BLEFEZERRBMRE
FE) -

BRER

BREARABANDIEADE
A % F 532,487,000 i TE
447,102,000 & T ) N 7/
SEYH R #0611,161,000 H
567,696,0000% &i@A% ) st &

NFE+=
(ZEF—+

73

7l

/—\\,\),\_”

A mﬁ A ;m‘r

| &>
A=A agc

BE w5
-y
T

Bz )\FE-_F—+F+-_A=+—
ALFEAMECETEELTRBR  MIE
E5FREERF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z— ) \F+-_A=+—HLLFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% BERSZHE
Furniture,
Land and Leasehold fixtures and Motor  Construction Solar
buildings improvements  equipment vehicles  in progress  power plant
HENE KA %E
1#HRET £ ET i BRI ABHEER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B TR BT TAL AL Fin
CosT B
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F-A-H 1,910 5,073 8,525 4,264 23,034 37,900 80,706
Exchange adjustment EHAE - 162 153 31 7814 5,524 13,684
Additions HE - % 670 34 17712 - 178,228
Transfer v - - - - (65,152) 65,152 -
At 31 December 2017 RZF—tF+-A=1-A 1,910 5,331 9,348 4,636 142,817 108,576 272,618
Exchange adjustment ERAE - (125) (179) (712) (63) (19,591) 20,030)
Additions HE - - 1,162 3,291 94,592 - 99,045
Disposals ik - - - 654) - - (654)
Transfer ax - - - - (236,292) 236,292 -
At 31 December 2018 W-F-\E+-A=1-H 1,910 5,206 10,331 7,201 1,054 325,277 350,979
ACCUMULATED iR
DEPRECIATION
At 1 January 2017 R=E-+F-A-H 1,066 2178 4872 3,539 - 481 12,136
Exchange adjustment EHAE - 128 101 3 - 200 43
Provided for the year ik 76 1,499 1436 188 - 3444 6,643
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tFT-f=T-H 1142 3,805 6,409 3,730 - 4125 1921
Exchange adjustment ERE - (119) (102) (10 - (622) (853)
Provided for the year EREE 76 1,157 1,509 420 - 7,639 10,801
Disposals HeE - - - (654) - - (654)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\E+ZF=1—H 1218 4843 7816 3486 - 11,142 28,505
CARRYING VALUES BHE
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\E+ZF=1—H 692 363 2515 3715 1,054 314,135 322,474
At 31 December 2017 RZF—tF+-f=1-H 768 1,526 2,939 906 142,817 104,451 253,407
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z— ) \F+-_A=+—ALFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% BERRE®)
(Continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment other FilE HMERBREEBR (EE2IRERN)
than construction in progress are depreciated on a TIABER TOFERIFTE -
straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:
Land and buildings 4% or over the term of +H MAEF 4% IREEB(AREE
the lease, whichever is BAE)
shorter
Leasehold improvements  20% or over the lease term FAEmERE 20% IR EY /T
of rented properties, H(LAREE %)
whichever is shorter
Furniture, fixtures and 20%-33% RE -EER 20% - 33%
equipment B
Motor vehicles 16%—-20% JAE 16% — 20%
Solar power plant 4% KIGEEEE B R 4%
The carrying value of land and buildings comprises: TR EFENERER
2018 2017
—®B-N\F —TtF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FHTT
Land and buildings situated in Hong Kong Bt MEF 692 768
As at 31 December 2018, the Group had pledged its RZE-—NF+ZA=+—H  KXEEE
land and buildings with carrying value of HK$692,000 ERERME A692,0008 L (ZF—+F ¢
(2017: HK$768,000) to secure a general banking facility 768,000/8 7T ) M) i RIEF - ER AR EE
granted to the Group. BT —RBITHEER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z— ) \F+-_A=+—HLLFE

14. PREPAID RENTAL EXPENSES FOR
PHOTOVOLTAIC FACILITIES

Amounts of prepaid rental expenses for

photovoltaic facilities analysed as:
Current BN AR
Non-current JEBNHEA

The Group entered into lease agreements for
photovoltaic facilities with an independent photovoltaic
facilities provider for a rental period from 18 May
2016 to 17 May 2017, with the annual rental
payment amounting to RMB90,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$105,300,000). The Group
has renewed the lease agreement for photovoltaic
facilities for a rental period from 18 May 2017 to
17 May 2019 with total rental payment amounting
to RMB180,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$216,867,000). The full amount was paid in
advance.

China Baofeng (International) Limited HEE2 (ER)GRLE

AXRRERNEEER

2018 2017
—F-N\F

—E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T

SRBEEMNHEE R
SEOMWT -

41,278 107,018
= 45,181
41,278 152,199

AEEE-ZBT HREIEEEBI L —1H
KRR EHERRE BEHE T —<F
AATNBE-Z—+FRA++tH " F
HELEHEAEARY90,000,000 T (FHERLY
105,300,000 70 ) - "EBEEEZ K IKE
wHEwHE HEfa-—_T—+FRAA TN
AE-ZT—-NAFRATtH BHsAEAR
# 180,000,000 7T ( /8 & 7 49216,867,000 /&
JT)  WEH B -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15.

DEFERRED TAXATION 15.
The followings are the major deferred tax (liability) asset
recognised and movements thereon during current and

prior years:

E SRR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z— ) \F+-_A=+—ALFE

ERET IR
LT S F R FRABNE BBEHIE(S
BVEEREEE

Temporary
difference on
unrealised
profits on
Accelerated tax intra-group
depreciation transactions
£BR
ARERS
nE  RERBFEH
RAFE U= e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
THETT TR THT
At 1 January 2017 R-E—+F—AF—H (88) 978 890
Credit (charge) to profit or loss 5+ Az ( BBz HB) 38 (258) (220)
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+F
+ZA=+—H (50) 720 670
(Charge) credit to profit or loss ( B8z ) st ABas (182) 596 414
At 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F
+=-—A=+—8H (232) 1,316 1,084

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances
for financial reporting purposes:

Deferred tax asset EEFTBEE
Deferred tax liability ELEFIRAE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had unused tax losses of HK$118,467,000 (2017:
HK$84,723,000) available for offset against future
profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the tax losses due to the unpredictability of
future profits streams of these subsidiaries.

AT BRI R E R BAA RO

2018 2017
—E-N\F —EF—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THxT THEIT
1,316 720
(232) (50)
1,084 670

RB|ERR  AEEBZ2APAREEES
118,467,000 0 ( — & —+ 4 : 84,723,000
BIT) A AEHE RS F o AR REETERIZ
EWBRRIAMRIGEF IR - A EFFIE
EEERELERBEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z— ) \F+-_A=+—HLLFE

15.

16.

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
HK$16,989,000 (2017: HK$15,800,000) that will expire
within 5 years and losses of HK$28,978,000 (2017:
HK$18,374,000) that will expire within 20 years, other
tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

Deferred taxation has not been recognised in respect
of certain undistributed retained profits earned by the
subsidiaries in the PRC amounting of HK$981,717,000
(2017: HK$506,548,000) as the directors are of the
opinion that the Group is able to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

INTANGIBLE ASSET

15.

16.

EEBIE (2)
RERORBEEESEBEERF R HNE
816,989,000/ 7L ( =& —+4 : 15,800,000
B IT) MG E — +F R EIHIA E51828,978,000
BIT(ZZF—+4F :18,374,000/87T) » HMF
TH &5 18 0] MR B4k e -

AEBFMNBARRNPBEMBIRMNETFT RS
KRB % A4 %8981,717,0008 L (— T —+
F 1 506,548,000/8 70 ) WEMERIELER I8 -
THRESR AN EE A58 R EEa i
ClEF R M Z BB R AR RE AR R A5 ke E -

BVEE

Brand name

R hE
HK$'000
TET
COST R
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 and RZEB—+F—A—HB - ZF—+F+=A
31 December 2018 =t+—BAERZZT-N\F+=ZA=1+—H 966
AMORTISATION By
At 1 January 2017 R_ZE—tF—H—H 307
Charge for the year FAZH 97
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+=-_A=+—8H 404
Charge for the year FREZH 97
At 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F+=—_A=+—8 501
CARRYING VALUES ARMEIE
At 31 December 2018 RZE—NF+=ZHA=+—8H 465
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+ZHA=+—H 562

The brand name has finite useful life and is amortised on
a straight-line basis over 10 years.

China Baofeng (International) Limited HEE2 (ER)GRLE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z— ) \F+-_A=+—ALFE

17.

18.

INVENTORIES 17. &EE
2018 2017
=E2-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Finished goods B2URK Th 33,535 16,433
During the year, there was a write-down of inventories FE RN FEEL66,0008 T (= —+4F -
amounting to HK$466,000 (2017: HK$25,000) which 25,0000 70) + WHIHE K AT o
was recognised in cost of sales.
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. B ZRHAEWIE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade receivables 2 5 W EIE 149,819 155,709
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts B RIZER2EE (823) (823)
148,996 154,886
Tariff adjustment receivables (Note a) BERAREWHIE (M Ea) - 676,829
Bills receivables (Note b) FEW A (5Eb) 12,159 1,307
Other receivables and prepayment o Ath fE Y SR IE R FE S IR 12,712 22,018
173,867 855,040
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z— ) \F+-_A=+—HLLFE

18.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Notes:

(a)

The Group's trade receivables and tariff adjustment
receivables for the photovoltaic power generation are
receivables from the state grid company. Generally, the
trade receivables are due within 30 days from the date
of billing, except for collection of the tariff adjustment
receivables, which is subject to settlement by state grid
company upon registration of the solar power plant
in the Catalogue by the Group. As the collection of
tariff adjustment receivables is expected in the normal
operating cycle, which may be more than 1 year, they
are classified as current assets.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
revenue recognition of tariff adjustment is proper
based on their judgement and taking into account
the opinion from the Group’s PRC legal advisor, that
the Group’s operating solar power plant has qualified
for registration in the Catalogue, and has met all
the relevant requirements and conditions for the
registration in the Catalogue. The directors of the
Company are confident that the Group’s operating
solar power plant is able to be registered in the
Catalogue in due course and the tariff adjustment
receivables are fully recoverable upon the allocation of
funds from the PRC government.

Upon application of HKFRS 15 on 1 January 2018, tariff
adjustment receivables was reclassified as “Contract
assets” as required by HKFRS 15 and is disclosed in
note 19.

All bills received by the Group are within a maturity
period of less than one year.

China Baofeng (International) Limited HEEE (HKR)ERQT

18.

B K EMmBYRIEE)

P aE -
(a)

AEBESRWARARKARZEEEERE
EWFEREREREMRFFIE - &

EWRIBERENERAYEFT30R R
H HEFAEBENESELAGERE
BRi& 7 Re B REHE R RIKE ) EBRHE
FEU R AIRR SN - MRNTAHIRIER 28R
B (il — ) AR O E B2 EUR
B HEEABRBRRESBERRBDEE -

ARBEBER R REBEHHE W MAK
EhEEEEENERYEERNEELZ
WHERBINE - AEEPBEERERR
B ARBRENRGEZRERCHEE
RRBEER  LmeETABHNME
BREXRRGN - ARAEERE  AK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

The Group allows credit period with a range from 30
to 90 days to its customers. A longer credit period
may be granted to large or long established customers
with good payment history. The following was an
aged analysis of trade receivables net of allowance for
doubtful debts presented based on the invoice date for
sales of goods and electricity transmitted dates at the
end of the reporting period, which approximated the
respective revenue recognition dates.

0 to 30 days 0&30H

31 to 60 days 31260H
61 to 90 days 61290H
Over 90 days ##3B90H

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses
the credit quality of each potential customer and
defines credit rating and limit for each customer. In
addition, the Group has reviewed the repayment history
of receivables by each customer with reference to the
payment terms stated in contracts to determine the
recoverability of a trade receivable.

As at 31 December 2018, included in the Group’s
trade receivables balance are debtors with aggregate
carrying amount of HK$23,792,000 which are past due
as at the reporting date. Out of the past due balances,
HK$1,777,000 has been past due 90 days or more and
the directors of the Company considered there has
no default occurred as these trade receivables are still
considered fully recoverable due to long term/on-going
relationship and good repayment record from these
customers.

18.

I RAR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z— ) \F+-_A=+—ALFE

B R EMmBYREE)

AEBEGETHEPNFI0E0BMNEER -
BENEEHAER TNHRLERIHAT
FRERYRMEBRIENETS - TRED
RBERROE HRKIE - HRRERE
B RERHEEXRRAHMLENBHANZ

SRR D AT - 2 EF A EE R g amiER
B R

2018 2017
—B-N\E —TtF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT T
53,031 54,243
32,343 31,557
22,608 34,855
41,014 34,231
148,996 154,886

REZTMHEFH  ARESHEERE
EPMEEERRATEREPNERENK
TMIREE - o - ARBEERHESREPBE
BERUHIBEN S  WE2E QLMY
BRI - AETEE S B FRR AT YL Bl

RZE—-NE+-_A=+—HB A£EDHE
SEWGBE S B ERE#E 523,792,000
BITHWBEWER  BEERERNREAHa
By - REHIRRREEAR - 1,777,000 0B B Hf
BIBIOKRIA L HRERFAERE
BEGEEARRTERLE  ZS5EHEWK
REDNEABEKE  BRARREER
BRERBEMELIREY -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z— ) \F+-_A=+—HLLFE

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. EZNHMEWRIE &)

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, included in the Group's RZE—+tF+-_A=+—H A£EENE
trade receivable balance were debtors with aggregate 5 FE WK IE 45 82 B 45 BR TH 4218 /3 34,702,000
carrying amount of HK$34,702,000, which were BITHEWARR  BERIEDEE - EAE
past due for which the Group had not provided EWER M EHRERBERE AEETE
for impairment loss. The Group did not hold any MZEEBTETMNERD - ZFEKHKIE
collateral over these balances. Such receivables related HEZAEFPAR  HEe W KI5 HIE -
to a number of customers from which substantial ZEB BB RRDTAOT ¢

subsequent settlements were received. The aging
analysis of these trade receivables was as follows:

2017
e E
HK$'000
TATT
Overdue by: O @R -

1 to 30 days 1£30H 23,327
31 to 60 days 31260H 6,365
61 to 90 days 61£90H 1,875
Over 90 days HBim90H 3,135
34,702

Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts of trade BoREIWRIE RIEEBEEMNT ¢

receivables were as follows:

2017
—E—+fF
HK$'000
FHTT
At 1 January n—H—H 990
Amounts recovered during the year FREHKEFHIE (167)
At 31 December RNt+—A=+—8H 823
As at 31 December 2017, included in the allowance R-ZE—+F+-_A=+—H REEEHB
for doubtful debts are individually impaired trade BIEEBREESEKRZE  HO&a A5
receivables with aggregate balance of HK$823,000. 823,000/ T °
Details of impairment assessment of trade and other FEEE_ZTE—N\Ft+_A=+—HIFE
receivables for the year ended 31 December 2018 are B 5 I H At B UGN IE R (B S A M R B A B
set out in note 27. F27 °
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19.

20.

CONTRACT ASSETS

As at 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2018, the
contract assets represent the tariff adjustment
receivables amounting to HK$1,159,209,000 and
HK$676,829,000, respectively. The amount would be
received based on the prevailing national government
policies on renewable energy. The contract assets are
transferred to trade receivables when the Group’s
respective operating solar farm is registered in the
Catalogue pursuant to prevailing national government
policies on renewable energy for solar farms. As the
collection of tariff adjustment receivables is expected
in the normal operating cycle, which may be delayed
to March 2020, they are classified as current assets.
Please refer to note 18 for details of tariff adjustment
receivables.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

Bank deposits and bank balances carry interest at
market rates which range from 0.01% to 2.05% per
annum as at 31 December 2018 (2017: 0.01% to
0.80% per annum).

The Group's bank balances and cash that are
denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the relevant groups entities are set out
below:

HK$
RMB

BT
AR

Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to
banks to secure bank facilities granted to the Group.
Deposits amounting to RMB1,349,000 (equivalent to
HK$1,533,000) (2017:RMB79,500,000 (equivalent to
HK$95,783,000)) have been pledged to secure the
issuance of bills payable, and therefore classified as
current assets. As at 31 December 2018, no deposit
(2017: RMB25,700,000 (equivalent to HK$30,964,000))
was pledged to secure short-term bank borrowings.

19.

20.

I RAR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z— ) \F+ZA=1+—HLFE

EREE
R-_E—NF+_A=4+—BRZZT—N\4F
—A—B " AHEEEESEFABREBUZES
Al A& 1,159,209,000 /& JT M 676,829,000 /&
L WEREEBEA BEERNRITERE
R WEGRIE - EHEEBRERBANG
REEBSHAEERORITEREBMBEER
AEBRKENARIGEZRE SN B P ERLH
ERTESENGIE - ARTEHREEEE
BH(FEERE-_E-_ZEFE=A)RNKEE
BREEENRE  NEEAEERZESE
BRBEE BHEEHBERWFIENGIE
EELlEAEE

BEMRTER RTEHRRES

RZEBE-NE+_A=+—08  #IEZE
RITHEBUMSEFFNEVIEE2.05B(ZF
—+&F  ERKQ.01EE0.80FE)TE °

AEBEAEBEEEERDEERE UINEREE
BENRTTESRLBESEIMT

2018 2017
—E-NF —F—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FET
133 374

15 12

BEFRTEFERIEEF FRITURERE T
AEBNBRITHRENTR - TRARE
1,349,000 7T ( #8 & 7 1,533,000 7T ) ( —
T —+F: AR¥79,500,0007w (HER
95,783,000/ 70) ) E LIS RITENE
B RAkSsBEARDEE R_Z—N\F+
“A=Z+—8 WEFTFERUREEER
TER(ZE—CF : AR¥25,700,0007T
(FBE1230,964,000%7T)) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z— ) \F+-_A=+—HLLFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 21. BEFRHMENSRKE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FHTT
Trade payables B SR I8 67,261 67,282
Bills payable for purchase of property, EEWE  BEREE
plant and equipment 2 ENEE 1,533 95,783
Accrued sales commission [EETIHE RS 701 617
Construction payables JE T2 508 39,196 29,918
Other payables and accruals H i B~ 5RE R B AT RE 20,327 11,422
129,018 205,022
The credit period granted by suppliers to the Group HEPATAEERIOEORMNZEH - T&
ranged from 30 to 60 days. The following is an aging HI A RERARNE S EMNTIEIRZEEZAH
analysis of trade payables presented based on the Z2HHEER DT :

invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

2018 2017
—EB-NF —F—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAT
0 to 30 days 0£30H 44,091 35,215
31 to 60 days 31260H 19,602 23,772
61 to 90 days 61290H 1,371 7,787
Over 90 days HBiE0H 2,197 508
67,261 67,282
22. PROVISION 22. & ‘ )
The balance represents the provision of defective claims, RAIERAERERE  UTREENES

and the movements of provision are as follow:

HK$'000
TAT

At 1 January 2017 WZE—tF—H—H 7,145
Charge to profit or loss BBk 12,715
Utilisation of provision B A (9,357)
At 31 December 2017 R-ZE—+F+-_A=+—H 10,503
Charge to profit or loss BEZ R 19,087
Utilisation of provision BB A (13,660)
At 31 December 2018 R-E—-NFE+=-—RA=1+—H 15,930
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22.

23.

24,

PROVISION((Continued)

There are no fixed terms of provision of sales discounts
and defective claims stated in the sales agreements
entered with customers. The amount of provision is
based on the management’s estimation by reference to
the historical experience. The Group accrued liability for
potential defective claims at the time of sale to cover
potential liabilities that could arise under these sales
transactions.

AMOUNT DUE TO ULTIMATE HOLDING
COMPANY

The amount was non-trade nature, unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand.

BANK BORROWINGS

The carrying amount of the secured bank
borrowings that contains a repayment
on demand clause (shown under current
liabilities) but repayable:

Within one year

As at 31 December 2017, the bank borrowings
represented bank loans denominated in HK$ and carried
interest ranging from Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate (“HIBOR") plus 1.7% per annum to HIBOR plus
2.95% per annum. The bank loans were secured by
pledge of 252,600,000 shares of the Company held by
Fung Teng Enterprises Limited, which is wholly-owned
by Mr. Dang Yanbao, the Chairman and executive
director of the Company. During the year, the pledge of
shares was fully released upon repayment of the bank
loans.

The Group’s bank borrowing that is denominated in
a currency other than the functional currency of the
relevant group entity is set out below:

HK$ BT

22.

23.

24.

E SRR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z— ) \F+-_A=+—ALFE

B

B 5 5T LAY 5 6 thh 0 30 A B R I 0 R
BERERBOEEGRR - BB BRER
ER2ZB/ERLRMG - ARERHEER
BEREREBEREABUENZFZHERS
PRELEEEE -

BAHRKREZERATRE
FARFEHME - BIEARARBERER -

2018
—B-N\F

2017
—EF—+F
HK$'000
F&T

HK$°000
FERT

FERX THIMEEE 2 G
MIRITRERAOMREE
BBREREEFR
(ZIRRBEE)
—F2ZR

= 275,500

R-ZZE—+HE+-A=+—8 - BI7ERE
WAB T ENRITETIEN TEBRITRE
KEB(IEARTRERE D M IBEZEE
RITRERSM295FE 2 EF K8 o I
RITEFBHARAREIRRINTESTEEZEL
F2BHRBZEBCEBRARFART
252,600,000/ & R - AER - TP
BRNMERIRTTERE BB -

AEENHBEEEER 2 NEEBAINNE
BEHEMRITEREIOT

2018
—B-N\fE

2017
—E—+F
HK$'000
FHET

HK$'000
FERT

- 250,000

Annual Report 2018 —Z— \F &

137



138

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A BTSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z— ) \F+-_A=+—HLLFE

25. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
at 1 January 2017,
31 December 2017 and
31 December 2018

AT

Issued and fully paid: BETRERE :
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
at 1 January 2017 and
31 December 2017
Issue of ordinary shares BITEBRR
At 31 December 2018

During the year, 96,150,000 ordinary shares with par
value of HK$0.01 per share of the Company have been
placed to its ultimate holding company, Fung Teng
Enterprises Limited, at the price of HK$2.6 per share.
The shares issued rank pari passu in all respects among
themselves and with the existing issued shares.

26. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group manages its capital to ensure that it will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximising
the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall
strategy remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes the amount due to ultimate holding
company and bank borrowings disclosed in notes 23
and 24, respectively, net of cash and cash equivalents
and equity attributable to owners of the Group,
comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The management of the Group reviews the capital
structure regularly, taking into account of the
cost and risk associated with the capital. Based on
recommendations of the management of the Group, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through
the payment of dividends and issue of shares.

China Baofeng (International) Limited HEE2 (ER)GRLE

25.

RZE—NF+=—A=+—H

26.

V&N

Share
capital
[
HK$'000
THETT

Number of
shares

R BE

FRMEEO0.01E L L@k
RZZE—+tF—HA—H"
—E—+F+-A=1+—8H
F=E-NF+_A=+—¢H

SREEO.0ET Y XK
W-F—t#—A—AR
—F—+5+=A=1—A

800,000,000 8,000
567,696,000 5,677

96,150,000 961
663,846,000 6,638

RFER AR ERBEELCNNEITZ
96,150,000/ L BAX 2 AT 2.678 T 2 BI&
REFERKRIERARIEBLCEBRAG -
ZERMRE TER L 2B RERGE T
f&tn =B REHAL o

EXmpEE
ARBEEBHAAR  SEEBERGRER
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ETES T3 PRCERENY EOLR P
B A R T o
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MeE23 R 24 TER BN SRR AR RIE R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Categories of financial instruments

27a.

27b.

Financial assets W EE
Financial assets at amortised cost

Loans and receivables (including

bank balances and cash)
Financial liabilities g atk
Amortised cost B EH AR AR

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
trade and other receivables, pledged bank
deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and
other payables, amount due to ultimate holding
company and bank borrowings. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (including
currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

WA ENM IS EE
B R IR (B IERTT
EHRRERE)

E SRR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z— ) \F+-_A=+—ALFE

BT A

B3 T B A
2018 2017
—E2—N\EF —E—4F
HK$000 HK$’000
THxT THEIT
250,889 -
= 1,040,765
114,096 468,483

27b. HEEAREEBEEREE

AEENTIZRNHIAREES M
Hp U R 2 BWRITER
RITEHEAS  BEHREMERNRK
B BAREER AR RENMRITE
Ko ZERBTAFBERSBBME
WE - HAREVKIAMBENRRE
TS E R (B E B E R & EE
@) EERRIERBE SRR o
PRARZEFR R BREN T X - B
BEBEREZZERR - ARRERKLE
B REGEE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z— ) \F+-_A=+—HLLFE

27.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk

27b.

(i)

Currency risk

The Group has limited currency exposure
as the majority of the revenue were
denominated in functional currency of the
relevant group entities.

The carrying amounts of the Group's
foreign currency denominated monetary
assets and liabilities at the end of the
reporting date are as follows:

27. BM#%IEA#E)
27b. MERMEEAERKE (&)

5 E R

(i) B R
A A N 68 B K B0 0 e ek A AE B
SEER2HEEEFE B
AEZHNEERERRAR

REREHR - KEBUAINE
AEMEBEERGEMNER
[EPOENE

Assets
HK$
RMB

Liabilities
HK$

Assets and liabilities denominated in HK$
mainly represented bank balances placed
with banks and bank borrowing held by
a group entity with US$ as functional
currency. As HK$ is pegged to US$, the
exposure to fluctuations in exchange
rate of HK$ against US$ is considered
insignificant.

No sensitivity analysis for the currency
risk is prepared as the directors of the
Company consider the impact of such
foreign currency risk is insignificant.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

27b.

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk in relation to variable-
rate bank balances and variable-rate
bank borrowings. The Group’s cash flow
interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on HIBOR arising from the Group’s bank
borrowings.

The directors consider the Group’s
exposure of the bank balances to interest
rate risk is not significant as interest
bearing bank balances are within short
maturity period and thus it is not included
in the sensitivity analysis.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have
been determined based on the exposure
to interest rates for non-derivative
instruments at the end of the reporting
period. For interest bearing bank
borrowings, the analysis is prepared
assuming the amount of liabilities
outstanding at the end of the reporting
period was outstanding for the whole
period. A 50 basis points (2017: 50)
increase or decrease is used which
represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

If interest rate on interest bearing bank
borrowings had been 50 basis points
higher/lower and all of other variables
were held constant, the profit for the year
ended 31 December 2017 would have
decreased/increased by approximately
HK$1,150,000.

I RAR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE-F—\F+-A=+—AILFE

27. MBI A

27b.

BEEREEEERBE(E)

g ()

(i)

FIEER
K 45 B 5 7 8 SR R 7T A A T
AR ERBRTERAZRS R
EFREMR - AEEZ B2 R
EFEAREBEARNAEM
AT RRATS 2 BRI Z
78 -

mRE B RITERE G NE
HIAEH  REZARAEE
$R1T7 45 R H B 7O A X &L 3E A
EX AT RBERHRE
DMZA e

BURRE DT

AT RE DT TR k& B R
ERTATAZARARE
E o BRETERITER  ZH
WMIHRBRERREHRZAEE
BEeEREEAREHRNYRE
EMEE - FASERER (==
—t & 50EEZ)M AT
BRERREEEHAERAEF
RE 7 5 o

st BERITERF R EFH T
FESOEE S B A Hih 8 8 1%
B BBRE-_T—+4+
“A=t+—BUHEEZHMT
%, FFH491,150,0005 7T o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z— ) \F+-_A=+—HLLFE

27.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

27b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
which will cause a financial loss to the Group
due to failure to discharge an obligation by
the counterparties is arising from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements to cover
its credit risks associated with its financial assets.

The Group has significant concentration of
credit risk. At 31 December 2018, 89% (2017:
83%) of the total trade receivables and contract
assets/tariff adjustment receivables was due
from the Group’s largest customer, while 98%
(2017: 97%) of the total trade receivables and
contract assets/tariff adjustment receivables was
due from the Group’s five largest customers
at 31 December 2018. These customers have
good repayment history and credit quality under
internal assessment by the Group.The Group
has no significant concentration of credit risk on
financial assets other than trade receivable and
contract assets/tariff receivables, with exposure
spread over a number of counterparties.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated the
responsible personnel for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and the directors
of the Company continuously monitor the
level of exposure by frequent review of the
credit evaluation qualities of its customers to
ensure prompt actions will be taken to lower
exposure. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk
is significantly reduced. The Group performs
impairment assessment under ECL model upon
application of HKFRS 9 (2017: incurred loss
model) on trade balances individually.

China Baofeng (International) Limited HEEE (HKR)ERQT

27.

MBI R
27b. BBEAMEEBERBEK(E)
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tF 83% ) MEFERFEREHNE
BB UG E AR T R U AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

27b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Upon adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018,
the Group applies the simplified approach to
provide for ECL prescribed by HKFRS 9, which
permits the use of the lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and contract assets.

Management assessed the expected loss on
trade receivables individually by estimation based
on historical observed default rates, general
economic conditions of the industry in which
the debtors operate and an assessment of both
the current as well as the forecast direction of
conditions at the reporting date.

In addition, the management is of the opinion
that there has no default occurred for trade
receivables past due over 90 days and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable
due to long term/on-going relationship and good
repayment record from these customers.

As part of the Group’s credit risk management,
the Group assesses the impairment for its
customers in relation to its operation of sales
of lighting products individually by considering
the debtor’s historical default rates and
forward-looking information that is reasonable,
supportable and available without undue
costs or effort. As at 31 December 2018, the
expected losses rate of these non-credit impaired
customers in relation to the operation of sales
of lighting products is minimal, given there is
no history of significant defaults from customer
and insignificant impact from forward-looking
estimations. The assessed ECL for non-credit
impaired customers are not significant. ECL of
HK$823,000 was provided on credit-impaired
balance during the year.

I RAR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
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27. MBI A

27b.

BEEREEEERBE(E)
EERR K BEF G ()
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 27. BT A
27b. Financial risk management objectives and 27b. MEEREEBEERBE(E)

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The following table shows the movement in
lifetime ECL that has been recognised for trade
receivables under the simplified approach.

Lifetime ECL
(not credit-

Impaired)

Y

FEER
(BEERE)
HK$’000
FHERT

EERR LR E L (B)
TRIVIREBIETDEERE 5 R

= gy

FARRH2PEDERERLD -

Lifetime ECL

(credit-
impaired)
2 HFEH
FEEE
(EERE)
HK$’000
F&ET

As at 1January 2018 and  R=-T—/\4#F
December 2018 —H—HK
—E-NF+HA

The Group writes off a trade receivables when
there is information indicating that the debtor
is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the
debtor has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or when
the trade receivables are over three years past
due, whichever occurs earlier.

For contract assets/tariff adjustment receivables,
the debtor is a state grid company and the
directors of the Company considered the
impairment on the trade receivables generated
from photovoltaic power generation and the
contract assets/tariff adjustment receivables
are insignificant to the Group. The contract
assets/tariff adjustment receivables is subject
to settlement by the state grid company upon
registration in the Catalogue.

In respect of bills receivables, the credit risk is
limited as the Group has procedures and policies
in place to ensure they are from banks with high
credit quality.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27.
27b.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

In determining the ECL for other receivables,
the management of the Group has taken into
account the historical default experience and
forward-looking information, as appropriate,
for example, the group has considered the
consistently low historical default rate in
connection with payments, and concluded that
credit risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding
other receivables is insignificant.

The management of the Group considers the
pledged bank deposits and bank balances are
short-term in nature and the probability of
default is negligible on the basis of high-credit-
rating issuers, and accordingly, loss allowance
was considered as insignificant.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows.

The following tables detail the Group’s
remaining contractual maturity for its non-
derivative financial liabilities based on the agreed
repayment terms. The tables have been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest dates
on which the Group can be required to pay. The
table includes both undiscounted cash flows and
principal cash flows.

I RAR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
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27b. BBEAMEEBERBEK(E)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z— ) \F+-_A=+—HLLFE

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 27. BT A
27b. Financial risk management objectives and 27b. HERAREEBEEEREE(E)
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) TEBEwERE (&)
Liquidity tables TEE %

Weighted

average Total

effective  Repayable Within 3 undiscounted Total carrying
interest rate  on demand months  cash flows amount

IRk RER
FoAE  REXRE  OMMEA ReRERE REERE
) HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR

At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+ZA=+-H

Trade and other payables BAREMENTIE - - 106,096 106,096 106,096
Amount due to ultimate RSB ERRRFE
holding company - 8,000 - 8,000 8,000

8,000 106,096 114,096 114,096

At 31 December 2017 RZBE-tF+=-R=1-H
Trade and other payables ZEREMERTE - - 192,983 192,983 192,983
Bank borrowings RITER 3.5 275,500 - 275,500 275,500

275,500 192,983 468,483 468,483

Note: As at 31 December 2017, the bank borrowings Mz : R=T—+tF+=ZA=+—H8 A&
with a repayment on demand clause were IR EREEIETHETEIEA
included in the “repayable on demand” time LA FRIEB R DT [1REREZ |
band in the above maturity analysis. Taking RFESER - &£ BNEB NI
into account the Group’s financial position, R RATEERABRITIBITE
the directors of the Company did not believe HEISHEEREIRFERNA T
that it was probable that the banks would ® e ANEIEEMRE  ZBITER
exercise its discretionary right to demand EIRERITE RS E T EE
immediate repayment. The directors of the DEHRNHEHRE—FRNEEN
Company believed that such bank borrowings T

would be repaid within one year after the end
of the reporting period in accordance with
the scheduled repayment date set out in bank
borrowing agreements as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —T—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHTT
Aggregate principal and [EERAS RFEHRS
interest cash outflows repayable: pipkaek L E-E]
Within one year —&FR - 277,622
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27.

28.

E SRR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z— ) \F+-_A=+—ALFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 27. BIEIER®)
27c. Fair value 27c. A¥E

The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis. The directors of
the Company consider that the carrying amounts
of all financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair
values.

MBEEERMBABHAFEDIRE
AREBRANMBRRSRENNE
T ARAEERREAMBHHRRTP
PIT 78 4% 8 56 A AN 5 B B9 B 75 B B Je B
BaENEEEREAFERES

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 28. HEBSIHELSEBHNYE

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TRENAKSEEREFTDELENEENE
arising from financing activities, including both cash BFE EEReRIIEEZH  METH
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing EENERERBAREREIRKREERE
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future DERGEHReRERNRERE - 1ERR
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated BEHHEeRENAE -

statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing
activities.

Amount
due
to ultimate
holding Bank Interest
company borrowings [EVEL][S
EAHRA
ERATRE RITER EMARE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT T FHT
At 1 January 2017 RN-_Z—+&—HF—H - 250,000 - 250,000
Financing cash flows MERERE - 25,500 (9,416) 16,084
Finance costs BhE A R - - 9,416 9,416
At 1 December 2017 iR
+=—HA—H - 275,500 - 275,500
Financing cash flows MEBERE 8,000 (275,500) (5,677) (273,177)
Finance costs BE R AR - - 5,677 5,677
At 31 December 2018 RZTE—)\F
+-A=+—H 8,000 - - 8,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R ISR AR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z— ) \F+-_A=+—HLLFE

29. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2018, no bank deposits (2017:
RMB25,700,000 (equivalent to HK$30,964,000)) were
pledged to a bank to secure bank borrowings of the
Group and bank deposits of RMB1,349,000 (equivalent
to HK$1,533,000) (2017: RMB79,500,000 (equivalent
to HK$95,783,000)) were pledged to a bank for issue
of bills payable. The Group's land and buildings with
carrying value of HK$692,000 (31 December 2017:
HK$768,000) were pledged to a bank to secure banking
facilities granted to the Group.

30. OPERATING LEASES

The Group as lessee

Minimum lease payments recognised under

29.

30.

KHEE
RZE-NE+_A=+—8 " EERT
FHR(ZZE—tF : AR¥ 25,700,000 7T
(*H*J‘No 964,00078 7T ) ) B FIR1T A

BALEBZHRITER  MBITERAR
ﬁ%1,349,00075(7@“‘%1,533,000,%75)(_
T —+F: AR¥79,500,0007 (HE R
95,783,00070) ) E B FIRITARITENE
B o KREEREEGI,0008T(ZE—+4F
+=—A=+—H : 768,000/ T ) 1+ i & I&
FERBTFRITUNESETFAEENRITEER
BB -

RERs
FEEEREEA

2018
—E-N\F

2017
—t%
HK$'000
TAT

HK$°000
FERT

FAHBmE R

operating leases in respect of rented premises  RELZHEE T
and photovoltaic facilities during the year B &EEEFRIE 107,057 103,339

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as
follows:

Within one year —FR
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_ERF
Over five years iR N EF

Operating lease payments represents rentals payable
by the Group for certain of its staff quarters and office
premises. Leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed for
lease terms ranging from one to six years (2017: one to
three years).
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2018 2017
—E-N\F —t &
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31.

32.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The
assets of the scheme are held separately from those
employees of the Group, in funds under the control of
trustees. The Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll
costs with the maximum monthly amount of HK$1,500
to the scheme, which contribution is matched by
employees.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the
PRC are members of a state-managed retirement
benefits scheme operated by the PRC government. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a specified range
of payroll costs to the retirement benefits scheme to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the
specified contributions.

The Group's subsidiaries in United States of America
(“USA") operate defined contribution schemes.
Contributions to the defined contribution schemes are
made at a certain percentage of the employee’s payroll.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of
HK$1,495,000 (2017: HK$1,514,000) for the year
ended 31 December 2018 represents contributions
payable to these schemes. As at 31 December 2018,
contributions of HK$96,000 (2017: HK$38,000) due
in respect of the reporting period had not been paid
over to these schemes. The amount were paid over
subsequently to the end of the reporting period.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

31.

32.

I RAR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z— ) \F+ZA=1+—HLFE

RKERGTE

AEBEREHEEAEREERIBHIMER
Eaitd  ZAtEEERAANKEREEZEE
DEKE  FRAXTEAMEGNESA -
REE A% BIE L BRI 2K AS5% /0 H
K BAKSLERI,50087T - ZHKERE
BFTEH BT -

AEETENBEARNEERTEBGZE
MBREEERENTEKE - ZFHBER
BRI $r & AR B 15 E 8 [ AR IR AR A 5 3
TEH R o R B IRIRE G B ME—F
EREREEMRRK -

AEBEENESRE([XE]) B QAR
ERMRGETE - EEHFGENREEF
M)A T B DR SR -

HE-_Z—-N\F+-_A=+—HILEFE  R®
BHMER 2T A% 51,495,000 (=
—+tF 11,514,000 70) © HHERZETE
EAHER - R=E—NF+-_A=+—8"
WABZSEITE TN MBERRE M2
3 596,000/ 7T ( —F —+ £ : 38,0005
TC) ° ZFBEBRSRERRI A -

BERERE

2018
—EB-N\F

2017
—ET—+tF
HK$'000
FHET

HK$'000
FET

Capital expenditure in respect of the acquisition YEEME - KE &

of property, plant and equipment contracted
but not provided for

REBHEAF -
EEEEIGE S 3

15,155 44,830
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
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33. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 33.
(a) Transaction with a related company
Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group had also entered
into the following transaction with a related

party:

Name of related party Nature of transaction
BEALER RZHEE

REALTHE

(a) EHBRELARFTINXS
BRieMBHRREMIBY ARESE

Oh - REEBEBEEAT TV TR

5

2018 2017
—E-)N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET

FEEEARMISZER AT Service income (Note)

ARAS A A (B &E)

Note: ZEEBEZENXKFEFTHMR DA, an indirectly
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a service agreement with 22 &
WARKISER AT, a company established
in the PRC which is controlled by Mr. Dang
Yanbao, the Chairman and executive director
of the Company, with an annual service income
of RMB28,400 (equivalent to HK$34,000)
(2017: equivalent to HK$32,000).

(b) Compensation of key management
personnel
The remuneration of key management personnel
is determined by the management of the
Company having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

China Baofeng (International) Limited HEE2 (ER)GRLE

34 32

i : AARzHEZENBRARIZES
LRREEFRAFEEEELD
REEISAER AR (ABRFERIAH
AR AARAEFERATESE
EBLEZETLRBEED  F
ER%ERAAARK?28,4007T (8
Z£134,000%70) (20174 : HER
32,000/87T) °

(b) FEEBASHMH

TBEBABCMENEFELESE
BARRETSBBRET -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B mRM
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34,

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY

Name of subsidiary

WEAREH

Directly owned

ERER

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

AL,

Principal
place of
operation

B 3t B FTREXWH

Mastercraft Worldwide Limited The British Virgin ~ BVI

Jing Pai Management Limited

RAERBRAR

Stand Nice Limited
AILBRAE

Indirectly owned

MEEs

Mastercraft International
Limited

SHEEEERAT

Mastercraft China Limited
SHETEERATF

Mastercraft Home Furnishing
Development (Dongguan)
Limited

SEERHME(RR)ERRR

Islands (“BVI") HEEBEZEE
HERZHE

([RBEX

#s1)

BVI BVI
EBREIHE RBEZHEE

Hong Kong (“HK") HK

BE(ER) BB
HK HK

GG 20
HK HK

BB 6
PRC PRC
R E FE

34. AR EIZMBATFE

Equity interest
attributable to
the Group

AEERERE
As at 31 December
R+=A=1+—-8
2018 2017
—E-N\E —Z—+F

100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

Issued and fully
paid share/
registered capital
ERTRBZR
&/ EMEX

usse
ordinary shares
6ETEER

Us$1
ordinary share
1L ER

HK$1
ordinary share
1BTEBR

HK$348,900
ordinary shares
348,900/ 7T &AM

HK$2
ordinary shares
2ATEBR

HK$3,000,000
registered capital

3,000,000 ¢
&R

Annual Report 2018 —Z— \F &

Principal activities

FEXRH

Investment holding

REZR

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding
and provision of
administrative
services

REER LR
THRS

Design and supply
chain business of
lightings and home
furnishing products

BRI N 5 E i
Rt Rt ER

Production of
prototypes of
lightings and home
furnishing products

R R 5 i
BREE

Production of
prototypes of
lightings and home
furnishing products

RALRE ik
REE

151
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
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34. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

WEAREM

Indirectly owned (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
PR 3L 3t 26

Principal
place of
operation

Equity interest
attributable to
the Group

TEEENY AEBELRE
As at 31 December
W+=A=t-—-H
2018 2017
ZE-NE —T—+F

Issued and fully
paid share/
registered capital
ERTRBER
X/ EMER

34. AREIZMBARFEE)

Principal activities

TEER

BERs(E)
Mastercraft Overseas Limited ~ BVI BVI 100% 100% US$1 Investment holding
HERUES HBEUES ordinary share REER
1RTEER
Mastercraft Distribution USA USA 100% 100% US$1 Wholesale distribution
USA Inc. EJ5 X common stock of lightings and
1ETERR home furnishing
products
RARKEHm
HEDH
Couture Lamps, Inc. USA USA 100% 100% US$1 Wholesale distribution
EJE XE common stock of lightings and
1ZTEBR home furnishing
products
R R ZE i
HEDE
Honest Joy International HK HK 100% 100% HK$1 Investment holding
Limited BE BA ordinary share and provision of
HRERER AR BTERR administrative
services
REHR KR
TR
EEBLENELEEREARAR PRC PRC 100% 100% RMB400,000,000  Investment holding
(FIERYAEELHaR & HE registered capital X &R
ERBRLA)" AR #400,000,0007
HEEEURREEERLA PRC PRC 100% 100% RMB400,000,000  Photovoltaic power
("Baofeng Photovoltaic”) H registered capital  generation
(TEExIR]) AR#400,000,000 KREE
AR
" Foreign investment enterprise established in the PRC A N BRRS IS

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities

RMEFER  HBARMETACETE
at the end of both years. s s

BaEs o
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35.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 23 March 2019, Baofeng Photovoltaic entered into
a sale and purchase agreement (“Sale and Purchase
Agreement”) with the Group’s supplier of photovoltaic
facilities (“Yinchuan Binhe”), an independent third
party, pursuant to which Baofeng Photovoltaic has
conditionally agreed to purchase and Yinchuan Binhe
has conditionally agreed to sell the photovoltaic
facilities (the "Equipment”) at the consideration of
RMB2,398,154,000 (tax inclusive) (equivalent to
approximately HK$2,808,142,000). The Equipment
is solar power generation equipment which has been
leased to Baofeng Photovoltaic by Yinchuan Binhe since
its acquisition of the Equipment and has been used
by the Group in the project for photovoltaic business
operations since the commencement of the project in
2016.

In addition, on 23 March 2019, Baofeng Photovoltaic as
lessee entered into a finance lease agreement (“Finance
Lease Agreement”) with Huaxia Financial Leasing Co.,
Ltd. CEESRMBEERRAF]) (the "Lessor”), pursuant
to which the Lessor has conditionally agreed to pay
RMB1,700,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,990,632,000) of the consideration under the
Sale and Purchase Agreement to Yinchuan Binhe,
upon which the Lessor will take ownership of the
Equipment. The Lessor will lease back the Equipment
to Baofeng Photovoltaic for a principal lease amount of
RMB1,700,000,000 to be paid by monthly instalments
(plus interests) commencing after a grace period which
will expire by 28 January 2021, with the last payment to
be made by 28 January 2031.

As an ancillary arrangement to the proposed acquisition
under the Sale and Purchase Agreement, on 23 March
2019, Baofeng Photovoltaic and Yinchuan Binhe also
entered into an assignment agreement, pursuant
to which Yinchuan Binhe has agreed that within
one month after receiving the first payment of the
consideration under the Sale and Purchase Agreement
from the Lessor, Yinchuan Binhe will pay an amount
of RMB300,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$351,288,000) to Baofeng Photovoltaic in cash, and
in return Baofeng Photovoltaic has agreed to assign
the tariff adjustment receivables in the amount of
RMB300,000,000 to Yinchuan Binhe effective on the
date when Baofeng Photovoltaic receives the aforesaid
cash payment.

These transactions are subject to the approval of the
shareholders of the Company.

35.

I RAR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z— ) \F+ZA=1+—HLFE

WMEHRER
RZBE-NAE=A=-+=0 ELRRHEK
EBE W RRFEEER ([RIET ) (—RBz
"**Hmi HEEwmZ([EEHa])
B BELAXREREREZEEE KIBIIEN
ﬁﬂﬂ#ﬂ T HENXRRRE(TRE]  REA
AR #2,398,154,000 T (&%) (HER L
2,808,142, ooo;aﬁ) o B AEARIEMN

Hﬁlﬁ% RBEEEETE 1ﬁﬁﬁ—§ﬁ%ﬁj¢§§?%€
BEi ]IEE$EIBA_ —NFRFAEB A

?5 - RIEB R RERREBEE

&t&lv)%:; hWE=ZA=-+=8"
HRK(AEEAA)BEESHHEEFR
(THBEANDII Y —ERERSEHE (T
MEmE]) Bt ERABFBKGERER
RINBATZNEEHRZE I ZRBEARE
1,700,000,000 7T ( #8 & M #91,990,632,000
Bt EH%&%EAH%HX?%&%E@%%% o
AABHALRRETFEL LK HEASAA
R #1,700,000,0007T * SR EREF(HR =
E-—F—F -+ )\BHEmMESA XN
(BMAE)  ZB—EENRBER_TE=—%F
— A=+ N\HAEI{EL -

E’éi' D
o} )% 2l g

FREEHZATERURETENEEL

HoR-T-AF=A-+=B E€XRK
K ER)IDEA IR S —REE B - Bt 0 R
Jll/ﬁxTﬂﬁﬁEHﬂE/\WHXEET% ZH MUE

ME—SHRO—M@EAR - FIIEM BN

HemE 2K AR 300,000,0007T

(FEE R 4351,288,000/87C) ° ghith » BL

FRKEREMIE) I\;E;TL%%%E%AEM

300 000, 000759’7 S EAREEWRIE B
SR YER AT i B3R & FRIEE BB AR ©

ZERXGAFRNRBBRILAER - TAMEE -
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36.

China Baofeng (International) Limited HEE2 (ER)GRLE

FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE
COMPANY

Non-current Assets

Property, plant and equipment
Investment in a subsidiary
Rental deposit

Current Assets

Other receivables

Amounts due from subsidiaries
Bank balances and cash

Current Liabilities

Other payables

Amount due to ultimate holding company
Amount due to a subsidiary

Bank borrowing

Net Current Assets (Liabilities)
Net Assets

Capital and Reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total Equity

36. AN EZHKEER

FRBEE

ME -~ BB R&E
BRERKB AT
HERE

RBEE
Hfth FE UK IR

& W P 18 2 B R IR
RITHEBREARS

RBEE

H Aty FE A 5RIR

e BRARYE R 2 R 5R0R
& A<+ — ] B /&8 2 R0 IR
RITHER

RBEERE)FHE
AEFRE

B R i

AR

&1

RERER S

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHxT FH T
404 1,319
462,814 463,276
- 2,013
463,218 466,608
2,252 526
38,371 38,716
4,545 5,752
45,168 44,994
1,863 2,324
8,000 -
13,668 -
- 250,000
23,531 252,324
21,637 (207,330)
484,855 259,278
6,638 5,677
478,217 253,601
484,855 259,278




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B mRM
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36.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

Movement of reserves:

At 1 January 2017

RZE—+F—HA—H

Loss and total comprehensive — FERNEE & & E X £ %8
expense for the year

At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF
+=ZA=+—H

Loss and total comprehensive  FREIE KR 2 ER X

expense for the year HEE

Issue of ordinary shares BATE AR

Share issue expenses BDBEITER

At 31 December 2018 RZZT—N\5F
+-A=+—H

Note:

Special reserve represents the difference between the
equity of subsidiary and the nominal amount of the
Company's shares issued in exchange thereof pursuant
to the group reorganisation in 2012.

36. ARFZHBERE)

fEEEE
Share Special Accumulated
premium reserve losses
R 48 15 Bl 5 48 REtEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT FHET
(Note)
(Bf=E)
289,547 16,385 (21,667) 284,265
- - (30,664) (30,664)
289,547 16,385 (52,331) 253,601
- - (23,768) (23,768)
249,029 - - 249,029
(645) - - (645)
537,931 16,385 (76,099) 478,217
M- BRlREEARAEHTEBR  EENR

BEBRR T —_FREEFAIMBMDKE
MEBARZRAZEE -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
LU T

RESULTS E 5

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FAT FAT FAT FAT
Revenue e 1,106,643 956,323 611,057 389,740 373,162
Profit before taxation B 74 AT i 1) 541,991 459,117 145,974 19,162 30,130
Income tax expense FrigHif > (9,504) (12,015) (4,429) (4,730) (6,498)
Profit for the year FERF 532,487 447,102 141,545 14,432 23,632

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERAE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—B-N\F —T—+F —F—RF _FT—HF —FT0OF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FET FABT FATT FAET
Total assets mEE 1,816,171 1,467,782 777,985 142,615 133,632
Total liabilities FCY =R (156,950) (496,054) (321,628) (57,131)  (47,402)
Total equity IREREZ AT 1,659,221 971,728 456,357 85,484 86,230

China Baofeng (International) Limited HEE2 (HR)GRLE
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